
StateDept008692

cos 904 968'IED U.S. Department of Stale Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12/3012015
IRELEASE IN FULy

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED Page I of3

From:
Sent: ..J

To:

Subject:

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
Morsch-Babu, laura N REDACTED
Friday, June 17, 20118:36 AM e=='="' ---.J

ORl-Users-Dl

FW: DRAFT Tasking list for Friday, Jun 17, 2011,
Good morning, everyone. We have the pen on two pieces this moming:

Laura

NR

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Holladay, Darby G [mailta:HolladayDG2@state.govl
Sent: Friday, June 17,2011 6:41 AM
To: PAO Group
Subject: .ORAFTTasking Ust for Friday, Jun 17, 2011

Good Morning-

Toria will brief at 12:30 pm.

Guidance collection will begin at 11:00 am and conclude at Noon in the 6th Floor PA
Conference Room. Please gather at 11 am with your guidances irrespective if they are final or
not, and Totia will see you in the order you arrive.

Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Jun 17,2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PAIFO a17-9606 after 11 a.m.)

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED Printed By: Weelman, Susan C
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12J30Eiifi5' of3



StateDept008693

CO 5904 9681ED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 1213012015

ClASSIFICATION: UNClASSIFIED Page 2 of)

Pending. Releases (Please Notify Us ASAP)
NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact
sheets so we can work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets
and media notes completely cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.
Media Note and Fact Sheet - U.S. Department of State Public Diplomacy Programs for Mongolia

Special Briefings and Transcripts:
DPB

NR

NEAR EAST .
NEAlEURlTURKEYIISRAEUGAZA: Is this weekend's planned flotilla meeting by activists
to break the Israeli blockade of Gaza proceeding? Has the US reached out to the NGO, the
Turks, the Israelis. and the Palestinians? What is our message to the organizers oCthe
flotilla? Does June 2S rh remain the start date for the flotilla? .

NR

. ClASSIFICATION: UNClASSIFIED Printed By: Woolman, Susan C
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 1213012015" of)



StateDept008694

CO 5 90 4 9681ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201CJ..04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 1213012015

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED

,No Taskillgs

MISCELLANEOUS
No Taskings

, .
Page 3 of3

, .

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED . Printed By: Weelm~ S~ C
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12/3012015 of3



StateDept008695

CO 5 90 4 9 6 91ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904969 Date: 12/30/2015
In~LC:"'~t: IN I"'ULy

From:
sent:
To:
Subject:

Categories:
Classification:

Morsc.h~Babu. laura N
Friday, June 17. 201110:46 AM
ORl-Users-Dl
FW: Additional TaskingS/Requests: S/RAP, EAP/lO, EUR/NEA

Working
UNCLASSIFIED

Please let me k.now if you'd like to reI/jew any of the below.

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

From: Holladay, Darby G [mai!to:Ho!!adayDG2@state.govl
Sent: Friday, June 17, 201110:35 AM
To: PAO Group .
Subject: Additional Taskings/Requests: SIRAP, EAPjIO, EUR/NEA

AII-

Apologies for the late tasking, but we have a few additional requests.

NEA/EUR:· Please provide today's tasked items on the Gaza Flotilla.

Thanks,

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05904969 Date: 1213012015

NR



StateDept008696

cos 90 49 71 lED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201(}-()4163 Doc No. C05904971 Date: 12130/2015

From:
Sent
To:
Ceo
Subject
Attachments:

Galindo. David R
Friday. June 17. 2011 1:11 PM
Busby, Scott W; Falls. Eric G; Melia. Thomas 0; Graze. Deborah E; Posner, Michael H
Sicade. lynn M (DRL); Baer. Daniel B; Galindo, David R

RE: HRC voting June 17 morning session: Belarus
110617 BJ.RresREV2bClEAN.docx

categories:
AttachmentsClassification:

Classification:

Working

UNCLASSIFIED
UNCLASSIFIED

I ON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

NR

.'

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

Flotilla - US calls for vote. 36 Yes. 1 No.8 Abstain

- Original Message­
From: Blaha. Charles 0
Sent: Friday•.June 17, 2011 06:41 AM
To: Nossel, Suzanne F; lapenn, Jessica; Sicade. Lynn M (ORL); Geneva HRC 17; Donahoe. Eileen C; DRl-MlGA-DL; IO-HR·
Ol
Subject: HRC voting June 17 morning session

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904971 Date: 12130/2015 .



StateDept008697

co 590 4 9711ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904971 Date: 12/30/2015

,

.,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201~163 Doc No. C05904971 Date: 1213012015

NR



StateDept008698

CO 5 90 4 97 31ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 1213012015
~ 1t(t:LtA~t: IN ~ULY

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Morsch·Babu, laura N
Tuesday, July 05, 2011 7:51 AM
DRL-Users-DL

FW: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

Categories:
Classification:
SensitivityCode:

Working /
UNCLASSIFIED
SBU

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

Note that we have the pen on the following:

Laura Morsch-Babu
Bureau Of Democracy Human Rights and labor
Policy, Planning & Public Diplomacy (DRljPPD)
(202) 647-0984
Morsch-BabuLN@state.gov

NR

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Holladay, Darby G {mailto:HolJadayDG2@state.gov]
sent: Tuesday, July as, 2011 7:30 AM
To: PAD Group
Subject: DRAFT Tasking Ust for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

Trying again.

From: Holladay, Darby G
sent: Tuesday, July OS, 2011 06:02 AM
To: Hammer, Michael Ai Nuland, Victoria J; Toner, Mark Ci Smith, Dana S; PA PRS_Issues; Chang, Benjamin
Subject: DRAFT Tasking Ust for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

From: darby holladay [mailto:darbygholladay@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July as, 2011 05:58 AM
To: Holladay, Darby G
Subject: DRAFT Tasking Ust for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

Good Morning -

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12130/2015



StateDept008699

CO 590497 31ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

Toria will brief today at 12:30 pm. Guidance collectiop will begin at 11 :00 am and conclude at Noon in the 6th
Floor PA Conference Room.

Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List. for Tuesday, lul5, 2011

Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group

Daily Schedule

DPB

Classified E-mail: PAPress Officers

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PAIFO at 7-9606 after!l a.m.)

Pending Releases (please Notify Us ASAP)

NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into our news flow .. Please aim tQ have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.

Special Briefings and Transcripts:

DPB

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

NR



StateDept008700

CO 590 497 31ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12130/2015

e.-...~_~_ ..._._._~ ~ ---.J

NEAR EAST

NEAlISRAEUGAZA: Is Flotilla 2.0 over? Update the cwrent guidance with this weekend's events.

SOUTH AND CENTRAL ASIA

l J

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 1213012015

NR



StateDept008701

co 5 904 97 31ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

MISCELLANEOUS

No Taskings

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

NR



StateDept008702

CO 5 90497 41ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904974 Date: 1213012015
• II'(t:L~t: IN ~ULY

From:
Sent
Subject

OpsAlert
. Tuesday, July 05.2011 9:59 AM

Greek court releases"American captain of Gaza flotilla boat (SBU) (sau)

(SBU) The captain of the Audacity of Hope was released from custody after his July 2 arrest for attempting to
set sail in defiance of a Greek ban on the flotilla boats leaving port, media report. Embassy Athens confirms the
release. .

Automatic electronic'distribution to: S. 0(5). D{NI. P, E, C. M, DG, T, R, PA, G, AF, EAP. EUR, NE-', SCA, WHA,IO.
SICRS, SICT, SIHSC, H, OS, CA, PMAT,INR, AVC,lIP,lSN, CMS, SlES, SIES-o, NSOC, and WHSR-

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Departmenl of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904974 Date: 1213012015



StateDept008703

CO 590 4 98 41ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904964 Date: 12/3012015
RELEASE IN FUl

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Mo~ch-Babu. laura N
Tuesday. July 19. 2011 8:10 AM
DRl-Users-DL

FW: DRAFT Tasking list for Tuesday, Ju119, 2011

Categories:
dassification:

Worir:ing

UNCLASSIFIED ON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
EDACTED

It's on extremely light morning so far. Please also review the final toskings loter this morning. because
it will likely have additional guidance. .

l0L!ro

Laura Morsch-Babu
Bureau Of Democracy Human Rights and Labor
Policy, Planning & Public Diplomacy (DRl/PPD).
(202) 647-0984
Morsch-BabuLN@state.gov

This email is UNClASSIFIED.

From: Holladay, Darby G [mailto:HolladavDG2@state.goyl
sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2011 6:07 AM .
To: PAD Group
SUbject: DRAFT Tasking Ust for Tuesday, Jul 19, 2011

Good Morning -
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

Heide will hold guidance collectio.o today between 11:00 - 12:00 in Rm. 2109.

Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, lui 19,2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
, DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (74979) (or in the PAIFO at 7-%06 after 1·1 a.m.)

Pending Releases (please Notify Us ASAP)
NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statemen~,'media notes and fact sheets so we
can work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and read for the Dail Press Briefm .

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163·Doc No. C05904964 Date: 1213012015

NR



StateDept008704

COS 90498 4 1ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904984 Date: 12130/2015

SpeCial Briefings and Transcripts:
SPB - Hom of Africa Famine

NEAlISRAEL: Did Israel stop a Gaza bound flotilla yacht? Did the Israeli Navy board the vessel? Was it a
peaceful boarding?

MISCELLANEOUS
No Taskings

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904984 Date: 12130/2015

NR



StateDept008705

co S 90 4 98 SlED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201O-04163 Doc No. C05904985 Date: 12/3012015
KtLt:Atit IN I"'UL

From:

Sent
To:
Subject

Morsch-Babu. laura N

Tuesday. July -19.2011 8:48 AM
DRL-Users-Dl

FW: FINAL Tasking list for Tuesday, Ju119. 2011

Categories:
Oassification:

Working
. UNClASSIFIED ON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS

EDACTED

Just one addition IL ---.J1 highlighted below.

Lauro ,"

NR

Laura Morsch-Babu
Bureau Of Democracy Human Rights and Labor
Policy, Planning & Public Diplomacy (DRLjPPD)
(202) 647-0984
Morsch·BabuLN@state 90\1

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Holladay, Darby G fmaitto:HoliadavDG2@state.goyl
Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2011 8:46 AM
To: PAQ Group
Subject: ANAL Tasking.Ust for Tuesday, Ju119, 2011

Good Morning - REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

Heide will hold guidance collection today between 11:00 - 12:00 in Rm. 2109.

Thanks,

.FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Ju119, 2011
Unclassified E·mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PAIFO at 7-9606 after IllLm.)

NR

Pending Releases (please Notify Us ASAP)
NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements. media notes and fact sheets so we
can work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements: fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.

1 -------

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. CD5904985 Date: 1213012015



StateDept008706

CO S 90 498 SlED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904985 Date: 12/30/2015

NEAlISRAEL: Did Israel stop a Gaza bound flotilla yacht? Did the Israeli Navy board the vessel? Was it a
peaceful boarding?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q..04163 Doc No. C05904985 Date: 12/30/2015

NR



StateDept008707

CO 5 9 0498 71ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201Q.04163 Doc No. C05904987 Date: 12/30/2015
IRELEASE IN FULq

From:
Sent:
Subject:

OpsAlert
Tuesday, July 19, 2011 5:25 PM
Update 1: French MN Dignite/Karama and Jordanian Ferry MN Noor of the Ga:z;a flotilla

(SBU) Embassy Paris confirmed that the ship docked at Ashdod at approximately 1700 Paris/liDO EDT and its
16 passengers and crew disembarked without incident. All of the passengers were taken to an administrative

. facility in Holon for processing by Israeli immigration authorities and the Ministry of Interior. According to
French officials, no Americans were aboard the boat.

(SBU) Embassy Tel Aviv comments the Israeli government is now focusing on the MN Noar, in the vicinity of
Antalya, Turkey. Citing AI Jazeera reports the ship intends to board 120 activists and is detennined to reach
Gaza, Israeli authorities have asked the Turkish MFA to prevent the ship from departing.

Automatic electronic distribution to: 5, 0(5), O(N), P, E, C; M, OG, T, R, PA, G, AF, EAP, EUR, NEA, SCA, WHA, 10,
S/CRS, S/CT, S/HSC, H, OS, CA, PMAT,INR, AVC, liP, ISN, CMS, S/ES, S/E5·0, N50C, and WHSR.

From: OpsAlert@state.gov "
. Sent: Tuesday, July 19,2011 6:04:11 AM
To:
CC:
Subject: Israeli Navy boards French MIV DignitelKarama of the Gaza flotilla (SBU)

(SBU) Embassy Tel Aviv confirmed the the Israeli Navy boarded the ship at 0535 EDTI1235 Tel Aviv
" approximately 1·2 miles outside Israel's Gaza blockade line. The navy is reportedly in control of the ship and is

taking it to the Israeli port of Ashdod. The Israeli Foreign Ministry is"not aware ofany injuries or
casualties. Embassy Paris reports the French Foreign Ministry has been in regular contact with
Israeli coun!erparts and has urged Israel to use minimal force and to guarantee French consular access.

Automatic electronic distribution to: S, O(S), O(N), P, E, C, M, DG, T, R, PA, G, AF, EAP, EUR, NEA, SCA, WHA,IO,
S/CRS, S/CT, S/HSC, H, OS, CA, PMAT, INR, AVC,IIP,ISN, CMS, S/ES, S/ES-O, NSOC, and WHSR.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

l

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904987 Date: 12/30/2015



StateDept008708

CO 59050 02 1ED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905002 Date: 12130/2015
IRELEASE IN FULlJ

From:
Sent
Subject

OpsAlert
Friday, September 02. 2011 6:52 AM
Update 1: Turkey To Downgrade Diplomatic Relations with Israel Over Palmer Report

(SBU) Concerned Israel will not apologize and pay reparations for last year's deadly raid on a Gaza·bound
flotilla, Foreign Minister Davutoglu says Turkey will downgrade diplomatic relations with Israel to the second
secretary level and cut military ties as well, media reports. Embassy Ankara comments Israel's ambassador to
Turkey returned to Israel previously, and is unlikely to be replaced.

. Automatic electronic distribution to: 5, 0(8), O(N), P, E, C, M, DG, T, R, PA, G, AF, EAP. EUR, NEAt SCA, WHA, 10,
SieRS, S/CT, SJHSC, H, OS, CA, PMAT, INR, Ave, liP, ISN, eMS, SJES. S/ES-O, NSOC, and WHSR.

From: OpsAlert@state.gov
Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 1:28:08 PM
To:
CC:
Subjed: New York Times Publishes Palmer Commission Report (U)

(U) Ahead of the expected September 2 publication, The New York Times released the full text of the UN's
fmdings. According to The NeW York Times, the review found Israel's navai blockade of Gaza to be legal and
appropriate but deemed the way its forces boarded the Turkish-based flotilla to be excessive and unreasonable.

Automatic electronic distribution to: S, O(B}, O{N), P, E, C, M, OG, T, R, PA, G. AF, EAP, EUR. NEA, SeA, WHA, 10,
SieRS, SlCT, SlHSC, H, OS. CA, PMAT, INR, Ave, liP, ISH, eMS, SlES. S/ES-o, NSOC, and WHSR.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905002 Date: 12130/2015



StateDept008709

CO 5 90 5 00 SlED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905008 Date: 12/30/2015
IRELEASE IN FULLJ

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Categories:
AttachmentsClassification:

Classification:

Walker-Johhson, lynda W (ORL)
Monday, September 12, 2011 7:12 PM
Galindo, David R; Sicade, lynn M (ORl); Busby, Scott W
Baer, Daniel 8; DRL Staff Assistants; Posoer, Michael H
HRCl8 Priorities 1M to S rev 3.docx
HRCl8 Priorities 1M to S rev 3.docx

Working.

UNCLASSIFIED
UNClASSIFIED

Attached please find tracked changes from A/S Posner and DAS Baer, with these changes they clear the memo.

This email is UNClASSIFIED.

EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F~2010~04163 Doc No. C05905008 Date: 12/30/2015



StateDept008710

co 5 905 01 0 rED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12130/2015
IRELEASE tN FULlJ

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED .

United States Department of State

Washington. D. C. 2051.0

INFORMATION MEMO FOR THE SECRETARY
ON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS

REDACTED

FROM: 10 - Esther Brimmer
DRL - Michael Posner
L - Harold Hongju Koh REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

eviewer

SUBJECT: Human Rights Council 18'" Session Preview, .
The UN Human Rights C-po"u.,.n",c",il==C=w",i",1l-,m",e"e",t""fo",r-,i"ts""I...,8",th""",S",es"s",io"n",in""",G",e",n",e",v",a-,
September 12-30, 201 I.

I[d,,",~;......e, I j
Turkey may run a follow u flotilla resolution but has not et received
instructions. L- -----'

SENsmVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 1213012015

NR



StateDept008711

co 5 90 50 1 0 lED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015 NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. De artment of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015



StateDept008712

CO 5 90 5 0 1 0 lED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
, -3-

I

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C0590S010 Date: 12/30/2015

NR
I



StateDept008713

CO 5 905 01 0 lED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015

Approved: JOIFO: E Brimmer
DRLIFO: M Posner
LIFO:HKoh

Drafted: IOIHR: Robert Schwartz (202) 647-3166

Cleared:
Drafted: JOIHR - Robert Schwartz, ext. 7-3166 and BB: 202-256-9610

Cleared: IOIFO: S Nossel OK
L: SBiniaz OK
JOIHR: M Honigstein OK
DRL/MLGA: D Galindo OK
LIHRR: G Brancato OK
D(B): C Neville OK
D(N): S Carl-Yoder OK
G: E Richardson OK
P: R Gerber OK
SIP: L Baer OK
PRM: 0 Hilton OK
USUN!W: W Bass info by request
USUN/NY: K Razzouk OK
Geneva: EDonahoe OK
AFIRSA: L Dees OK
SIUSSES: D Newman OK
EAPIRSP: H Farrar OK
NEAIRA: S Arkin OK
SCAIRA: J Brennig OK
EURlPGI: S Pierson OK
WHAlPPC: P Reilly OK
NSS: C Powell info

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010·04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015



StateDept008714

co 5 90 5 0 lllED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905011 Date: 12/3012015
IK~LI;.A;:)~ IN r-ULy

From:
Sent
To:
Subject .

Good morning.
Sudan, Burma, Ukraine, Egypt.

Weidner, Rebecca l
Friday. October 14, 2011 7:10 AM

DRL·Users·Ol
Fw: DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Oct. 14, 2011

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

\

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto·HolladayDG2@state.gov]
sent: Friday, October 14, 2011 07:04 AM
To: PAC Group
Subject: DRAFT Tasking Ust for Friday, Oct. 14, 2011

Good Morning -

The DPB will begin at 12:30 pm. Guidance collection will begin at 11 am until Noon in the 6U1 Floor PA
Conference Room.

Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Oct. 14,2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PAIFO at 7-9606 after 11 a.m.)

Pending Releases (Please Notify Us ASAP)
NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.

Special BriefiD2S and Transcrints

AFRICA:

EAST ASIA

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905011 Date: 12/30/2015



StateDept008715

C05 905 0 lllED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905011 Date: 1213012015

EUROPE _
EURINEAffURKEYIISRAEL: Do we believe Turkey's seeking Interpol Red Notice's against Israelis
involved in the Gaza Flotilla incident is conducive to rebuilding relations?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q..04163 Doc No. C05905011 Date: 12130/2015

NR

NR



StateDept008716

co 5 90 50 131ED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905013 Date: 1213012015

(REleAsE IN FUilj

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject

Serbia and an seCI tasking

Weidner. Rebecca l .
Tuesday, May 29. 2012 9:pD AM
ORl-Users-Dl
FW: FINAL Tasking Ust for Tuesday, May 29. 2012

ON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
EOACTED

Thanks,

From: Holladay, Oarby G (PACE) [mai!lD:HoIIadayDG2@state.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2012 8:58·AM
To: PAO Group
SUbject: FINAL Tasking Ust. for Tuesday, May 29, 2012

Good Morning -

The OPB will begin at 12:3Opm with Guidance collection between 11 am and Noon in the 6th PA Conference
Room. '

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

,
FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, May 29, 2012

Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (202-538-1193) (or in the PAiFO at 7-9606 after II a.m.)

Pending Releases (please Notify Us ASAP)
NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them intQ our news flow: Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Dailv Press BriefinQ:.

I

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-D4163 Doc No. C05905013 Date: 1213012015
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EUR/NEAfT'URKEYIISRAEL: What is our response to Turkey formally charging Israeli citizens/military
personnel for the death of members of the Gaza flotilla? Do we think this facilitates a renewing of relations
between the countries? -

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905013 Date: 1213012015
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{

\
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IRELEASE IN FULy

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject

Hudson, Helen C
Wednesday, November 07,20128:46 AM
DRL-Users-Dl
FW: FINAL Tasking Ust for Wednesday, November 7, 2012

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

Mali, China, Burma, Russia, Georgia, Syria. libya, Bahrain, Afghanistan/Pakistan, Sri lanka. Hch

Helen C. Hudson
Press Officer
Office of Policy Planning and Public Diplomacy
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor
Tel: 202-647-2330
B8: 202-256-9931
Email: hudsonhc@state.gov
please Note: Press guidance and other items for clearance should be sent to the DRL-PPD-DL collective to assure thot

everyone in the section sees them.

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, November 07, 2012 8:33 AM
To: PAO Group
Subject: ANAL Tasking List for Wednesda.y, November 7, 2012

Good Morning-

The DPB will be at 12:3Opm today. Note. there is carry-over from yesterday's list, so make sure yesterday's
guidance remains current.
REMEMBER THE NEW LOCATION: Guidance Collection will begin at l1am and conclude at Noon in
Room 6835.

Thanks, REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

FINAL Tasking List for Wednesday, November 7, 2012
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group _ . Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (202-538-1 I93)(or in the PAIFO at 7-9606 after 11 a.m.)

Pending Relea'ses (Please Notify Us ASAP)
NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into OUI news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefmg.

Statement· Conviction ofAI-Mala

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201o-04163 Doc No. C05905019 Date: 12130/2015
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Media Note - Anti Corruption Conference in Brasilia

•

EURlNEAlcrrrURKEYIISRAEL: We will need lines on Turkey's trial in absentia ofIsraeli's involved in
s10 in the Gaza flotilla.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F·201o-04163 Doc No. C05905019 Date: 12/3012015
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I-I
I

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05905019 Date: 1213012015
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From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Tuesday, April 05. 2011 3:27 PM
Posner, Michael H
Short Julie A; Morris,. Joshua C; Cassidy. Joseph P; $icade, lynn M (DRl); Ueberman.
Jessica 0 (DRL)

Quick dearance needed - D(S) request on Goldstone op-ed issue update

Categories:
Classification:
SensitivityCode:

Working
UNClASSIFIED
Sensitive

Hi A/S Posner.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon
mad, senior Reviewer

D(S) has asked for an update on the Goldstone op-ed

Thanks.
Sarah

NR

lassified by OAS, AlGIS. DoS on 1211612015 - Class: CONFIDENTIAL - Reason: 1.4{B), 1.4(D}.
1 - Declassify on: 04105/2011

NR

61'1
,A~lso~o~n"M~o~n~da~y".~IO~.,cD::::RL~~an~d"Nc:.EAIIP~~A~m~et:cw~ith~th~e:..P~ol~C~o~uns~fro~m:cth~eC'Is~ ..~e~li~Em~bassy~Z:h'~_~~_~~_

r 1.4(6)
1.4(D)

,
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904940 Date: 1213012015
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sarah Johnston-Gardl"ler
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (DRl)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202-647-0293

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904940 Date: 12/3012015
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S9U
This email is UNCLASSiFIED.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904940 Date: 12130/2015
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From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject

Categories:
Classification:
SensitivityCode:

Posner. Michael H . IRELEASE IN PART 861
Thursday, May 26, 201110:52 AM
Richter, Kim B; Rademacher, Paul R
lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Magarian, Sharyn; Mann, Winston E(DRL)
RE: Furbn Dogan. a U.s. citizen

Working
UNCLASSIAED
Sensitive

Adding Jessica lieberman, Jill Hutchings, Winston Mann and Sharyn Magarian

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Richter, Kim B
sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 10:45 AM
To: Posner, Michael Hi 'Rieser, Tim (Appropriations)'; Rademacher, Paul R
Cc: 'Manatt, Nlkole (Appropriations)'; Eilts, Colin C
Subject: RE: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

Adding Colin Eilts on the Israel Desk.

From: Posner, Michael H
sent: Thursday, May 26, 201110:30 AM
To: 'Rieser, Tim (Appropriations)'; Richter, Kim B; Rademacher, Paul R
Cc: Manatt. Nikole (Appropriations)
Subject: RE: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

Checking on this - will get back to you

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations)~ _
sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 7:35 PM
To: Richter, Kim" B; Rademacher, Paul R; Posner, Michael H
CC: Manatt, Nikole (Appropriations)
Subject: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

Can you tell me whether the u.s. Embassy in Israel has determined who was responsible for

Mr. Dogan's death, whether there is any credible evidence that he was armed or his shooting

was justified, if not whether the person(s) responsible has (have) been brought to justice,

whether the Leahy Amendment has been invoked, and any other information the Stat~

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Slale Case No. F-201Cl-04163 Doc No. C05904947 Date: 1213012015
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Department can provide regarding actions it has taken on behalf of Mr. Dogan's family or in
pursuit of justice in this case? Thanks, Tim

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904947 Date: 1213012015
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RELEASE IN PART
B5.NR

From:
Sent
To:
Cc
Subject:

Mann, Winston E(DRl~

Thursday, May 26. 201112:43 PM
Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman. Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings. Jill
Fitzpatrick, Kath~ M; Busby, Scott W; Miller, Asa G
RE: Furbn Dogan. a US. citizen

Categones:
Oasslfication:
SensitivityCode:

Cheers,

Winston

Working
UNCLASSIFIED
Sensitive

,

85

NR

SBU
This email is UNClASSIFIED.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior.
Reviewer

From: Magarian, Sharyn
Sent: Thursday, May 26, 201112:23 PM
To: Posner, Michae:l.H; Ueberman, Jessica D (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Mann, Winston E (DRl)
CC: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
SUbject: RE: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

SBU

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F·201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904948 Date: 1213012015
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This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

.From: Posner, Michael H
sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 10:32 AM
To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Mann, Winston E (DRl)
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen Mi Magarian, Sharyn
Subject: FW: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. dtizen

What do we know? I want to respond quickly

S8U
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim Rieser@appro.seoate.govJ
sent:. Wednesday, May 25, 2011 7:35 PM
To: Richter, Kim B; Rademacher, Paul R; Posner, Michael H
Cc: Manatt, Nikole (Appropriations)
SUbject:: Furl<an Dogan, a U.S. dtizen

Can you tell me whether the U.S. Embassy in Israel has determined who was responsible for
Mr. Dogan's death, whether there is any credible evidence that he was armed or his shooting
was justified, if not whether the person(s) responsible has (have) been brought.to justice,
whether the Leahy Amendment has been invoked, and any other information the State
Department can provide regarding actions it has taken on behalf of Mr. Dogan's f.mily or in
pursuit, of justice in this case? Thanks, Tim

,
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904948 Date: 1213012015
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".eLtJo\;)e 11';1 ,....... " I

1.4(Bl,Bl,l.4(0),N

From:
sent
To:
Cc:
Subject:

categories:
Classification:

Freedom House Rates HRC: j

Galindo. David R
Friday, May 27.20115:38 PM"
DRl-Radar
DRl-MlGA-Ol
M.LGA Radar, Friday, May 27.2011

Working
UNCLASSIAED

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

NR

Flotilla:

B1f
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

• The Human Rights Council will debate the flotilla issue on June 14, two days after the Turkish elections. It is not
clear yet whether Turkey will run another resolution. The High Commissioner's report on the flotilla issue is very

short and non-"inflammatory. The USG wi," have a statement which is in the clearance process. (Johnston­
Gardner)

Classified by DAS, AlGIS, DoS on 12116/2015 - Class: CONFIDENTIAl­
Reason: 1.4(8 ,1. 0),81 - Declassif on: OS/27/2021

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNClASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904951 Date: 1213012015
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IRELEASE IN PART I

~,B6

From:

Sent:
To:
Subject:

Mike,

Short, Julie A

Friday. June 03, 2011 7:02 PM
Posner, Michael H

RE:C= , 86

L-
1

85

Julie

From: Busby, Scott w
Sent: Friday, June 03, 2011 6:59 PM
To: Short, Julie A; Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRl); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings,
Jill
Cc: Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRl)~riCk, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
SUbject: Rei .

~t.-------------------------------

From: Short, Julie A
Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 01:29 PM
To: Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Ueberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
SCott W
Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE: Prof. Dogan - father of Fur1<.an

Sharyn,

86

85

85

Thanks,

Julie REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM
To: Mann, Winston E(DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re:1 I

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 12130/2015
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__________________----'1· 65

From: Mann, Winston E(ORl)
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott w
Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R ,
Subject: REI I· 66

65

SBU
This email is UNClASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn
Sent: Friday, May 27, 201111:53 AM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott w
Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen Hi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:I I .. 66

65

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

from: Mann, Winston E(DRl)
sent: Friday, May 27, 201110:38 AM
To: Posner, Michael Hi Lieberman, .Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
CC: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Ga~ner, Sarah R(ORL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn
Subject: RE: I 66

A/S Posner,

65

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 12130/2015
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vi'
Winston

SBU .
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Posner, Michael H
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:09 AM
To: Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
Cc: Short. Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul Ri,
Magarian. Sha n •
Subject, FW' L-_-_-__~ ____'

Please advise··

B6

,

[

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

~J B5

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) (mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov]
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: J<ademache" Paul R
SUbject'IL _

Mike, per my earlier email about the killing ofFurkan Dogan,·a U.S. citizen on board the flotilla to Gaza
who according to the Turkish investigation was unarmed and executed, I received this email from tbe
Center for Constitutional Rights after I asked what success tbey had had in speakiDg with tbe State Dept
about bim:

"We have not received any further information from the State Department" unfortunately. As I
mentioned in February. we tried to meet with Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy,·Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was bener to meet with consular
services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests, ­
including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing-out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel). a follow up email, and 3-4 calls to his office, we never received a
response. There bas been some further communication with the embassy in Ankara requesting that they
seek the return of Furkan's property from Israel, including video evidence, but to no avai!.»

Also, here is 3 description of Furkan from CCR:

Furkan Do~an graduated from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
wllversity entrance examination, which in Turkey is an honor reserved for a small percentage of high school
students. Furkan planned to go to medical school. He wanted to be a doctor - he always wanted to help

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 1213012015
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people. Furkan was kind and generous. Whenever his grandparents gave him pocket change, Furkan would
give it to people who didn't have enough to eat.

Furkan was very fine, polite, helpful, and generous. He disliked violence his whole life. He stood by just and
modest but resisted unfairness. He was very clean and neat He never liked violence and was never
impolite. He couldn't stand by injustice. but took the side of the oppressed and victims ofviolence.

He used to play soccer. He was a big fan of the soccer team GaJatasaray. and was also a supporter of our city's
soccer team, Kayseii Sports Club. Once he applied to an amateur soccer team for a "soccer player license:' but
he was rejected because of his foreign (American) nationality. He followed the NBA, attended chess
tournaments, and one of his favorite activities was swimming, which used to do all the time during our
holidays. He had recently obtained his driver license, and was really enjoying driving our car.

Furkan was very good at mathematics, and .he loved reading and searching on the internet, expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show "Kelime
Oyunu" (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

fer the summer between high scJtoo1'and Q.Iliv.ers.ity·. Furkan h.ad'.been pl~g to go·to th~ United States.' He
ranted to vis.it Troy, Ne~ york. whereb~,Wasbom.8na~live(i"'the.fuSt·years'?Oiis ~e, ~d he ~ted to spend
f~e wi~,relat.jv~~. in..q~ca.&o!_wJ:te~ he.~~.g~~?.&.io',~e.lan~e·dasses'lO impro:ve his English. which h~_
iUread~ke gUlle.well. Furkan' had· onl>: U.S. cltJ.zenshi~

However,. one day he .~e hom~ aq.d: he. had~~~.a.b!.H~~v~~ing.8 h~~an ~a~. ~oing .t9
~aza. He had "Seen ·.pi~tures of children .m·Ow .who were killed 'py~the bombardment, arid he 'spo~~ Qf th~
chilare~.ther:e without eno~gh to, eat::- i-le'asked.9Ur'penp.i~i~~ ~.~~~, 1le.e~plainec;I' that" he .c:00d al~YS go ,td
\be Untted.States to study Enghsh; but.he.rouldn~t-always go t9 Gaza .to take Bid to·those..-m.need: FurkJ

ranted to ~e gi~,and gi~e ~e~ to'~liil~n'in ~~th "hi~:,?~.-~~.~ H~'~an't~ to"br~~e;tbe ~e'~i
as ~~se chIldren- a,nd express ',his Con'ip~slOn.and ..so.h~ty, His.mother 'and .J-·dtdn't.feel that.we could say.og
\0 him - to his honorable reguest.., We 'w.ere prou'a of Furklfu, I

Fe have sin~ ~ea,r~:·that·,F~~ -n:~ ~ell-~6.wri C?~~the.Jyf~i.M~tm.~t:.ll1?ecaus.~..hewas ~a&.e~'t?helpan~~
always offenng aSSistance ·to dtheJ:':passengers, as. ·was ;hlS' nature.. Whe~. hehcopters appro'a~hed the .sh,lpJ
fur~an went to th~·tpp.~e~~~~it~~hi·s ~er~ !o.~.re~o~ w~~t,~a~1I1~ppen·i.ri~.:~.M~·so'~ was shot five'tim,es ~Y-ID~
~oldters - after, ·he was Ilitttally shot. 'and w0l:U1de4, we unde;~tand that ·he- was\dragg~d: by- IDF,soldters to the
~ide! where he was then shot in'the face at- close niil"ge and' 'kill~d,' Furkan :was.IS years old1

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 12130/2015
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RELEASE IN PART ­
85,86

From:
Sent:
To;

Cc:

Subject:

Kathy/Jessica -- Can you?

Busby, Scott W

Friday, June 03, 2011 7:08 PM

Short, Julie A; Posner, Michael H; ~ann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian. Sharyn; Lieberman,
Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill I

Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher,
Paul R .

Ro;:[I========= 86

85

From: Short, Julie A
sent: Friday, June 03, 2011 07:03 PM
To: Busby, SCott W; Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRl); Magarian, Sharyn; Ueberman, Jessica D (DRL);
Hutchings, Jill
CC: JOhnston-c sarah R CDRL)j Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE: J
Scott,

Julie

86

85

From: Busby, Scott W
sent: Friday, June 03, 2011 6:59 PM
To: Short, Julie Ai Posner, Michael Hi Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings,
Jill . .

Cc: Johnston-Garoner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzoatrick, Kathleen Mi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Ro: I J' 86

85

~cott

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Short, Julie A
sent: Thursday, June 02,2011 01:29 PM . .
To: Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); M·agarian, Sharyn; lieberman, Jessica 0 (D.RL); Hutchings, Jill; BuSby,
SCott W
Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (I?RL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F·201D-04163 Doc No. C05904954 Date: 12/30/2015
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SUDject: RE: r
Sharyn,

Thanks,
Julie

J B6

85

From: Posner, Michael H
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharynj Lieberman, .Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott w
Cc: Short, Julie A; Jonnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)j Fitzpatrick,. Kathleen M; Baet-, Daniel Bj Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re: Prof. Dogan - father of Furkan

J
From: Mann, Winston E (DRl)
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharynj Posner, Micnael Hi Ueberman, JessK:'.a 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott w
CC: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)i Fitzpatrick, Kathleen Mi Baer, DanierB; Rademacher, Paul R
SUbject: RE:I I .

];9U
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 11:53 AM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRl); Posner, Michael Hi Ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
CC: Short, Julie A: Johnston-Gardner Sarah R (CRl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
SUbject: RE: I I

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904954 Date: 1213012015
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From: Mann, Winston E (DRl)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:38 AM
To: Posner, Michael H; lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
ee: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzp?trick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R; I

Magarian, Sha n .
Subject: RE: , 86

A/S Posner,

B5

vIr
Winston

SBU
This email is UNClASSIFIED.

From: Posner, Michael H
sent: Friday, May 27, 201110:09 AM
To: Ueberman, .Jessica 0 (DRl); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
Cc: Short. Julie A; Johnston-Garclner, Sarah R (DRl); Rtzpat:rick, Kathleen Mi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, ShaW
Subject: FW:[ B6

Please advise--

B5

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro,senate.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM
To: Posner, Michael H
ee: Rademacher, Paul R
Subject, ,-I _

Mike, per my earlier email about the killing of Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen on board the flotilla to Gaza
who according to the Turkish investigation was unarmed and executed, I received this email from the
Center for Constitutional Rights after I asked what success they had had in speaking with the State Dept
about him:

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904954 Date: 12130/2015
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"We have not received any further infonnation from the State Department. unfortunately. As I
mentioned in February, we tried to meet with Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was bener to meet with consular
services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests,
including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel), a follow up email, and 3-4 calls to his office, we never received a
response. There has been some further communication with the embassy in Ankara requesting that they
seek the return of Furkan's property from Israel, including video evidence, but to no avaiL"

Also, here is a description of Furkan from CCR:

Furkan Do~an graduated from high school last' year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
university entrance examination, which in Turkey is an honor reserved for a small percentage of high school
students. Furkan planned to go to medical school. He wanted to be a doctor - he always wanted to help
people. Furkan was kind and generous. Whenever his grandparents gave him pocket change, Furkan would
give it to people who didn't have enough to eat.

Furkan was very fine, polite, helpful, and generous_ He disliked violence his whole life. He stood by just and
modest but resisted unfairness. He was very clean and neat. He never liked violence and was never
impolite. He couldn't stand by injustice, but took the side of the oppressed and victims of violence.

He used to play soccer. He was a big fan of the soccer team Galatasaray, and was also a supporter of our city's
soccer team, Kayseri Sports Club. Once he applied to an amateur soccer team for a "soccer player license," but
he was rejected because of his foreign (American) nationality. He followed the NBA, attended chess
tournaments, and one of his favorite activities was swimming, which used to do all the time during our
holidays. He bad recently obtained his driver license, and was really enjoying driving our car.

. Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and searching on the internet, expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show "Kelime
Oyunu" (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

!for the swnmer between high school. and university, Fur!'an had been·pl~ng to'go to the United States... H~
~ted to visitTroy, New Yorl<, where he'was bom'and lived the first years-ofhis life; and-he wanted to' spend
time with relatives· in Chicago; where he waS going. to take lan~ge' classes to iinprove his English. which h~
~read~QQke guite well. Furkan had only U.S.:Citizenshipr

How~ver. ~ne day· h:. came horn~ and'. ~e .had,. seen a billb:?~ advertisin.& a h~tarian. b?at ~o~g t9
~ He had seen pictures of children 10'G~ 'who were killed by.the bombardment, and· lie spoke of the
.children th;ere'without,enou~: to ea~..He· askecPo~Per:nissi~n ~ .go. ):ie' e.x:·pl1un~.~(he ~~4.8JwaYs go t~
\be United States to;.stl:Jd,Y English, but he .couldn't. a.!~ys .go to Q$ to ..taJc.e jUd' to ,those in n~. '~urkari
~te4 to ~e giftS and gi~e. them to:children in'Ga~::~~ his own:~. J:Ie·~t~.t~ ..brea~~·tJ;e S4ID.~._~
as these 'children and express his compassion'and: solidarity: 'His mother aridl didn't feel thafWe coUld.say no.
10 him - to his honorable ~uest.· We were p'rOud of Furl<.an. ·1

fe have siI',lce. heard ~at Furk~ .y.'as.·we.1~~~o~ orr. t~~ Mayi'!Ja,,;,!ara. b~us~ ~~ \,\'as e~.ger ,to ~e~p.. and ~~
always offering assistance to other ·passengers, as was his. nature. When bellcopters approached the ship}
rur~an went to the ~op ~~:~·..-.nth hiss.a.J:ne~ .~o· ~coi~ ~hat .+~·.~ap~~ng. My ~n ~as sho.tfi~~ t~~e~ by IP_~
soldl~fS: - after he was lD1ually ·shot and_'Wo~ded, we :undefStan9"~t ~~ ·was dragged bJ -IDF soldiers to the
~ide. where·he was then'shot in· the face at close rangetcfud killed.- F\lfkan was;18'YM'oldl
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85,86

From:
Sent
To:
Subject:

Posner, Michael H
Thursday, June 02.201111:14 PM
Marna", Sharyn
Re: -------' B6

I wilt respond in the morning (and copy you)
Thanks

From: Magarian, Sharyn
sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 l1:04·PM
To: Posner, M.=ichaeI==H -----,
Subject: Fw: LI -----'

Hi Mike,

Thanks.

B6

65

From:"Short, Julie A
Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 01:29 PM
To: Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E(DRl); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman,.Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
SCott W
Cc: Johnston-Gardner. Sarah R(DRl); fjtzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:I I . . B6

Sharyn,

65

Thanks,
Julie REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Reviewer

From: Posner, Michael H
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM
To: Ma.nn, WinstDn E(DRl); Magarian, Sharyn; ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
Cc: Short. Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRl); AtzpatriCk, Kathleen Hi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re:! I· B6

65

From: Mann, Winston E (ORL)
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharynj Posner, Michael Hj Liebenncin, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jillj BuSby, Scott W
CC: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatricj(, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:I I 66

65
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S6U
This email is UNClASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn .
Sent: Friday, May 27,201111:53 AM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posm!r, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott w
Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Garclner, sarah R (DRL); Rtzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel Bi Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:I I 86

85

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E (ORL)
sent: Friday, May 27, 201110:38 AM
To: Posner, Midlaef H; UebefT:nan, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRl); Fltzpal:J"id(, Kathleen Hi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;

Magarian, Sharyn":'===--======:JSubject: REt

NS Posner,

vir
Winston

SBU
This emaihs UNCLASSIFIED.
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From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:09 AM
To: lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL}i Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott w
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sha'~~l'n,- _

.Subject: FW:L:

Please advise--

L _

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov)
Sent: Fr.iday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Rademacher, Paul R
SUbject'LI _

Mike, per my earlier email about,the kiJling of Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen on board the flotilla to Gaza
who according to the Turkish investigation was unarmed and executed, I received tbis email from the
Center for Constitutional Rights after I asked what success they had had in speaking with the State Dept
about him:

"We have not received any further infonnation from the State Department, unfortunately. As I
mentioned in February, we tried to meet with Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was better to meet With consular
services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests,
including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel), a follow up.email, and 3-4 calls to his office, we never received a
response. There has been some further communication with the embassy in Ankara requesting that they
seek the return ofFurkan's property from Israel, including video evidence, but to no avail."

Also, here is a description of Furkan from CCR:

Furkan Dogan graduated from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
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

Furkan was very fine, polite, .helpful, and generous. He disliked violence his whole life. He stood by just and
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

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904955 Date: 12/30/2015
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tournaments, and one of his favorite activities was swimming, which used to do all the time during our
holidays. He had recently obtained his driver license, and was really enjoying driving our"car.

Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and" searching on the internet. expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show "KeJime
Oyunu" (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

for the summer betWeen high school· and university,·Furkim had been planning to go to the United States. Hd
;Wanted to visii Troy, N~w Yor~;-where he~ bani~d live~. tile [u.st yea'rs:ofhis life, and he wankrl !c?=spend
time with relatives. in .Chicago, w~e~'he was.go!n& to, take larigu.ige classes to imp.rove his.En~ish,.which hJ
atreadY~P.Qke Quite',well. Furkan had"onlX'U.S: citizenshi~

However, one day he came borne and he -had: seen a;billbOard advertising a humanitarian boat going td
I .". . _. '. . .' . I
Gaza. He had seen pictures of children in Gaza who were killed by the bombardnient, and he spoke of the
hhildren there with~unn6tigh to. eat· He asked:ouq>ermissicin tCfgo. "He exphuned that he could alwaYs 'go td• . ... . '. .. . I
tpe Untted States to study English, l!ut)le:coul~'Lal~ys go to G~ 10 take aid to those in need. Furkan
ranted to take. ~fts' ~d give them to ctiiliJren in qaza with his own·hands. l:Je wanted to breathe the same~
as these children and'express:his'com~ioinmdsolidarity.:'His mother and I didn't feel that 'we could saY. oJ
to him -to his honorable·reguest. We were p.roud of Furkan.:j . -

rve ha.ve sin~ h~ that F~~Was weU~kD.own o~.th~ M~i'¥o/mara beca~ be...was eager .to·b:el~ ~d.~
always offenng assistance to' otheI: 'passengers, as was ,his nature.' \Yhen helIcopters approach~ -the ship!
Furkan w~t to the iop deck. with'his,camera ~o record what was happening. My son:was shot five times by ID~
~Idiers - after he was initially.shoi ana wounded. we'underStand that he was.dragged by IDF.soldiers to the
~ide, where he was then shot in the face at."c1ose range and killed'. Furkan was 18 years old~

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904955 Dale: 1213012015



StateDept008742

Date: 12130/2015Doc No. C05904958

I

RELEASE IN PART I____________________ B~5.:::,B:::.6 ..... _

co 5 90495 SlED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

Busby, Scott W
Friday, May 27. 20114:57 PM
Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Magarian,
Sharyn; lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl);"Hutchings, Jilt
Short. Julie A; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R; Sicade, LynnM(CRL
RE:
------ 86

Categories:
Classification:
SensitivityCode:

Working
UNCLASSIFIED
Sensitive

85

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (ORL)
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 3:45 PM .....
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Magarian, Sharyn; lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
SCottW
CC: Short, Julie Ai Fitzpatrick. Kathleen Mi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R; Sicade, lynn M (DRL)
Subject: RE: I I 86

85

Ir I

Best,
sarah REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Reviewer

sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (ORl)
Office of Multllateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202-64HJ293
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SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 3:17 PM
To: Posner, Michael Hi Magarian, Sharynj lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott w
Cc: Short, Julie A: Johnston-Gardner. Sarah R (DRl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen Mi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE~ I

vIr
Winston

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.,

From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL)j Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen Hi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re: I I

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael Hi Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Cc: Short, Julie A: Johnston..(;ardner. sarah R(DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:I I

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn
sent: Friday, May 27, 't:Oll 11:53 AM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Weberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott w

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904958 Date: 12130/2015
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Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(CRl); Fitzpatrick,. Kathleen Mi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
S!.lbject: RE:, I _ . . B6

85

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E(DRl)
sent: Friday, May 27, 201110:38 AM
To: Posner, Michael H; Ueberman, .Jessk:a 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(CRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniet B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sha"Mll!L --' _
S!.lbject: REf 86

A/S Posner,

85

vir
Winston

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Posner, MM:haeI H
sent: Friday, May 27,201110:09 AM
To: ueberman, Jessk::a 0 (DRl); Mann, Winston E (ORL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
Cc: Short,. Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(CRl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; 8aer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, 5ha;.<ryn'-'- ~~

Subject: FW:I 86

Please advise -

85
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SBU
This email is UNClASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, nm (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov)
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM
To: Posner, Michael H
CC: Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: 1 _

Mike, per my earlier email about the killingofFurkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen on board the flotilla to Gaza
who according to the Turkish investigation was unarmed and executed, I received this email from the
Center for Constitutional Rigbts after I asked what success they bad had in speaking with the State Dept
about him:

"We have not received any further infonnation from the State Department, unfortunately. As I
mentioned in February, we tried to meet with Assistant S~retary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was better to meet with consular
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
seek the return ofFurkan's propeny from Israel, including video evidence, but to no avail."

Also, here is a description of Furkao from CCR:

Furlcan Do~an graduated from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
university entrance examination, which in Turkey is an honor reserved for a small percentage of high school
students. Furkan planned to go to medical school. He wanted to be a doctor - he always wanted to help
people. Furkan was kind and generous. Whenever his grandparents gave him pocket change, Furkan would
give it to people who didn1t have enough to eat.

Furkan was very fine, polite, helpful, and generous. He disliked violence his whole life. He stood by just and
modest but resisted unfairness. He was very clean and neat. He never liked violence. and was never
impolite. He couldn't stand by injustice, but took the side of the oppressed and victims ofviolence.

He used to play soccer. He was a big fan of the soccer team Galatasaray, and was also a supporter of our city's
soccer team, Kayseri Spons Club. Once he applied to an amateur soccer team for a "soccer player license," but
he was rejected because of his foreign (American) nationality. He followed the NBA, attended chess
tournaments, and one of his favorite activities was swimming, whi.ch used to do all the time during our
holidays. He had recently obtained his driver license, and was really enjoying driving our car.

Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and searching on the internet, expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show "Kelime
Oyunu" (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

for'the'sUrniner between.high school arid university, Furkan had·been planning to go. to· the United States: HeI ... .•.' . . _' ... <...,. ... -;
r-anted·to,visit Troy, New York;whe:re he'\was born and lived the first.years of his life, and he wanted to spend
time·with rel~tiv~. in ~Chicago'- ~re~'be Was .'go~g to ·take lan~ge classes- to improVe his EngJislk which h~
~d·Y.§P.Qke guitc"weIl.:Furkari·had onlY.U.S_ citiZenshipJ

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904958 Date: 1213012015
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[RELEASE IN PART [
85,86· .

From:
Sent
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Categories:
Oassification:

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Busby, Scott W
Friday, May 27, 20114:44 PM
Posner, Michael H
BOler Daniel 8' Graze Deborah E
RE:I -----.J

Working
UNCLASSIFIED

86

85

From: Posner, Michael H
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 4:09 PM
To: Busby, Scott w
Cc: Baer, Daniel B; Graze, Deborah E
Subject: FwLI ---.J 86

85

From: ]ohnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRl)
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 03:45 PM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Magarian, Sharyn; lieberman, Jessica 0 (ORl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
ScottW
Cc: Short, Julie Aj Fitzpamck, Kathieen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R; Sicade, lynn M (DRL)
SUbject: RE:I I . 86

85 '

I
Best,

Sarah
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (ORl)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202-647-0293

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E(ORt)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 3:17 PM
To: Posner, Michael Hi Magarian, Sharyrl; Ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott w
CC: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, sarah R(DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen. Hi Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
SubJect: RE:L I I B6

65

vIr
Winston

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Posner, Michael H
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM .
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Liebennan, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott V'f
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRL); Rtzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re: Prof. Dogan • fat:hef of Furkan

c= 65

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)
sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott w
Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRl); Rtzpatrick. Kath'een M; Baef',.Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:I I 66

65
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SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn
Sent: Friday, May, 27, 201111:53 AM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRl); Posner, Michael Hi Ueberman, Jessica 0 (ORl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
CC: Short, Julie A: Johnst:on=Gardoer Sa@h j (ORL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel Bi Rademacher, Paul R
SUbject: RE:I .

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

B6

85

From: Mann, Winston E (DRl)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 201110:38 AM
To: Posner, Michael H; Ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
ce Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian,Sha'!.l'Y""'- _
SUbject: REi 86

A;S Posner,
85

vI'
Winston

SBU •
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

from: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:09 AM

·To: Uebennan, Jessica 0 (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, 5coll W
Cc: Short, Julie A; .Joh~-Gardner, Sarah R(OOl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Radernacner, Paul R;
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Magarian, Sha~~n ---;
Subject: FW:!L--- ---.J

Please advise--

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Rademacher. Paul R
Subject:LI_~ .J

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

"We have not received any further information from the State Department, unfortunately. As I
mentioned in February. we tried to meet,with Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was better to meet with consular
services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests,
including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel), a follow up email, and 3·4 calls to his office, we never received a
response. There has been some further communication with the embassy in Ankara requesting that they
seek the return of Furkan's property from Israel, including video evidence, but to no avail."

Also, here is a description of Furkan from CCR:

Furkan Dogan gradU?ted from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
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
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them" very quickly. The TV quiz show "Kelimc
Oyun~" (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

lieberman. Jessica 0 (ORt)
Friday, May 27, 201112:05 PM
Magarian, Sharyn; Mann, Winston E(ORl); Posner, Michael H; Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
Scott W
Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (ORL); Fitzpatrick., Kathleen M; BCler, Daniel B;
Rademacher, Paul R
Re:I _ 86

85

From: Magarian, Sharyn .
Sent: Friday, May 27, 201111:52 AM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL)j Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Cc: Short, Julie Aj Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRl); Fiupatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:I I

S8U
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

REVIEW AUTHORI1Y: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Mann, Winston E (ORL)
sent: Friday, May 27, 201110:38 AM
To: Posner, Michael H; lieberman, Jessica 0 (ORL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott w
Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston--Gardner, sarah R (ORL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Maganan, Sha?rynccc -,Subject: RE:LI _

A/S Posner,

vi,
Winston

S8U
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This email is UNClASSifiED.

From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 201110:09 AM
To: ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Mann, Winston E (oRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
CC: Short, Julie A; Johnsron-Gardner, Sarah R (ORL); Atzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sha

Subject: FW:L====:::::;===:J B6

Please advise --

B5

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, TIOl (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro.senare.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM .
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Radema<:I1e< Pa
Subject:

'---------'

Mike, per,my earlier email about the killing of Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen on board the flo.tilla to Gaza
who according to the Turkish investigation was unarmed and executed, I received this email from the
Center for Constitutional Rights after I asked what success they bad had in speaking with the State Dept
about him:

"We have not received any further information from the State Department. unfortunately. As I
mentioned in February, we tried to meet with Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of

. Democracy. Hwnan Rights and Labor at that time. but his office said it was better to meet with consular
. services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again 'this visit. but despite repeated requests,

including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel), a follow up email, and 3-4 calls to his office, we never received a
response. 1bere has been some further communication with the embassy in Ankara requesting that they
seek the rerum of Furkan's property from Israel. including video evidence. but to no avail."

Also, here is a description of Furkan from CCR:

Furkan Do~an graduated from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
university entrance examination, which in Turkey is an. honor reserved for a small percentage of high school
students. Furkan planned to go to medical ~hool. He wanted to be a doctor - he always wanted to help

. people. Furkan waS kind and generous. Whenever his grandparents gave him pocket change, Furkan would
give it to people who didn't have enough to eat. .

Furkan was very fine, polite, helpful, and generous. He disliked violence his whole life. He stood by just and
modest but resisted unfairness. He was very clean and neat. He never liked violence and was never
impolite. He couldn't stand by injustice, but took the side of the oppressed and victims of violence.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q..04163 Doc No. C05904961 Date: 12130/2015
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He used to play soccer. He was a big fan of the soccer team Galatasaray. and was also a supporter of our city's
soccer team, Kayseri Sports Club. Once he applied to an amateur soccer team for a "soccer player license," but
he was rejected because of his foreign (American) nationality. He followed the NBA, attended chess
tournaments, and one of his favorite activities was swimming, which used to do all the time during our
holidays. He had recently obtained his driver license, and was really enjoying driving our car. .

Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and searching on the internet, expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show "Kelime
Oyunu" (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV, was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05904961 Date: 12/30/2015



StateDept008755

co 5 904 9621ED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163

I

Doc No. C05904962 Date: 1213012015

IRELEASE IN PARTI
85,B6 , _

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Magarian. Sharyn
Tuesday. June 07, 2011 7:49 PM
Posner. Michael H
RE::~ -o-__ 86

85

From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Thursday, June 02,201111:14 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn
Subject: Re: Prof. Cogan - lathe< of Furum

I will respond in the ~orning (and copy you)
Thanks

From: Magarian, Sharyn
Sent: Thursday, June 02,201111:04 PM
To: Posner, Michae"I.!JH'--- _
Subject: Fw:L
Hi Mike.

Thanks.

86

85

From: Short, Julie A
sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 01:29 PM
To: Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRl); Magarian, Sharyn; Ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
~W . \
Cc: Johnston·Gardner Sarah R DRl· Fi trick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniet B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE: 86

Sharyn,

_____________..----JI. 85

Thanks,
Julie REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Reviewer

./ From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27,2011 2:41 PM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; liebennan; Jessica 0 (ORl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
Cc: Short, Julie Ai Johnston-Gardner, sarah R(DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, DanielS; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re:1 I 86
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From: Mann, Winston E (ORL)
Sent: FridaY,·May 27, 20ll 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRl)j Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Smtt W
Cc: Short:. Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, sarah R(DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; 8aer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:' I B6

85

S6U
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn
sent: Friday, May 27, 201111:53 AM
To: Mann, Winston E(ORl); Posner, Michael H; Ueberman, .Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
CC: ShOrt, JUI~ Johnston-Gamner, sarah R(ORL); Fotzpatrid<, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademad1er, Paul R
Subject: RE:L- . 86

85

SBU •
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

!

From: Mann, Winston E(DRl)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:38 AM
To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott W
CC: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRL); Rtzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
MaQ<!rian, Sha'!y"~
Su6ject: RE:LL ~

A/S Posner,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201ll-04163 Doc No. C05904962 Date: 1213012015
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vi'
Winston

ssu
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:09 AM
To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, SCott w
Cc: Short. Julie A; Johnston·Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;

Magarian, Sha'Yf':n========::::::JSubject: FW: L

Please advise -.

SSU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Rademacher, Pa"ui'.lo<R~ _
Subject:C _

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

"We have not received any further infonnation from the State Department, unfortunately: As I
mentioned in February, we tried to meet with Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was bener to meet with consular
services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests,
including our initiallener (seeking a meeting and pointing out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel), a follow up email, and 3-4 calls to his office, we never received a
response. There has been some further communication with the embassy in Ankara requesting that they
seek the return ofFurkan's property from Israel, including video evidence, but to no avail."

Also, here is a description ofFurkan from CCR:

Furkan Dogan graduated from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
university entrance examination, which in Turkey is an honor reserved for a small percentage of high school
students. Furkan planned to go to medical school. He wanted to be a doctor - he always wanted to help

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F~2010-04163 Doc No. C05904962 Date: 1213012015
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
tournaments, and one of his favorite activities was swimming. which used to do all the time during our
holidays. He had recently obtained his driver license. and was re.uly enjoying driving our car.

Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and searching on the internet; expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show "Kelime
Oyunu" (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

for tlit:-summe~petween high ·~~o01.~d UJ,liverSlty,_FurkanJ~ad be~n planning ,to go t9 the U~~ed·States: .J:I~
~ted to'visit Troy,' New York, where he was born and.lived the firs,t ye~s.of his.lifer·and.he .wantei:l·.to:sp<;:nd
Hme wi~ relatives in. Ch.i.cago,:w~ere he ~as,&oing' to take·:llm~ge·classes,to ··im~ro:ve·:his'English,: which hJ
~lreadrnke guite well. ~urkan had onlY:U.S.. citizensnipJ

However. one.day he. came··home .and: h~~had ~n it. billbO~··~~vertisin& a hum~tari8I.1··")()~t ·go~g.t1

haza. He, had' seen pictUres o~ c~ildren· ~.,G~ who..'~vere ~~lled.:bY ~e::~~~dmen,t,. ii!ld~he.sPokc:~6Cth.e
philOre? 'th~re ~~ou~ enoug~ ~o. eat. He as~ed:O~~rmis~io~ to:&o: .He; ~xpl~n:~·~ ..l:j.e .~~d~.~wa~~' &C? ~
~e "UQlt~~S~~~:to stud~ EngIish,"?ut:he·C?O~Jdn·t. 8;l~ys .~o .to Gaza. to ~~ aId. t'?~~ose. ~}neef'.J~
rant.ed Wtake gifts and give them to"child~n In··Gaza.w,Ith his own~hands. He·~t~ to·.~~the t!te'same aIJ
as 'these .chiJ~n·~d -express his:oomjJasSion'!U1d sol.idarity." His mother and~l didn't. feel1ha(we~co'uld saY·n
10'·tUm -' to,his' honorable r~uest. We were:pro~·d ofFur~

\We ~,ve sin~ h~ ~at Furk.an "';'as·well~.owh ·9~~~e.M.~.i Marmt¥'Q heca~ ~e ~-~g~ '~o. belp,.ahd~
always offenng aSSistance to '?ther pa~sengers. as was his JU!ture,., When !:lehcopters.,app'rpach~d·..~~., ShlPJ
• ... "., r'~' \ ~ .. ... ,
fw:~an ~ent t(tthe_ t'o~ ~~c:~,w:~¢.,:his,cam~~~~.re~~~d ,:,~ar.~as:h~p'p~~ng,. ~y,59n~ s~<?t .five:titll;,es-·by ID.~
'sOldIers - after .he was InItially, shot and w.ounded~ we undetstand that- he'was dragged by. ·lDF soldiers 10 tlie
~ide. where he was then shot in 'the· face at dose range and kill~~ 'Fui'kan~ 18"~ oldJ

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904962 Date: 1213012015
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Posner, Michael H

Monday. June 13, 2011 4:04 PM

Short. Julie A
Fw: Following up

IRELEASE IN PART B~

-- Original Message ---
From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [::m7a"H"'to",:i~ .J
Sent: Sunday, June 12, 2011 02:58 PM
To: Posner, Michael H
Subject: Re: Following up

Ok sounds good thanks.

( Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld

-- Original Message ---

From: P.osner, Michael H Imailto:PosnerMH@state.gov]

Sent: Sunday, JUlJe 12, 2011 02:41 PM
To: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations)

Subject: Following up

Tim
I am following up belatedly to your note about the Dogan case. I have been pressing for more information and gotten
some preliminary responses, but don't feel I yet have what I need to fUlly respond to you. I am on my way to Bahrain
now, but have asked people in my office to follow up this week to get more. I will get back to you as soon as I get back­
( probably early next week)"
Sorry for the delay but I want to get this right.
Iialso am eager to follow up with you on a few unrealted matters. I will reach out to you as soon as I get back.

Hope you are doing well.

Mike

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904965 Date: 12130/2015
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ElEASE IN PART
B5,NR

From:

Sent:
To:
Subject:

To dos Friday, June 17th

Short, Julie A
Thursday, June 16, 2011 8:15 PM
Posner, Michael H
list of To Dos Friday

NR

o Call Tim Ri.eser (Julie to facilitate call)1

E :J.IL _
NR
85

EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
eviewer

Schedule tomorrow

I . UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05904967 Date: 1213012015
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From:
Sent
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Categories:
Classification:

Hi A/S Posner,

Johnston-Gardner. sarah R (DRl)
Monday. July 11. 2011 12:28 PM
Posner, Michael H; Short, Julie A
Busby, Scott W; Lieberman. Jessica 0 (ORl)
Ipm meeting with Arthur Lenk today

Working
UNClASSIFIED

We will be meetin with Arthur lenk from the Israeli MFA today at Ipm. It is a-tast minute request from the Israeli
Embassy. 85

'-- -,-__-,--" The cleared and repeated USG TP on this: "The U.s. urges
you to continue work with Turkey to improve relations which have been strained since the flotilla event last year. The
Israeli-Turkey relationship is important for security and regional stability." 85

I ~=======;------------'I . I NR

Jack Doutrich. one of the desk officers from NEA/IPA will join this meeting.

Best,

Sa"h

Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (ORL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202-647-0293

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, senior
eviewer r"
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From:
Sent:
To:

. Subject:

SMARTCategory:

Weidner, Rebecca l
Tuesday, September 06.2011 7:01 AM
DRl-Users-Dl
Fw: DRAFT Tasking list for Tuesday. Sept 6. 2011

Working

ELEASE IN PART NR,B

NON-RESPONSrvE PORTIONS
REDACTED

lots t~day.I _

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) rmai!to:HoliadayDG2@state.govl
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 06:46 AM
To; PAC Group
Subject: DRAFT TaslOng Ust for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011

From; darby holladay~
Sent: Tuesday, september 06, 20Ir00:29"A"M,,---­
To: Holladay, Darby G (PACE)
Subject: DRAFTTasldng Ust for Tuesday, sept 6, 2011

Good Morning -

Today's DPB will begin at 12:3Opm. Guidance collection will begin promptly at l1am and conclude at Noon in
the 6th Floor PA Conference Room.

Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA.PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PAIFO aI7-9606 after II a.m.)

Pending Releases (please Notify Us ASAP)
NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media"notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing. .
Media Note - NS Brimmer to Discuss US Priorities at the UN

Special Briefings and Transcripts:

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C0590S003 Date: 1213012015
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EUROPE
EURlNEAffURKEYIISRAEL: Anything new we wish to say regarding Turkey and Israel? Do we believe
Erda an's latest comments today on the flotilla are helpful?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C0590S003 Date: 1213012015
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MISCELLANEOUS
No Taskings

DGH
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject

Categories:
Classification:

2 new in EAP, 1 new in NEA

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Weidner. Rebecca l
Tuesday, September 06,2011 9:14 AM RELEASE IN PART NR,BS)
ORl-Users-DL -
FW: FINAL Tasking Ust for Tuesday, Sept S. 2011

Woric:ing
UNClASSIFIED

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
EDACTED

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto!
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 9:1 'AM...------­
To: PAD Group
'Subject: FINAL Tasking list for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011

B6

From, dartJy holladay [mailto! )
Sent: Tuesday, September 06:-,2"'o"lTl"09"'·~.1~O·AM"'----­
To: Holladay, DartJy G (PACE)
Subject: FINAL Tasking list for Tuesday, sept 6, 2011

Good Morning -:

J

Today's DPB will begin at 12:30pm. Guidance collection will begin promptly at l1am and con~lude at Noon in
the 6th Floor PA Conference Room..

Thanks,

FiNAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011
Unclassified E-maii: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7'4979f(or in the PAIFO at 7-9606 after 11 a.m·l

Pending Releases (please Notify Us ASAP)

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905004 Date: 12/30/2015
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NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.
Media Note -[L J
Special Briefings and Transcripts:

EUROPE
EURlNEAlfURKEYIlSRAEL: Anything Dew we wish to say regarding Turkey and Israel? Do we believe
Erdmzan's latest comments today on the flotilla are helpful?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905004 Date: 1213012015
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Happy Friday!
ORl has the pen on China.

Sudan, Cuba, N£A are interesting.

Weidner, Rebecca L
Friday, September 09, 2011 6:24 AM
DRl-Users-Dl
Fw: DRAFT lasking list for Friday, Sept 9, 2011

)

(RELEASE IN PART NR,B61

NON-RESPONSrvE PORTIONS
REDACTED

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE)[~
Sent: Friday, September 09,2011 06:U"AC<M.--------­
To: PAQ Group
Subje~: DRAFT Tasking Ust for Friday, Sept 9, 2011 86

From: darby holladay [maittQ~ J
sent: Friday, September 09, ,,011 06,11 M't
To: Holladay, Darby G (PACE)
Subject: DRAFT Tasking Ust for Friday, Sept 9, 2011

Good Morning-

(

Today's OPB will begin at 12:30 pm. Guidance collection will begin promptly at 11 :OOam and conclude at
Noon in the 6th Floor PA Conference Room.

Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Sept 9, 2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group· Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PAIFO at 7-9606 after II a.m.)

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

UNCLASSIFIED U.S Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905006 Date: 12/30/2015
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Special Brie,flngs and Transcripts:

EUROPE
EURITURKEY: What is our reaction to Erdogan's .statement that the Turkish Navy will escort the next Gaza
Flotilla? Is this more Erdogan rhetoric, or is this a new policy? Do we believe that this step would be helpful?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05905006 Dale: 1213012015
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IRELEASE IN PARTI ­
B5,NR

From;
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Thanks. Winston.

Busby, Scott W
Saturday, June 16. 2012 3:31 PM
Mann, Winston E(DRl); Short, Julie A; lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Posner, Michael H
Pfleger, Gregory W; Baer. Daniel B; Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M; Kincannon. John; Hickey.
Matthew B
Re: Time to talk

85

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL) \
sent: Saturday, June 16, 2012 03:11 PM
To: Short,. Julie Ai Busby, SCott Wi ueberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Posner, Michael H
Cc: Pfleger, Gregory Wi Baer, Daniel B; Rtzpatrick, Kathleen M; Kincanoon, John; Hickey, Matthew B
Subject: RE: Time to talk .

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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CONFIDENTIAL
DECL: 08/17/2021

MEMORANDUM TO:

SUBJECT:

United States Department of State

Washington, D.C 20520

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REOACTE

'August 18, 20 II

The Office of the Secretary
The Office of Deputy Secretary· Burns
The Office of Deputy Secretary Nides
The Director of U.S. Foreign Assistance
All Under Secretaries
The Connselor
All Assistant Secretaries
L - Harold H. Koh
S/CPR - Capricia P. Marshall
SIP - Jacoh J. Sullivan
All Special Representatives and Special Envoys

Briefing Materials for the President's Trip to
New York for UNGA, September 2011

10 BUREAU COORDINATOR: Dan Cintron, Ext. 7-0047

SIES-S COORDINATORS: Angela Pan, Ext. 7-8542
Nathan Macklin, Ext. 7-8879

This memorandum assigns responsibilities for the preparation of briefmg materials
for the President's trip to New York for t\le General Debate ofthe United Nations
General Assembly (UNGA), September 19 - 21,2011. .

Unless otherwise noted,·all materials should be singie-spaced using Courier New
l2-point font and fully cleared through the interagency process, as appropriate.
Bureaus that wish to suggest additions or changes to this tasker should contact the
-10 Coordinator immediately.

DEADLINES
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

Unless otherwise indicated, all materials are due, fully cieared, to 10
Coordinator Dan Cintron (Rm. 6334), no later than COB, Wednesday, August

CONFIDENTIAL
Classified by: Stephen D. Mull, Executive Secretary

E.O. 13526, Reason: 1.4 (d)

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No C05904663 Date: 1213012015
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CONFIDENTIAL
- 2 -

24, and are due to the SfE8-S Coordinators no later thau COB, Thursday,
. August 25. We strongly encourage drafters to provide papers prior to the
deadlines, if possible. .

I. SECRETARY-PRESIDENT MEMORANDUM

U. BACKGROUND PAPERS

2. ,...e.neral Assem.hhL..io

. -
CONFIDENTIAL
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3.

4.

5.

~'I6. and the palestinians jn

• UN resDOnse to the Gaza flotilla incident I I S/SEMEP

7

CONFIDENI1AL
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III. BUILDING BLOCKS FOR REMARKS

Building Blocks should be in bullet fonnat, double spaced, and should include
anecdotes and quotations. Please also attach any relevant background sources that
provide context, e.g., previous speeches by senior administration officials. recent
articles, etc. People whom the President should acknowledge at the events also
should be identified.

All building blocks should be cleared by D(B), D(N), P, SIP, PA, R, tbe clearers
noted below, others as appropriate, and, interagency clearers as needed.

2.

3.

4.

IV. SPECIFIC EVENT PAPERS

Papers for the President's specific events should include the purpose of the event
and U.S. objectives, a scenario of the event's agenda including a list ofparticipants
and an indication whether the event will be open or closed to press, background
infonnation on substantive issues, talking points (if building blocks have not been
tasked in item III), arid suggested press points for any associated press events. All

CONFIDENTIAL
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specific event papers should be cleared by D(B), D (N), P, SIP, PA, R, and
others as appropriate, as well as-interagency clearers as needed.

, -

Pa~rs for the First Ladv's s~cific events shoiJld include I

-~

CONFIDENTIAL
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V. CLEARANCES AND DOCUMENT PREPARATION

Clearan~requests should be directed to the 10 Coordinator, not to S/ES-S.
Drafters and bureau staffers share respousibility for ensuring that papers are
properly formatted, edited, spell checked, and cleared before submission to
the 10 and SfES-S coordinators. Each document must be accompanied by a
separate, labeled clearance page noting the drafter's full narne and telephone
number and listing all clearing offices and names. Any papers that mention State
operating funds require RM clearance, and all'papers that mention foreign
assistance require F clearance.

VI. DELIVERY TO SfES-S

All documents should be delivered via e-mail to the 10 Coordinator according to
the deadlines in this tasker. The 10 Coordinator should then submit a final version
via.e-mail to uPaper-SES Line Trip" on the classified system according to the
deadlines noted in this tasker.

Thank you for your assistance in this project and your special attention to the
deadlines.

Stephen D. Mull
Executive Secretary

CONFIDENTIAL
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I:\DOCS\Tasker-POTUS\2011\UNGA\POTUS UNGA tasker 20 II 0817 .doc

Drafted:

Cleared:

SIES-S:

SIES-S:
IO!UNP:
SIES:

Angela Pan, ext. 7-8542

MLibby .
DCintron
TAllegra
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SECRETINOFORN
DECL: 09/0212020

Proposed Bilateral Events

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

NR

Approve Disapprove

NR

SECRETINOFORN EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad,

CI .Ii d b 10 A - S G raid C nior Reviewer.assl e y: SSIStant ecretary e . IUCn>uU, n.dmg
E.O. 13526, Reasons: 1.4 (b) and (d)
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SECRETINOFORN
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NEA
7. (C) Meeting with Israeli Defense Minister Ehud Barak: Minister Barak has
requested a meeting with you ~ither the evening ofSeptember 20 or September 21
in New York, where he will be attending the Clinton Global Initiative Conference.
Alternatively, Barak will be in Washington Seotember 19. Your meetin" with
Barak is an opportunil)"rt",o,-,d"i",sc",u",ss,,"lIL-~________ _
the Gaze flotilla s!!iP~, I'- -i

Approve, Disapprove TBD _

SECRETINOFORN
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Approve Disapprove TBD _. _
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc
Subject

categories:
Classification:
EmbedAttach:
SensitivityCode:

Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)
Wednesday, March 09, 2011 4:56 PM
Posner, Michael, H; Cassidy, Joseph P; Sicade, lynn M (DRL); lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl);
Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M; Galindo, David R; Hickey, Matthew B
Short Julie A
FW: 10 AIS Brimmer Consults with Israeli MFA on Regional and UN$( Issues

Worting
1 UNCLASSIFIED//NOFORN

StateSeal.gif
Sensitive

Below is the cable summarizing A/S Brimmer's recent trip to Israel. It covers some of our equities particularly the HRC,
Goldstone follow-up, flotilla, and Durban.

Best,
sarah

Sensitive
This email is UNCLASSIFIEOIINOFORN.

From:
Sent:

To:

SMART Core

Wednesday, March 09, 20ll 09:18:27

Levin, Jan X

Cc:
JERUSALEM·SMARTS; USUN, SMARTS; GENEVA, SMARTS; TELAVIV·SMARTS; PMAT
(Pol-Mil Action Team)

Subject: 10 AlS Brimmer Consults with Israeli MFA on Regional and UNSC Issues

SECRET

MRN:

Oate/DTG:

From:

Action:

E.O.:
TAGS:

Subject:

EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
eviewer

11 TEL AVIV 295

Mar 09, 2011 I 090717Z MAR 11

AMEMBASSY TEL AVIV

WASHDC, SECSTATE ROUTINE

13526

PREL, PGOV, UNSC, PHUM, KPAL, KNNP, IS

10 NS Brimmer Consults with Israeli MFA on Regional and UNSC Issues

1. {el Summary: 10 Assistant Secretary Esther Brimmer conducted a day-

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05904849 Dale: 12130/2015
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long consultation on UN and Multilateral
officials in Jerusalem on March 1, 2011.

covered:

Affairs with Israeli MFA
A wide range of issues were

Ithe Mavi Marmara flotilla .

. 2. (SBUl Participants: Israeli participants were MFA.Director General
Raphael Barak, UN and International Organizations Amb. Daniel Carmon, DDG
for North America Affairs Barukh Bina and action officer Gershon Kedar,
Director for UN Political Affairs Mei+av Eilon-Shahar, Director for
International Organizations Tiber Shalev-Shlosser, Director for Human
Rights and Global Issues Orner Caspi and his Deputy Nina Ben-Ami, Director
for Non~Proliferationof Non-Conventional weapons Oren Anolik, Arthur Lenk
and Shira Meir of the International Law Department, Major Gil Limon of the
IDF International Law Department, Alon Ushpiz, appointed as Israeli
Ambassador to New Delhi, and Embassy of Israel in Washington Counselor for
Political Affairs Eliav Benjamin. U.S. participants were A!S Brimmer,
Embassy Tel Aviv Charge d'AIfaires Tom Goldberger, 10 Senior Advisor
Jonathan Katz, IOjMPR Office Director Andrew Morrison, and Jan Levin,
Embassy Tel Aviv Deputy PolCouns.

UN Security Council

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05904849 Date: 1213012015
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NR

NR

I
NR

B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

.4(B)

.4(D)
B1

ll. eC) Gaza Access: I I

, 1
If 1

I .

Human Rights

NR

•
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201~163 Doc No. C05904849 Date: 1213012015



StateDept008794

CO 5 90 48 4 9FIED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05904849 Dale: 1213012015

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. De artment of Slale Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05904849 Date: 1213012015



StateDept008795

co 5 90 48 4 9FIED u.s. Department of State Case No. F-201o-04163 Doc No. C05904849 Date: 12/3012015

Mavi Marmara and Operation Cast ~ad

NR

,
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20. (sau) 'Assistant secretary Brimmer cleared this cable.

NR

Signature:

Classified By:

Reason:

Declassify on:

Drafted By:
Cleared By:

Approved By:

Released By:
Info:

Attachments:

Action Post:

Dissemination.Rule:

Cunningham',

Robert Silverman, Political Counselor
Political section, U.S. Embassy Tel Aviv
Dept of State

1.4 (b), (d)'

2021/03/09

TEl,AvtV:levin. Jan X
BrilJlmer, Esther D.

POl:Silverman, Robert J
TEL AVlV:Levin, Jan X

JERUSALEM, AMCONSUL ROUTINE; USUN NEW YORK, USMISSIQN ROUTINE;

GENEVA, USMISSION ROUTINE

Metadata.dat

Released Copy

SECRET
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rtl::LCJo\~e IN rUL [NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTEDj

HRC Resolutions Voting Update - final
Friday, October I, 2010.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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L.B - Follow up to Fact Finding Mission (Flotilla) - resolution passed
US called vOle. JOY, IN (U.S.), 15A
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From:
Sent
To:

Cc:

Subject:

Categories:
Classification:

Bass, Warren
Monday. August 02, 20109:47 AM
'Shapiro, Daniet 8.'; ·Kumar. Prem G.'; 'Hajjar. Hagar H.'; ·Power. samantha J.'; Busby.
Scott W~ Feltman, Jeffrey 0; Walles, Jacob; Tsou. Leslie M; Doutrich, Jack T; Goldberger.
Thomas H; Posner. Michael H; Cassidy. Joseph P; Johnston-Gardner. Sarah R (DRL);
Nossel. Suzanne F; Andris. Matthew R; Honigstein. Michael 0; Koh, Harold Hongju;
Harris. Robert K; Banos. Mariano H; Garave. Katherine M
Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko. Barbara J (USUN); Ried. Curtis R(USUN); Kornblau.
Mark (USUN); Ahmed. Salman (USUN); Barks-Ruggles. Erica J
Ban announces Panel of Inquiry on flotilla incident

Warking
UNCLASSIFIED

Good news out of Ban's office this morning. (New York, take a bow.)

Warren

- Original Message -
From: Jane Gaffney <gaffney@un.org>
Sent: Man Aug 02 09:36:40 2010

Subject: UN Secretary-General Ban Ki-moon on Panel of Inquiry on flotilla incident of 31 May 2010

Secretary-General's statement on the establishment of the Panel of Inquiry on the flotilla incident of 31 May 2010

For the past two months. I have engaged in intensive consultation with the leaders of Israel and Turkey on the setting-up

of a Panel of Inquiry on the flotilla incident of 31 May. Today I am very pleased to announce the launch of the Panel. This
is an unprecedented development. .

I thank the leaders of the two countries with whom I have engaged in last minute consultations over the weekend, for
their spirit of compromise and forward looking cooperation.

The Panel will be led by eminent personalities: former Prime Minister of New Zealand, Mr. Geoffrey Palmer as Chair and

the outgoing President of Colombia, Mr. Alvaro Uribe as Vke-ehair. The Panel will have two additional members, one
each from Israel and Turkey. It will begin its work on 10 August and submit the first progress report by mid September.

I hope the Panel will fulfil its mandate based on the Presidential Statement of the security Council and with the fullest
cooperation of the relevant national authorities of the two countries. It will also give me recommendations for the
prevention of similar incidents in the future. I also hope that today's agreement will impact positively on the
relationship"between Turkey and Israel as well as the overall situation in the Middle East.

New York, 2 August 2010

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

Priority:
Goals:
Status;

Outlook:

Priority:

Goals:

Status:
Outlook:

Priority:
Goals:
Status:

Outlook:

NR

Israel
Minimize fallout fori

[FlOfilla Faet Finaing Mission (FFM)

Priority:
Goals:

Status:

Outlook:
, The Fk>tilla FFM report is delayed until 9/29.
Must be re red for resolutions extendin 'the Flotilla FFM's mandate

Priority:
Goals:
of the OHCHR.

Status:
for defeat of t

~UtlOOk:

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject

--Original Message--

Graze. Deborah E NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS

Saturday, December 11. 2010 3:55 PM .~R"E"D'CA,:,C:,T,-,E"D:c---;c_:---;c __
Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Hutchings, Jill; Posner. Michael H; Austrian, Courtney E
Re:statement Overnight Brief 12/11/-·lro3o stoning case

NR

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
To: Hutchings, Jill
To: Graze, Deborah E
To: Posner, Michael H
To: Austrian, Courtney E
Subject: Fw: Overnight Brief 12/11/-1ran stoning case
sent: Dec 11. 2010 8:28 AM

Overnight Brief
Saturday, December 11, 2010
0530 EST

ISRAEl OFFERS COMPENSATION FOR TURKISH DEATHS
(SBUI Israeli Prime Minister Netanyahu proposed paying $100,000 to each famity of the nine Turkish citizens killed
during the raid on a Gaza-bound ajd flotilla in May, in exchange for Turkish protection against lawsuits, media report.
Embassy Ankara comments wMe promising,. the proposal falls short of Turkey's demand for a formal apology. Embassy
Tel Aviv adds Israel is treading carefully to avoid being perceived as acquiescing t<? Turkish demands. (Ops/Embassy
Ankara e-mail, Ops/Embassy Tel Aviv telcon, AI Jazeera)

IRAN AIRS "CONFESSION" FROM WOMAN FACING STONING
1 -

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
eviewer
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[[ELEASE IN FULL!

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)
Wednesday, October 13, 2010 5:46 PM
DRI:-Radar
DRl-MlGA-M; lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Hawkins, Jeffrey; Hutchings, Jill
MLGA Radar· October 13. 2010

SBU: Israel: B'tselem Executive Director Jessica Montell Testifies Before the Turkel Commission and Meets with Emb.

Tel Aviv on the H~C Flotilla FFM report: In her testimony before the Turkel Commission, she criticized Israel's policies
to~ards Gaza as a "siege" and "collective punishment." She challenged the Israeli security rationale for. the naval
blockade. One of the judges responded, the only thing that Gazans "export to us are rockets." She also stated that she
wished a commission like Turkel had been created to investigate Cast lead. Turkel stated that "the people of Gala
brought this upon themselves,'" challenged the accuracy of B'tselem's reports, and their lack of criticism of Hamas. She

countered stating that "Israelis should be talking about our moral responsibility as Israelis." Jessica told Emb. Tel Aviv
that she was disturbed that the Commission members had made up their minds before speaking to her, and exhibited
the same old rhetoric. JessiCa acknowledged to Emb. Tel A~iv that the legal argu'ments of the HRC Flotilla FFM report
were extremely poor. She considered the report "intellectually lazy," and the FFM called Gala "occupied," which was a
very complex conclusion. Under that logic, if Gala were occupied, then it was indeed Israel's respOnsibility to control
everything coming in and out. It was unreasonable for the report to criticize both the "occupation" and the naval

blockade. (MlGA-S Johnston-Gardner.)

Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor tORt)

Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad. Senior
Reviewer
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RELEASE IN FUFrom:
sent:
To:
Subject:

Donahoe. Eileen C
Tuesday. September 28. 2010 2:52 PM
Posner. Mkhael H
Re: Draft points for AIS Gordon- 8um a Koran Day

As of this moment - looks like Flotilla will go to vote tomorrow· because EU - Tul1l.ish negotiations at an impasse. EU will
abstain. Tomaschat also tomorrow.

From: Posner, Michael H
To: Donahoe, Eileen C
sent: Tue Sep 2814:40:192010
Subject: RE: Draft points for A/S Gordon- Burn a Koran Day

INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTEDI

Thanks - please keep me in the loop on this and the various middle east resolutions

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewe
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United States Department of State

Washington, D.C. 20510

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED July 16,2010

INFORMATION MEMO FOR DRL ASSISTANT SECRETARY POSNER,
DASes, AND OFFICE DIRECTORS

FROM: DRLlMLGA - Joseph P. Cassidy

SUBJECT: Implications for DRL of Key Actions at the U.N. Human Rights
Council June Session

Below is a summary of the most important resolutions and actions adopted
at the June session ofthe U.N. Human Rights Council (HRC) and their
implications for DRL.

Resolutions!Actions with Significant Impact

• Israel flotilla: The HRC voted to establish an independent fact fmding mission
(the "Mission") to look into "violations of international law... resulting from
the Israeli attacks on the flotilla of ships carrying humanitarian assistance." The
U.S. voted no and delivered an Explanation of Vote. At this point, it appears
that the mission will consist of Sir Desmond Lorenz de Silva, a prominent
British lawyer and former United Nations Chief War Crimes Prosecutor in
Sierra Leone, Mary Shanthi Dairiam, a Malaysian member of the CEDAW
Committee from 2005-2008 and a member of the UNDP Gender Equality Task
Force, as well as a yet-to-be-named chair. High Commissioner Pillay has
removed South African lawyer Ahmed Motola as coordinator of the mission
and replaced him with Simon Walker, who was described as a "straight arrow"
by an OHCHR contact. The Mission's report is due at the September session.
The GO! has not decided whether to engage with the HRC panel.

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

I
RE~IEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, SeniorI
ReViewer
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Approved: DRL Deputy'Assistant Secretary Kathleen Fitzpatrick
Drafted: DRLIMLGA - Marian D. Messing, ext. 7-4613

P:\MLGAIUnited NationslHRC\20 IOVune 14th Sessionl0716I 0 Looking forward
on HRC resolutions.docx

Cleared:
DRLlMLGA: MYetken ok
IOIHR: PKruchoski, MAndris, and CNeville ok
LIHRR: EAswad ok
DRLIMLGA: LSicade ok
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REVIEW AUTHORITY; Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Galindo. David R

~O~day, October 94. 2010 3:00 P~NON.RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTEDj

DRl-Radar; DRl-MlGA-M
Final Outcome of HRC 15

I am sending this to U/5 Otero per her request to DRl PDAS Deborah Graze at last Wednesday's G family meeting.

Other Voting OutcomeS
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Explanation of U.S. Vote on Human Rights Council Resolution Related
to the Report of the Fact-Finding Mission pursuant to Resolution 14/1

UN Human Rights Council,. J5'" Session
Geneva, September 29, 2010

IRELEASE IN FULl]

Thank you, Mr. President.

As we consider this item we are mindful of our deep regret for the

loss oflife and injuries suffered among those involved in the incident

aboard the Gaza-bound ships in late May of this year. In June, we noted

the importance of a credible, impartial, and transparent investigation into

these tragic events. We continue to hold that view and believe we must

resist the tendency to reach conclusi~ns without the opportunity for a

full examination of the facts and perspectives from all. sides. We

commend the Secretary General's constructive initiative in convening a

panel that will receive and review the results ofIsrael and Turkey's

,. investigations, and we welcome the spirit of cooperation that it

represents. We continue to regard this panel as the primary method for

the international community to review the incident. We again express

our appreciation to the Secretary General for his efforts to establish this

panel, and to the governments of Turkey and Israel for their constructive

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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participatiori. We note that the Fact-Finding Mission Report referred to

these ongoing processes, and did not recommend further UN action.

The United States remains deeply concerned by the suffering of

civilians in Gaza. We continue to believe the situation in Gaza is

unsustainable and is not in the interest of any of those concerned. As we

have.pointed out in the past, mechanisms are in place for the transfer of

humanitarian assistance to Gaza. These mechanisms should be the ones

used for the benefit of all those in Gaza. We commend recent steps

taken to expand access to goods in Gaza and will continue to engage the

Israelis on a daily basis to expand the scope and type of goods allowed

into Gaza to address the full range of the population's humanitarian and

recovery needs. We will continue to work closely with the Government

ofIsrael and the Palestinian Authority, along with international NGOs

and the UN, to provide adequate access, for humanitarian goods,

. "including reconstruction materials, "through the border crossings, while

bearing in mind the Government ofIsrael's legitin1ate security .

concerns.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905388 Date: 1213112015
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This inci.dent underscores the needs to move ahead quickly with
,

negotiati9ns that can leadto a comprehensive Arab-Israeli peace. Direct

talks between Israelis and Palestinians have been resumed, and all

parties should help create an environment conducive to progress in these

talks. We should all be working to advance the cause ofpeace.

The United States was opposed to Resolution 14/1, which handed

this Fact-Finding Mission a flawed mandate-something the Mission

itself acknowledged in its report. We also oppose the current

resolution's recommendation that the General Assembly consider the

Fact-Finding Mission Report.

For all these reasons, we have voted against the resolution.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Slate Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905388 Date: 12131/2015
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From:
Sent:
To;

Cc:
Subject:

Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M
Thursday, July 22, 2010 1:59 PM .
Donahoe, Eileen C; Geneva HRC; IO·HR·DL; DRl·MlGA-M; legal-HRR-Dl; Griffiths,

. Douglas M; Nassel, Suzanne F; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman. Jessica 0 (DRl);

Johnstone, Kari A (DRL)
Graze, Deborah E
RE: HRC Flotilla FF members

Eileen - thanks. looping in Mike Posner and DRl team that works Middle East regional issues including Israel.

-Original Message­
From: Donahoe. Eileen C
sent: Thursday, July 22. 2010 1:20 PM
To: Geneva HRC; IO-HR-Ol; DRl-MlGA~M; legaJ·HRR·OL; Griffiths, Douglas M; Nassel, Suzanne F; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Subject: HRC Flotilla FF members .

Will be announced Friday afternoon Geneva time

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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From:
Sent:
To:

. C(:

Subject:

Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)
Thursday, October 14, 2010 5:39 PM
DRL-Radar
DRl-MLGA-M; lieberman. Jessica 0 (ORl); Hawkins, Jeffrey; Hutchings, Jill
MLGA Radar item· November 14,2010

(U) Flotilla Complaint Filed at the ICC: Today Turkish lawyers. on behalf of the families of the nine Turkish citizens killed
in the May 31 flotilla incident, submitted a complaint with the ICC Prosecutor to seek prosecutions of Israeli soldiers for

war crimes. The father of the Arndt killed (Furkan Dogan) was present at the ICC today and spoke in favor of
international accountability. Neither Turkey nor Israel are party to the Rome Statute, therefore the issue would have to
go before the UNSC. (The Turkish lawyers are arguing that the ship is under ICC jurisdiction because the ship flew the
flag of the Comoros Islands which is a party to the Rome Statute. We are working to confirm.) It is highly unlikely that
the Prosecutor would take the case due to the relatively small number of victims (the gravity issue) and
complementarity principles. Turkey has not yet voiced support for the ICC complaint, and may not due to their own,
separate concerns about the ICC. MlGA cleared on press guidance and entered language reiterating the importance of
domestic investigations and noting that Israel's investigation is ongoing. (MlGA - 5 Johnston-Gardner, 7-2286)

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer~

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (DRl)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202·647-2286
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Classification:

Austrian, Courtney E

Wednesday. September 22. 2010 8:17 AM
DRl~Users-DL
FW: DRAFT Tasking list for Wednesday, Sept. 22, 2010

UNCLASSIFIED
INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTED]

From: Schlachter, Mark M (mailto:SchlachtMM@state.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 8:11 AM
T'o: Holladay, Darby G; PAO Group
Subject: RE: DRAFT Tasking list for Wednesday, 'Sept. 22, 2010

NR

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Holladay, Darby G[mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gOv]
sent: Wednesday, September 22, 20107:09 AM
To: PAD Group
Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Wednesday, Sept. 22, 2010

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. CD5905370 Date: 12/31/2015
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07ISRAEL: What IS our response to the UN Human RJgnts LOUncH statement tn81lOe Israeli ana
Palestinian inquiries into the Gaza flotilla incident are inadequate?
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From:

Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Friday, July 09, 2010 7:35 PM
Messing, rvlarian; Posner. Michael H
Graze, Deborah E; 83er, Daniel B; Cassidy, Joseph P; Stanfield, Emily; Johnston~Gardner.
Sarah R (ORl); O'Connor, Daniel B(DRl); Krill, Alan; Miller, Matthew G
RE: MlGA Radar- July 9

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

Also. we participated in a DVC with EU colleagues in Brussels sharing views on the upcoming HRC as the EU prepares for
its July 19 human rights committee meeting.

From: Messing, Marian
Sent: Friday, July 09, 2010 7:14 PM
To: Posner, Michael H
.Cc: Graze, Deborah E: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Cassidy, Joseph P; Stanfield, Emily; Johnston-:Gardner,
sarah R (DRL); OlConnor, Daniel B (DRL); Krill, Alan; Miller, Matthew G
Subject: MLGA Radar- July 9

Assistant Secretary Posne.... EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

The MLGA Radar for today is attached and also copied below.

Thanks,
Marian

(SBU) Human Rights Council Flotilla Committee: The OHCHR will publically announce
the details of the Committee on Monday, but Geneva has learned that the chair of the HRC
Flotilla Committee is Sir Desmond Lorenz de Silva. He is a prominent British lawyer and
fonner United Nations Chief War Crimes Prosecutor in Sierra leone. The two other members are Dino
Kirtsiotis, a Zimbabwean lawyer and law professor with IHL experience involved in ICRC

.. educational programs, and Mary Shanthi Dairiam, a Malaysian member of the CEDAW
Committee from 2005-2008. She is also a member ofibe UNDP Gender Equality Task
Force. The Committee must report its findings in the Sep1ember HRC session. According to
the June HRC resolution. its mandate is'Uto investigate violations ofintemationallaw. including
international humanitarian and human rights law, resulting from the Israeli attacks on the flotilla
of ships carrying humanitarian assistance."
r------------------------------, NR
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Dislf.: General
14 April 2010

Original: English

United Nations

(8General Assembly
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EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
eviewer

Human Rigbts Council
nir1«e.tl sasioa
Agenda ilCm 1
Humin ricbtl lituatNtn in P.ltstiu
lAd olber knpn Arab krrit.ria

Resolution adopted by the Human Rights Council'

13/9
Follow-up to the report oftbe United Nations Independent
International Fact-Finding Mission on tbe Gaza ConOict

The Hll./nan Rights Council,

R~cQJ/i1fg its rclevant resolutions, including resolution SoWI, adopted on 12 Janua:y
2009. and resolution S-12J1, adopred on 16 October 2010, in follow-up to the human rights
situation in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem, and the rqKXt of
the United Nations Indc:pcndo1llnttmBIionai Fact-Finding Mission on the GIlZll Conflict,·

&caJling also relevant General Assembly resolutions, including resolution 64/10,
adopted on 5 November 2009, and resolution 64I2S4, adopted on 26 February 2010, in
follow-up to the report of the Fact-Finding Mi~ion,

R~caJ/jng further the relevant rules and principles of international law, including
intcm8tional humanitarian and human rights law, in plll'ticular the Geneva Convention
relative to the Protection of Civilian Persons in Time of War, orJ2 August 1949, which is
applicable to the Occupied Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem,

R«a/ling the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and other international human
rights illStruments., including the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, the
International Covenant on Economic, Social and OJhu~ Rights and the Convention on the
Rights ofthe OIild,

R~afflTming the obligation of all parties to respect inlemll!ional humanitarian law
and international human rights law,

Rdl~ra(ing the importance of the safety and well-being of all civilians, and
reaffirming the obligation 10 eflSlJfe the protec1ion of civilians in anned conflict,,

• The rnol\ltion$ mel decisions ofthc Hwnao Ripus Council will be contained Il1Ibe repon ofthe

COUDci1 oe its thirtecnIb. session {AlHRCJIJlS6),~. I.

GE.l()...12&38 ...........@
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AlfIRClRESlI319

SJressing the need to ensure accountability for all violations of international
humanitarian law and international human rights law in order to prevent impunity, ensure
justice, deter further violations and promote peace.

Corrvint:ed thai achieving a just, lasting and comprehensive settlement of the
question of Palestine, lhe core of the Arab-Israeli oonflict, is imperative for the attainment
ofcomprehcnsive,ju.st and lasting peace and stabili,ly in the Middle Ea.'H,

i. Takes notc of the report of the Secretary-General (A/64/651), submitted
pursuant to paragraph 6 ofGencral Assembly resolution 64/1 0;

2. Welcome1 the report orlhe Secretary-General on the status ofimplemcnlation
of paragraph) of seclion B of Council resolution 5-1211 (AlHRClI3/S5);

3. Also welcomes the report of the United Nations High Commissioner for
Human Rights on the implemem8tion of Council resolutKms S-9/1 and S-12J1
(AlHRCJIJ/54) and endorses the: recommendations contained therein;

4. Also re;teraJes its call upon all concerned parties. including United NalioN
bodies, to ensure their implementation of the recommendations contained in the report of
the United Nations Independent International Fact-Finding Mission QIl the Gaza Conflict, in
accordaoce with their respective man<!atei;

5. Further reiterales the call by the General Assembly upon the Government of
Israel to conduct investigations that are independent, credible and in conformity with
international standards into the serious violatic;lT1s of international humanitarian and
international human rights law reported by the Fact-Finding Mission, with a view to
ensuring accountability andjustice;

6. Reiterates the urging by the General Assembly for the conduct by the
Palestinian side of investigations that are independent, credible and in conformily with
intemalional standards into the serious violations of international humanitarian and
international human rights law reported by the Fact-Finding Mission, with a view to
ensuring II{;countability and justice;

7. Welcomes the recommendation made by the General' Assembly to the
Government of Switzerland, in its capacity as depositary of the Geneva Convention relative
10 the Protection of Civilian Persons in lime of War, to reconvene, as soon as possible, a
conference of High·Contracting Parties to the Fourth Geneva Convention on measures to
enforce the Convention in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem,
and to ensure its respect in accordance with common article I, bearing in mind the
statement adopted on 15 July 1999 as well as the reconvening of the conference and the
declaration adopted on 5 December 2001, and recommends that the Government of
Switzerland reconvene the above·mentioned conference before the end of20 10;

8, Calls upon the tiigh Commissioner to explore and determine the appropriate
modalities fur the establishment of an escrow fund for Ihe provision of reparations 10 the
Palestinians who suffered lOss and damage as a resull of unlawful acts attributable 10 the
State of Israel during the military operations conducted from December 2008 to Januiuy
2009;

9. Decides, in the context of the follow.up to the report of the Independent
International Fact-Finding Mission, to establish a committee of independent experts in
international humanitarian and human rights laws to monitor and assess any domestic, legal
or Q{hef proceedings undertaken by both the Government of Israel and the Palestinian side,
in the light of General Assembly resolution 641254, including the independence,
effectiveness, genuineness of these investigations and their conformity with international
s~d~; ,

.2
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AIH RClRESlI JIt

10. Rrquem the High Commissiona 10 appoint the mcmbcn of the commi[Iee of
independent expcns and 10 provide them with a1llhc Bdministralive, Iccfmica! and logi51ie
assistance required 10 enable them 10 fulfil their mandate promptly and efficiently;

II. ReqWBts the Secrewy-Gencrallo transmit all the information submincd by
the Government orIsrael and the Palestinian side pursuant to paragraphs 2 and 1 of General
Assembly resolution 641254 to the committee ofindepcndcnt experts;

12. ReqlH:sts the committee of independent experts 10 pn:scnl its report 10 the
Council at its fifteenth session;

13. Calls upon the General Assembly to promote an urgent discussion on the
future legality of the'use of certain munitions as refcnt:d to in the report of the United
Nalions lndepcndcnl InlcnWionaI Fact-Finding MiS.llion on the Gaza conflict, drawing,
iota alia, on the expertise arttle International Committee orttle Red Cross;

14. R~U the Sccn:tary-Gcneral 10 present • comprehensive report on the
progress made in the implementation ohhe recommendations of the Fact.Findifl& Mission
by all COIICCi,itd panics, including United Nations bodies, in accordance with pan1lgT'IPI\ )
of section Bof resolution 5-12/1, 10 the Council at its fifteenth session;

. 15. Requests the High Commissioner to presenl a report on the: implcmentation
oflht present resolution 10 the Council aI its fiflccnlh session:

16. Also requests Ihc High Commissioner to submit to thc Council, al its
founeenth session, a progress report on Ihc implcmentalion ofthc present resolution:

17. Decides to follow up on the implementalion of the pl't$tflt resolution 81 its
Ii f\eenth session.

41nd rrwlmg
~ 15 MorcA 1010

[Adopcod by a rc:cordtd voce of2910 6, wilh 11 absttsltions. The voting was as follows:

Infavour.
Angola, Argentina, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Boliyia (Plurinational SllUc of),
Bosnia and Henqovina, 8razi~ China, Cuba, Djibouti, Egypt, Ghana, India,
Indonesia, Jordan, KyrgyZ3tan, Mauritius, Nicaragua, Nigeria, Pakistan.
Philippines, Qatar, Russian Federation, Saudi Arabia, Senegal, Sloyenia,
South Afiica, Uruguay, Zambia; .

Agairut:
Hungary, Italy, Nethcrlands, Sloyakia; Ukraine, United States ofAmerica;

AlmainIng:
Belgium, Burlcina Faso, Cameroon, Chile, France, JaplIl1, Madagascar,
Mexic:o, Norway, Republk: of Korea, United Kingdom of Great Briwn and
Northern Irdand.}

J
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Report of the international fact-finding mission to investigate
violations of international law, including international
humanitarian and buman rights law, resulting from tbe
Israeli attacks on tbe flotilla of sbips carrying bumanitarian
assistance·

Summary

This repon was prepared by the fact-finding mission established by the Human
Rights Council in resolution NHRClRESlI4/1 on June 2010 to investigate violations of
intemalionallaw, including international humanitarian law and human rights law, resulling
from the interception by Israeli forces of the humanitarian aid flolilla bound for Gaza on 31
May 2010 during which nine people were killed and many others injured.

The rc:pon sets out background infonn.lUion relating to the interceptkln of the flotilla
as well as the applicable intcrnatklnallaw.

The fact-finding mission conducted inlerviews with more than 100 wilnCS5c:S in
Geneva, London, Istanbul and Amman. On the basis of this testimony and other
infolTll8tion received, the Mission was able to reconstruct a picrure of the circumstances
surrounding the interception on 31 May 2010 and its aftelTllath. The report presents a
faclual description of the evenlS leading up to the int,eroeption, the interception of each of
the six ships in the flotilla as well as a seventh ship subsequently intercepted on 6 June
2010, Inc deaths of nine passenge~ and wounding of many others and the detention of
passengCB in Israel and their deportation.

The repon contains a legal analysis of faclS as determined by Ihe Mission with a
view to 'de{ennining whether yiolations of international law, incruding inttmlUional
humanitarian and human rights law, took place.

The fact-finding mission concluded that a series of yiolations of intemational 18W,
including international humanitarian and human rights law, were committed by the Israeli

• LIte submission.
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

GE.

eviewer=='-----------'....-_@
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forces during mein[~ oflne flotilla and duringlhc detention of passmgm in Israel
prior 10 deporwion. .

,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 1213112015



StateDept008835

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Departmenl of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 1213112015

AlHRClI5I21

Contents

ParagropJu PQ~

Introduction .

A. Mandate : .

B. Methodology : .

II. Bacl::ground : .

A. Conlext .

B. Applicable law .................................•...........................................•..................

III. Interception ofthe flolilla by lhe: Israeli navy and its aRennalh .

A. Organisalion of tile Gaza flotilla and the response of the Israeli government

B. The interception of the Gaza flotilla by the Israeli Navy on 31 May 2010 .

C. Detention of flotilla passengers in ISliIeI and deportation .

D. Confiscation and Return of Property by the Israeli authorities ..

E. Consequences for Israeli Citizens ofpanicipation in the Flotilla .

IV.

V.

Annexes

Accountability and effective remedy .

Conclusions

l. HRC Resolution 14/1

II. TOR's of'the fact-finding mission

Ill. Com::spondence between the fact·finding mission and the Permanent Mission of Israel
before the United Nations and Specialized in Geneva

IV. Table ofships in the flotilla

J

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201D-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/3112015



StateDept008836

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 1213112015

AIHRC/I5/21

l. Introduction

A. Mandate

1. On 21une 2010 the Human Rights Council, by resolution 14/1, decided ''to dispatch
an independent international fact-finding mission to investigate yiolations of.international
law, including international humanitarian Jaw and human rights law, resulting from the
Israeli attacks 'on the notilla of ships carrying humanitarian assistance" to Gaza. The same
resolution authorized the President ofrhe Council to appoint the mcmbe~ of this Mission
and called for the independent international fact-finding mission, he~inafl:cr called "the­
Mission",IO report its findings to the fifl:eenth session of the CounciL'

'2. Seven weeks laler, on 23 July 2010, the President of the Human Rights Council
appointed Judge Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, Q.C., retired Judge of the Internalional Criminal
Court and fonner Attorney General of Trinidad and Tobago,to be Chairman and to head
the Mission. The other appointed members were Sir 'Desmond de Silya, Q.C. of me United
Kingdom, fonner Chief Prosecutor of the United Nations-backed Special Court for Sierra
Leone and Ms. Mary Shanmi Dairiam of Malaysia, fouoding member of the Board of
Directors of the Intematianal Women's Rights Action Watch Asia Pacific and former
member of the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women.

3. In accordance with common PfllCtice, the Office of the United Nations High
Commissioner Jar Human Rights (OHCHR) established a secretariat to suppoit the
Mission, The exp.crts were also assisted by .external specialists in forensic pathology,
military issues, firearms, the law ofthe sea and international humanitarian law.

4. The Mission considCTed that its task ,was, directed to investigating the facts and
eircumstances sUrTO\lnding the boarding by Israeli military personnel of a flotilla of ships .
bound for Gaza and to determine whether in the process violations occurred of international
law, including international humanitarian and human rights law.

5. The Resolution in terms directed an inycstigation of 'violations' of international law,
international humanitarian and human rights law, resulting from the Israeli 'attacks' on the
110tilla carrying humanitarian assistance. This appeared to determine that "violations" of
international law, including international humanitarian and human rights law had in fact
occurred prior to any inyesriglllion. The Resolution also appeared to find lIS a fact that there
were Israeli "!'ttaeks" on me flotilla of ships and that the ships were canying humanitarian
assistance. '

6. The Mission did not interpret its task as proceeding on any such assumptions. It
could not be determined what the position was until the Mission came to its ronclusion on
the facts, The same can be said of the alleged actions by the Israeli forces.

7. It was nOt generally contested that there WllS an interception by Israeli forces of a
flotilla of ships and that the ships were carrying cargos of a humanitarian nature. That apart,
the Missiooconsiden:d thai its mandate required it to ascertain the sequence orlhe facts and
events as they occurred and to examine the reasons aod justification in law, if any, for the,......
8, 1lIe Mission convened in Gene~a to officially commence its work on 9 August
20 IO. Shortly prior thereto, on 2 August 2010, the Secretary-General of the United Nations
Ilttnounced "the sening-up of II Panel of Inquiry on the ,l1olilla incident of 31 May". lhe

The rt:SOlUlion wa$·.oopled by. r«orded VOle of32 10 J, willi 9 .bslentions. See AlHRCI RES1I4/1 .

•
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Secretary-General, without indicating what specific area of inquiry the Panel was to
undertake, expressed the hope that the panel "will fulfil its mandale based on the
Presidential Statement of the Securi'ty Council". .

9. . The Panel of Inquiry was given the mandate to receive and review the reports of the
national inveStigations with the view to recommending ways of avoiding similar incidents
in the future".l

10. Both brael and Turkey announced the setting-up of national inquiries, on. 15 July
2010 10 August 2010 respeClively.

II. In the opinion of the Mission, the remit of the Panel appointed by the Secretary
General is quite different and distinet from that of the Mission as it ultimate goal is to
"positively affect the relationship between Turkey and [srael, as well as the overall situation
in the Middle East.,,)

12. At the time of writing this report, the Mission was made aware of sillings of the
Israeli inquiry under Judge Turkel.' Both from the intemet and other SOtJm::s, the Mission
was able 10 secure transcripts of some of the evidence given by witness to that enquiry. It
appcan that evidence was gi~en partly in elosed sessions, the transcripts of which have no!

been made available to the Mission. As far lIS the Mission is aware, the inquiry announced
by the Government of Turkey submitted a preliminary report to the Se<:retary-General's
Panel on , Scptember2010. .

13. The Mission decided that its task fCl:luired it to seek the cooperation of as wide a
cross $Cction of relevant interests as possible and in particular that of the Governments of
Turkey and Israel. The Mission was greatly assisted by having diSCUS.'lions in Geneva with
the Permanent RepreSCllIaTives of Israel, Jordan, Turkey, The United Kingdom and the
United Slates of America, as well as with the Permanent Observer Mission of Palestine to
lhe United Natiol15.

14. The Mission wishes to place on record its RpIXcciation for the assistance provided by
the Governments of Turkey and Jordan in facilitating its visit to Istanbul, Ankara and
Amman and providing pertinent and relevant information in the ease of Turkey at an

. offr<:ialleve1.

1S. The Mission also wishes to thank the Office of the United Nations Resident
Coordinators and the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) in Ankara and
Amman for the cooperation provided. Particular mention is also to be made: of the
collaboruion provided by the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs (OCHA)
in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for
Palesline Refugees in the Ncar East (UNRWA) and the Office of the Special Coordinator
for the Middle East Peace Process (UNSCO) for briefing the Miss!on on the'situaTion in the
Gaza Strip.

16. The Mission expresses its profound regrel that, notwithstanding a moSl cordial
meeting on the 18 August 2010, the Permanent Represcotative of Israel advised in writing
at the end of the meeting that the position of his govemment was one of non-recognition of
and non-cooperation wilh Ihe Mission. In the hope that this position would change before

l Oaily prtS$ briefing by the Office orthe Spokesperson fur tile Secretary-General. 02 AugLlSl 2010.
http·/Iwww.un.orglNewslbridingsldocsl20101dblOO802.docJltm.

l Ibid.
• See COfT'eSpondcm;e between the MISSion and the ISl"llCli Pennlncnt Mission on IllIieXcs.

,
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the conclusion of its work. the Mission left with the Pcrmlll1ent Representative a list of
requests for in(ormation.'

17. Not having heard from the Permanent Representative of Israel, by lener ~ted 7
September 2010, the: Mission wrote to Ihe Permanenl Representalivc: renewing its request
for information. The Permanent Representative replied by Iener dated the IJ September
2010 requ~ing the Mission to delay delivering its report 10 the Council on the ground that
it should await the report of the Commission under Judge Turkel in Israel and the Paocl
appoimed by the Secretary-General of the United Nalions. The Mission replied advising the
Permanent Representative: that the request should be made 10 the Council. Regrenably to
dale. no information has been given 10 the Mission by or on behalf of the Govcmmenl of
Isroel.

B. Methodology'

18. Following its omcial establishment, the Mission redrafted its Tc:rms of Reference so
as to reflect its approach 10 the mandate given. The Mission then established its working
methodology, including the criteria to select witnesses that participated in the flotilla.

19. Different sources of information were made available to the Mission, including the
evidence of eye witnesses, forensic reports and interviews with medical and forensic
personnel in Turkey, as well as wrinen statements, video film footage and other
photographie malaial relating 10 the incident.

20. In asccrtaining the facts surrounding the Israeli intercepfion of the Gaza·bound
flotilla, the Mission gave particular weight to the direct evidence received from intenoiews
with eye witnesses and CltW, as well as the forensic evidence and interviews with
government officials. In light of seiwre of cameras, ccrv footage and digital media
storage devices and ofthe suppression of thaI material with the disclosure only of a selected
Md minute quantity of it, the Mission was obliged to treat with extreme caution the
versions released by the Israeli authorities where tnose versions did not coincide with the
evidence ofeyewitnesses who appeared before us.

21. Taking into amsideraIion the resources and limited time available, the Mission
travelled to Istanbul, Ankara and Iskenderun in Turkey, Amman in Jordan and London in
the United Kingdom in order to inlenoiew witnesses. hold meetings with government
officials and to conduct an inspection of the ship Mavi Marinara, in which nine passengers
died on 31 Mil)' 2010. The Mission was able to contact scvCl1l1 penons with information
bearing Of] the mallers under enquiry. A total of one hundred and tWelve witnesses' were
interviewed by the Mission either by all of its members at the same lime or by individual
members. In addition wrillen statements were: reoeived from several persons through their
aTtorneys.

22. The Mission wishes to record its appreciation for the assistance given by various
firms of auomeys for facilitating the appearancc before it of persons involved in the
incident' and represented by them. Meetings wert. also held with different non­
governmental organizations in Geneva, Istanbul and A~man.

SeeIlllTlCJle5.

Witnesses wen: interviewed at lilt following Ioc:&lioni: London; (;cneVJ; ISlanblll; Ammllll. The
Mission is gr1IlefullO the InlernatlOMl Maritime Organil&lion for ilS assisuulc:c in providing a YClIl)t

for the ,nlerviews in LonOon. .
l.aw firms in London, lstllllbul, and Athens assislOd!he MiSilIOn.

,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12131/2015



StateDept008839

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

A/HRCJISf21

23. The Mission is of the opinion that evidence of a sufficient number and range of
witndlStS was taken (0 afford it a comprehensive piclure of the events as they occurred on
the 31 May 2010. In addition 10 the information received live from persons attending on it,
the Mission took into considCf31ion information from a vanely of sources subject to
verification ofauthenticity.

24. In assessing the evidence and infonnation available 10 it, the: Mission paid pw1icular
attention 10 the conlent ofihe evidence and demeanour of the persons appearing before it in
~iding whether and if so whal pan of the infonnation provided should be accepted. More
weight of necZssily was accorded to such evidence if believed than 10 information from
other sources.. In addition, with ~pect 10 infonnation in the nature of hearsay evidence,
due regard was paid, giving to it such weight as lhe circumstances merited. Matters were
decided on the basis oflhe preponderance and'quality oflhe evidence so as to satisfy all the
members of the Mission in order that the)' felt sure of their conclusions.

25. In Ihe preparation of the report, (he Mission first of all reviewed the fltCt.ual
contextual background oflne incident and came 10 its conclusions on the facts which are set
out in this report. The Mission expressed its opinion on the relevant principles of
international law, including international humanitarian and human righlS law on the basis of
me fuelS it found. A segmented approach is taken to the analysis. .

II. Background

A. Context

J. The blockade ohhe Gaza Strip

Pn.uisflng res/rlct/orlS ofmorltime access /0 the Gazo Strip

26. Israel implemented a complete military occupation of the Gaza Strip from June 1967
until its first disengagement from partS of the Gaza Strip from May 1994 as pan of the
peace process. A series of peace agrecmenlS between 1993 and 1995 concluded between
the State of !sruel and the Palestinian Libenuion O~anitation with inlernational backing
were intended, within a transitional period of five ycars..10 regulate [sruel's disengagement
from the Wcst Bank and Gaza Strip reading up to the conclusion of a permanent status
agreement which would establish an independent Palcstinian stale alongside Israel. These
agreements. often collectively referred to as the Oslo Accords, provided the basis for,
amongst other maners, the tsillblishment of the Palestinian AUlhorily and Council and put
in place interim ammgemenlS for security cooperution between the Isrueli and Palestinian
police, including the policing of borders and maritime and air space.

27. Under the Oslo Accords, it was agreed that the territorial waters off Gaza would be
included in the territorial jurisdiclion of the Palestinian Authority (PA).· However, lhe
external security of the Gaza Strip was specifically excluded from the PA's functional
jurisdiction;' responsibility of external securily was retained by Is~1 until the final stalUS
agreement:o Article VIII 'of the Gaza.Jericho Agreement specifically staled that "Israel will
continUe to carry Ihe responsibilily ... for defence against external threats from the sea and
the air (...J and will have all the powers to take the steps necessary to meet this
responsibilily." 10e agreed security Il/TllIlgemenlS and coordination mechanisms eStablishes

Article 5. paR. I(a). GaUl-Jericho Agreemenl
, Article 5. pan. l(b). Ga.za.Jeric:ho Agreement

I' Article~.para. J, Gua-Jerlcho Agreemenl.
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three maritim~ ltCIivity :zones: a central zone pctending twenty nautical miles OUt to sea..
bounded by lwo one-nautical mile wide Slrips of water at the Egyptian end and Israeli end
of the Gua Strip, both of which art: closed milillUy areas under Israeli oontrol. The central
zone. under joinl Palestinian-Israeli oontrol, was designated as open for fishing up to the
twenty nautical miles limit lind recreational boalS up to three nautical miles. Foreign vessels
entering the central zone were not allowed to approach closer than twenly nautical miles
from the ooast pending agreement on construction of a sea port for Gau. Even lhough there
was a breakdown in security cooperation between Israelis and Palestinians in lhe West
Bank and Gaza Strip following the breakdo"!n of bilaleral peace negotiations in 2002,
significant aspectS oflhe Oslo Accords remain in fon:e, including provisions related 10 the
territorial wateD offGaza.

28. During the 1990$, following the contours of the ~ce negotiations, Israeli forces
imposed periodic "closures" of the Palestinian areas, usually in response to suicide
bombings inside Israel. These closures would lasl for a mailer of weeks or months. Prior to
the first peace accords, it was estimated Ihat as many as 20,000 Gazans left the Strip each
day to work inside Israel, returning each evening. Closures impacted on the many families
dependent on the wages earned by these workers. . .

&s/ric/iom imposed on Gazofo/lowiflg Hamas' election "ictory

29. Since the beginning of the Second Intifada in 2000, a progressive restriction of the
access for Gaza fishermen to the sea has taken place. According to OCHA the latest
expansion of Ihe restricted sea llI"C85 can be dated to late 2008, on the eve of the "Cast
Lead" offensive. ll Along most of Gaza's coast, the restricted areas begin al three nautical
miles from shore. Overall, OCHA states that Palestinians are barred access to 85 percenlof
the sea areas on which they are enlitled to cany oUI maritime ltCIivilies and thaI Paleslinian
fishermen entering me restricted sea areas are regularly exposed to warning fire by Israeli
naval forces and in some cases, directly targeted and that fishing boats are often intercepted
by lhe Isnteli military lind confiscated.

30. Economic and political measures started to be imposed against Ihe Gaza Strip in
February 2006 following the Hamas election victory in the legislative elections,
accompanied by lhe withholding of financial resources on the pari of donor countries, 1lte
closure on the Gaza Strip was imposed by Israel after Hamas took control of the Gaza Strip
in June 2007. In September 2007, Israel declared the Gaza Strip "hostile lerritory" and thaI
the movement or:goods inlO and out of Gala would be. restricted for security concerns as
well as in order 10 apply pressure on the Hamas government "as part of the State of Israel's
operations against continl.JOWl tClTOrism,"u Harsher fuel restrictions came into effect since
October 2007.

II '8uo.uII /~ FelICe QJ'Ili lJ Hard Ploec', UNOCHA 01'1 Report, August 2010
II "HIlIIlIS is a ICITOrist orgllllization thal hIS taken control fifthe Oau Strip and turned it into !'oShle

tctrirory This organization engages in hosrile activity against the StBle oflsrllel and its citizens and
bears responsibilily for thIS actIvity, In light of the foregoing. illias been decided 10 aclop( the
recommendations tlill have been presented by the security establishment, includmg tile continuation
ofmllilary and counler-terroost operations again$lthe laronsl organiZilions. AOdiuon&! sanaions
will be placed OIl tile Hamas regirnc: in order to restrict the plSSlIge ofY1lrJOUs goods to the Gua Strip
IIIld rcdooc the supply offllct and electricity Restrictions will also be placed on the movemenl.of
people 10 and fi'om tile Gua Strip. Tbe sanctions wiU be cnaacd folloWing a legal exammation: wllile
taking into a~nt both the IIl,jmanillllian aspcc:ts relevant to the G.IZ.I Strip IIIld the intention to avoid
a lIumanitarian crisis."
IlttpJ/www.mfa.gov.II/lYfFAJOovcmmentICommunlqllCSl20071Seeunty+C.binet+dcclares+(Jaza-i"hoSl.
ile+lerritory+I~20071t1m

•
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31. In a petition to Ihe Israeli Supreme Court, l) the legality of .he decision by the
Government of Israel to reduce the supply of electricity and fuel was challenged based on
the argumenlthat such cutS were inconsistent with the obligations of Israel under the Fourth
Geneva Convention relating to the protection of civilians. In its response, the State
Attorney's Office inler alia submitted thai hanning Ihecconomy itself is a legitimate means
of warfare and a relevant consideration even when deciding on allowing in relief
consignments. l •

32. From mid·2008, in response to the Free Gaza Movement's attempts to enter Gaza by
sea, the Israeli Government took a series of steps aimed initially. at detcrring shipping from
travelling to the area." A NOlice to Mariners was issued SUIting that all ships entering the
central zone: of the: Gaza Maritime Area would be "subject to supervision and inspection."
Then, in August 2008, a second Notice to Mariners was issued stating that "a marilime zone
cxtends 20 miles to seaward from the Gaza Strip. In accordance with the agreements
between Israel and the PA, entry by foreign vessels to this zone is prohibited."'l

Imposition oJthe l7QVol bfockolk

33. In his testimony to the: Turkel Committee, Chief of General StafT Gabi Ashkenazi
accepted that the "phenomenon of the flotillas" in mid-2008 represented the trigger fo'r the
imposilion of the maritime closure, although he outlines that it was done for security
purpos~.16 braeli Chief Military Advocate General, Avichai Mandelblit also stated that

the juslilication for a naval blockade was on security grounds only. However, plans for a
full naval blockade were initially flOl approved al the IX)litical level "on grounds of
legitimacy" and the IX)ssibilil)' of what MandelbJit describes as "severe criticism" at Ihe
intemationallevel.l'

34. Shortly prior to the initiation of Operation 'Cast Lead' at lhe cod of 2008 a
recommendation for the initiation of a closure was made by the Military Advocate General
10 lhe Defence Minister who directed lhe: imposition of a marilime clo~re on the Gua
Strip until further notice. II The naval blockade of lhe: GlW\ Strip was established by 1Sl'1lC1
on 3 January 2009 and announced by the Israeli Navy on 6 January. "The advisory stales that
"the GlW\ maritime area is closed to all maritime traffic and is under blockade imlX)sed by
the Israeli Navy unlil further nolice."" This advisory was publicised inter alia in a further
Notice to Mariners (NT~ and through ~rher channels. It was also publicised Iwice daily

l) Isrxh Supreme Court, case HCJ 9132107 -AI &us/ounl V,J. Prl1M M'n;sl~r•
.. Seaion 4 orSlate Submission to liIe ISl'lICh Supreme Court in case HCJ 9132107 -Af Bawo,,,,/vs.

PnIM MUlImr. Sec http://www.alShll.orglUscrFllcsfFilellurkel%2026-S.Z01Q.3.pdf
I) lsrxli Notice to Mariners 612008
I. IOF ChierofGeneral Starr, Gabi Ashkenazi's leslimony to the Turkel COmminee: Public

CommisslOll to Examine LIle Maritime Incident orMay 31, 2010, Session Numbel'" 4, II August 2010.
p. 13.

" IOF ChiefMilitary AdVOGllte Genc:rlll Stan: Avichai Mandelblil's testimOl1y to the Turkel Commil1ee.
Public Commission to Examme the Maritime Incidenl of May 31, 2010, Session Number 4, 26
AugusI2010,p.41

II loF ChltfofGellCl'1l1 SIIfT, Gabi Ashkenazi's tCSlimony 10 the Turkel Commillee; PubliC
CommISSion 10 Examme the Marilime locidcnt of May 31, 2010, Session Number 4, I I AugUSl 2010,
pp ISf.

" NO. 1/2009 Blockade of the GUll Strip, See website oftheSlate oflsrsel Ministry ofTransport IlIld
Road Safety:
hl1p:llinfo. mot.gov-ilJEN/indeJ,: php1oplion'"Q)l11_COIlI~nt&. vic_article&.id-IZ4:no IZOO9&'calid- 17:
nolieetomanncrs&.ltcmid-12

:ro A Noticc to Mannen advises mariners of important matters afTc.tting navigational safety, including
new hydrug.rapbic information, changes in channel~ and aids to navigation IIIId other important data.

,
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on the NAVTEX broadcast system, regularly updating shipping according to loclUion via a .
direct-printing se..... ice.11 Chief Military Advocate General Staff Mandelblit stated thai this
blockade was approved at ministry level by the: State Anomey without involving military
legal adviceP

35. Senior Israeli officials have staled thallne legal basis for the blockade was (I) the
8M Remo Manual, (2) the London Declaration and (l) customary law," and the existence
of 8tl anned conflict between Hamas and Israel thaI had continued after Operation Cast
L<od."

36. A military closure order was signed by the Commander of the Israeli Navy on 28
May 20IO,ls prohibiting persons from entering a specified "closed area" referred to as
"Area A" and advising all ships and persoru to stay away from a "dangerous area" referred
to as "Area B"lIi but, IlCCOrding to testimony received by the Mission, not gazetted. The
order announcing the blockade was presented by the rc:presentative oflhe State in a hearing
on the extension of detention of four Palestinian Al1Ib citizens of Israel as the provision on
the basis of which the Israeli fort:eS entered intemar.ional waters. The application to extend
the arTcst of the 4 individuals concc:med was based on the Ilfiument that there had been a .
vio"ation oflhe above mentioned order.

2. The humanitarian situation in the Gaza Strip

31. The humanitarian situation in Qaza resulting from the imposition of the blockade on
the Qua Strip since June 2007 has been a maner ofinaeasing concern for the international
community, including the Security Council. Following the Flotilla incident, the Security
Council qualified the sitwtio'n in Qua as "not sustainable", stressing the full
implementation of Resolutions 1850 and 1860, in which it, inter alia expressed "grave
concern (...] at the deepening humanitarian crisis in Gau", emphasized "the need to ensure
sustained and regular flow ofgoods and people through the Qaza crossings" and called for
the "unimpeded provision and distribution throughout Qaza of humanitarian assistance,
including food, fuel and medical treatment" In the Presidential Statement, the Security
Council reiterated its "grave concern at the humanitarian situalion in Qaza" and stressed
"the need for sustained and regular flow ofgoods and people to Gaza as well as unimpc:dc:d
provision and distribution of humanitarian assistance throughout Gaza."n In addition, the

II IOF ChiefofGenenl Staff, Gabi Ashken~'st~lImony 10 the TUf1,;el CommillC:C: Publie
CommiSSIOn 10 Examine the ""Blllme Incident of May J I, 2010, Session Number 4. on the date of
8.11.2010,pp.18f

11 rOF ChiefMllilary Advocate Genc:nll Starr, Avicbal MIIIldc:lblit's testimony 10 the: Turkel COmmlncc'
Public CommissIOn to Examine: the Manlime Incidenl ofMay ) I, 2010, Session Number 4, 26
AlI&ust 2010, pp. 41-43.

11 Ibid, p. O.
14 Ibid. pp. 44-45.
IS Closure Order and Announcement ofDangerous Area in Sea 06{IO, 2010 (Defense (Emergency)

Regulations of (945).
:16 Extract ofthc: hearing on 1 Junc 2010 on the detention oflhe four Palestinian Anti citizens of lSJ8Cli,

bc:fore.lhc Ashkelon Magislnltcs Court (unofficial IRIt5lation).
Jl SlPRST12010l9. In Security COlllleil resolution 1860 on JInUIl'y 2009, the Security Couneil

expressed Kgrave eonec:m .•.ar!he decpe/ung humUlilarian crisis In OWl" IlIld c:mphasRrd "the nccd
to ensure sustained and le8ul... now ofsoods and people through Lhc: Gaza erossinlS. II called for the
Kunimpedc:d provisIOn and distribution throughout Gan of humanitarian assistance, including food,
fUel and medical tre:aunenL"

"
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United Slates Ambassador 10 the United Nations in Geneva said "we continue to believe the
situation in Gaz.a is unsustainable: and.is not in the: interest ofany of those concerncd".l'

38. In a United Nations joint statement issued on )J May, Roben Serry, the United
Nations Special Coordinator for the Middle East Peace Process and Filippo Grandi,
Commissioner-General of the" United Nalions Relief and Works Agency (UNRWA)
emphasized that "such tragedies arc: entirely avoidable if brae! heeds the repealed calls of
the international community to end its counterproductive: and ulUl(;l;;eplablc: blockade: of
Gaza" In II public statement issued on 14 June 2010, the JeRe described the impact of the
closure on Inc situation in Gaza as "devastating" for the 1.5 million people: living there,
emphasizing thai "the closure eonstinlles II. collective: punishment imposed in clear violation
of Israel's obligations under international humanitarian law", saying lIle only suslaioable
solution is II lifting of the closure.

39. Similarly, the Human Rights Comminee, in its con<:luding observations of July
2010, expressed its concern althe "effects oflhe blockade on the civilian population in the
Gaza Strip, including restrictions to their freedom of movement, some of which led to
deaths of patients in need of urgenl medical ~, as welt as restrictions on the access to
sufficient drinking waler and adequate sanitation. n It recommended that Israel lift lIle
military blockade ofGaza, insofar as il adversely affects the civilian population.B

40. According 10 information provided to the Mission by the United Nations Office for
the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs (OCHA) in the occupied Palestinian territOf)', lIle
block.ade exacerbated lIle already eXisting difficulties of the population in Qua in terms of
livelihoods and brought to new peaks the severe human dignity crisis resulting from the
detcriorated JXlblic services, widespread poverty, food 'insecurity, over 40 percent
unemployment and 80 perccnt aid dependence (I.e. some 80 percent of the population
receives humanitarian assislllllce, mainly food). People's lives were reduced to a daily
struggle in an anemp( to secure me most basic needs.

41. "Abject poVertyM among refugees tripled since the imposition of the blockade from
100,000 to 300,000 and 61 percent of households are food insecure. There has been a shift
in diet (from protein rich 10 low cost and high carbohydrate foods), triggering com::emS over
mincral and vitamin deficiencies. Moreover, Gaza has been affected by a protracted energy
crisis, with the power plant operating at 30 percent of its capacity, scheduled cuts of 8-12
hours per day, leaving households with partial food refrigeration. Services and utilities are
forced to rely on generators and UPS u'l!.ts vulnerable due !o ioconsistent supply of spare

P"":
42. Water and sanitation services have deteriorated and resulted in over 40 percent of
water loss due to leakages. On a daily basis, eighty million lilmi of untreated and partially
treated sewage is discharged into the environment. Polluted sea w81.er has led 10 inCl'Cased
health risks and as a result of sewage infiltrating into the aquifer only between live and ten
percent of the extracted water is safe. Otallenges to the health system include the
impossibility to ensure that medical equipment is available and properly maintained, while
referral abroad is subject to long and arduous permit processing and medical staff is
prevented from upgrading knowledge and skills.

43. On 20 June 2010, the Security Cabinet of the Government of Israel decided on
several steps to implement a new Governmental policy towards Gaza, seeking to keep
weapons and war material OUt or Gaza while liberalizing the system by which civilian

II Sialement by the Ambassadorofthc Unil~ States of American 10 the Humin Rights COUntlt,
Geneva, I Jllne2010.

Z9 CCPRICIISIVCOO, patl. 8

II
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goods enfer GllVLlO In July, the United Nalions and imcmational relief agencies cautiously
welcomed the easing of import restriclions on the blockade, but emphasized that only a
complete lifting of the blockade can address the humanitarian crisis, highlighting that this
would also mean bringing exports out ofGaza in order 10 re~ild the economy des~ycd by
the blockade.J'

44. At the: end of August, OCHA reported that despite the easing of the l"CSlriclions and
an increase: of importS into lhe: Gua Slrip for some weeks. ongoing restrictions on the enlf)'
of ool1$lTUction materials as well lIS on exportS, rontinued 10 impede major reconstruction
and development, ODling lhal the truckloads of goods entering Gaza during lhe week of 18
Augusllo 24 August constituted o'nly 37 percent of the weekly average oflruckloads lnat
entered during the firSl five months of2oo7, prior to the imposition of the blockade. In the
same report, OCHA also highlights the continuingJuel shor1age and electricity crisis in the
Gaze. Slrip.l1 The impact of the power cuts in terms of pulling people's lives at risk, for
instance those in need of"medical treatment (i.e. dialysis patients) was also highlighted by
the JeRC in a press release on 7 September 2010.

3. Information on retenllnned hostilities

45. According to OCHA, in 2010, forty-one Palestinians (including fourteen civilians),
three Israeli soldiers and one foreign national have been killed in the conteltl of the
Palestinian-Israeli connict in the Gaza Strip and southern Israel, with anoiher 178
Palestinians (including 154 civilians) and eight Israeli soldiers having been injurcd.JJ

According 10 the Israeli Defence Forces, a iota! of 120 rockets were fired from the Gaza
Strip into Israel from I January 2010 to 31 July 2010.J4 This figure does not include failed
attempts or firing dirCl;:t!y at Israeli forces..

B. Applicable law

46. At Ihe outset it should be nOled Ihat a Slate is responsible for the conduct of its
officials, including its anned forces, when acting eilher in lheir official capacity or when
acting under the colour of authority and using means put at their disposal by the SIBte, evCTl
if exceeding their authority Of contravening instructions.U In Ihe course of enforcement
actions carried out by a State, certain fundamental, minimum obligations are applicable at
aJitimes, whether an oper11tion is governed by the laws of.anned conflici (LOAC) or the
laws of international human rights law. The COntCTlt of those obligalions is not affecled by
the legalilY or otherwise· of II SUIte's claim to exercise authority over individuals or
property.

47. However, acling in an official capacity does nol relieve a State agenl of individual
criminal responsibility. II is possible thai individual criminal liability and SUIte
responsibi1iry may arise from lhe same aCI. The faci thm the State bears inlernational
responsibility does not mean thai individuals cannolalso bear individual criminal liability.

:II hnp:l/www.mfLgov-ifIMFAlHumanit.nanAidlPafesliniansfBrieling-
ISrKl_newJlOlicy_lOwards_Gau_~-J\lI-20IO.hlm OUllining specific elemenlS ofthe new poliey.

)1 hnp.lIwww.irinnews.orgIReporusplt?Reponld=89762
II Prot«:tion ofCivihans· 18-24 AugllSf 2010, United Nations QCHA oP!, p.4.
)J Protcclion ofCivilians: 18-24 AugUSI 2010, United Nations OCHA oPt, p_3.
... Imp:l/tlovcrJdf iViOFlEngJishlNewslroday/l 0I08I1203.hlm
» Article 7, Inlcmatl00at Law CommiSSIOn Articles on Responsibilil)' ofStates for InternatIOnally

Wrongful Ad$, [2001] Vol. 11(2) Yearbook oflhe Inrcmational Law Commission, p. 4~. See also'
Caire (t929) ~ ReportS oflntemational Ar!lirrat Awants S16; MaHtn (192~) 4 Reporu of
InternatIOnal Ar!ljrrat Awards 173.

"
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I. T1te law.r ••vat warfln: and rIIt qlftS(io. oftllle blodtlde

.,. Considering the issues raised by the mandate given 10 the MilSKIn which inYOlvat
is.sue:s aria.... relllling 10 naval warfare and the miller ora naval bIocbde imposed by brael.
the Mission views l!'Iosc manen: as follows.

49. According ~ appliatble intemaJionaI ta..... unless an excepcion 8ppttes. a lIessel on
the hilh seas is SlJbjectlo the exclusive j..-isdiaion orits flag S..e. Under the international
law of the sea such exceptions are usually limited 10 suspicion of certain activities (piraq,
the slave.trade, unauthorized high seas bro8dcasling), ships suspected of lacking nationality
(i.e. stateless vcuels) and cases where permission to board and inspoct have been gi~
either ad hoc Of by Creaty (e.g. Ihc»e dealing with narcotics smuggling).- Other excc::pcions
....ould include IICts of sc:rf-defence under Article S1 orille United Nations Charter lIgainsl
vessels which posed an immediate and overwhelming threat to !tie boarding Stale and
lawful actS under LOAC. .

SO. It has been suggested lhat the Uniltd Nations Law of Ihe Sea Convcntion
(UNCLOS), by reserving the use of the high seas for peaceful purposes/' has effectively
oUllawed acts of naval warfare on Ike high seas. First, il should be noted that IsI1lCI is not a
party to UNCLOS, Second, lhere was no consensus on this posilion during the negotiation
of UNCLOS and it was certainly not teeepled by the major naval powers II lhe rime.
Indeed, the military manuals of many States (both UNCLOS parties and non-p&I1ies)
continue to include- provisions on the law of naval warfare and bIockade." Further, I report
of Ihe United Nllions Secretary GerJcrt,1 found lhat these UNCLOS provisions did not
affect lIClion thai was lawful eitho under !he law of sdf-defence under Anicle 5I of the
United Nations Cha1er (the:jllS ad ~/!llm) or acts justified by the law of .,-ned conflict
(LOAC) once. an .-med conflicl has commenced (Ihc: jus in ~//o)," The. mljority of
scholarly opinion would also support the "'few that the law of naval wwfare COntil1UeS to be
potentially applicable on the high seas. One Il:ttmpl II codifyina this law was lhe
independent expert study, the San Rcmo Manual on ImcmatioMl Law Applicable to Armed
Conflicts 81 Sea. (SRM),- While not aulhoritati...e, its codir!calion etTon has had •
significanl impact on the formulalion of military manuals and il has been exprcs.sly relied
upon by lmel.

JI See, in particular, UnUcd Nations Law oflhc SCI ConYCnlion 198'2, Unite'd Nations, T~aty Sfri~',

vol. 1U3, No, 31363, article 110(1); ConYCruion on thl:: High Seas 1958, Unllcd Nadons, mary
$mll, vol. 450, No. 6465, article 22.

)I United Nuions, Tnc.rySfrlll, vol IU3, No, 31363, articles 88, 141 Illd 301.
II UK Minisuy ofDefcncc, n. Manual afllM Low ofArlfUdCanj/;€1 (Oxford UniYCnity Press, 2(04)

(Ilcrafter, UK MDUal); DicIer Fleek (e1I),H~ af/N#17JQ/1tJlJa1 H_uat"UIIf l,gw 2'" editIOn
(Odol'd l)fliYmi'ty Press, 2OOI),Ilc~ all"lICIWOd lraI1$luion of the GcnnAll.rnlltllly manual
()lcre.ftcr. Gc:mwl MlIIlual);~ 14w ofA,.,,.cdCOIf/Iia til 1M OpvoIiottoI(lIf(i TtlClktJlLA-e1s
(2004). wai1ab1e It the websilC ofthe CaMdian OffICe oflhc Judge Actvoc:alC GcncIaI,
httpJIwww.fofas.ac.caf"JqfpubtiationslTlUIint·lOnnatIOnl.LOAC-DOCA_2OO4-cI!a-pd((Mn:aflcl".
Canadian Manual}; C 's~ ofII. LtJw tJ/!'ItJ<ooI Opuat_ (US, 1007). available II
hnp'/1Is'lwr;..cdula~a9bk91d-lc1d-4779-992S-OdelCl9)325c11·14"UJu'-2007UNWp)

(hcrafia", US Manual)
" RqlOI'I ofdw:: Secntary Gc:ner'ai. -sa.cty on the Naval Amt$~-, UnilCd Nations Doc:. A/4M3S

(1915),.-. In
• AS '+ cd ICed 1ft Louise 00swII6-8cd: el II (cds)..sa.. Ruto UtIIfUQ/ tI#J Im~nwItNftII UJw

Appliwblw ro A"""e-jI/dS • ~Q (CambndF Un,¥CftiIy Pres$, 1995). A....ilable It:

hclp"/'-·icrc.OIJfihr'II$f1FULUS6O"OpcftDoamt.

IJ
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Blockade

5 I. Under the laws of armed conflict, a blockadc is the prohibition of all commerce with
a defined enemy coastline. A belligerent who has established a lawful blockade is entitled
to enforce that blockade on the high seas." A blockade must satisfy a number of legal
requirements, including: notification, effective and impartial enforcement and
proporti\?nality.'ll In particular a blockade is illegal if:

(a) it has the sole purpose of starVing the civilian population or denying it other
objects essential fOr its survival; Or

(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in
relation to the amcrete and direct military advantage anticipated from the blockade.ol

52. A blockade may nol continue 10 be enforced where il inflicts disproportionate
damage on the civilian population. The usual meaning of "damage to the civilian
population" in LQAC refers to deaths, injuries and property damage. Here the: damage may
be thoughl of as the destruction of the civilian economy and prevention of reconslJ\lCtion of
past damage. One might also OOle, insofar as many in Gaza face a shortage of food or the
means to buy it, that Ihe ordinary meaning of "starvation" under LOAC is simply to cause
hunger,"

53. In evaluating the evidence submined to the Mission, including by the Office for the
Coordination of Humanilarian Affairs in the occupied Paleslinian lerritory, confinning the
severe humanitarian situation in Gaza, the destroction of the economy and the prevention of
reconstruction (as delailed above), the Mission is satisfied thaI the blockade was inflicting
disproportionate damage upon the civilian population in the Gaza strip and as such the
interception cOuld not bejUSfified and therefore has to be cort!lidcn:d illegal.

54. Moreover, the Mission emphasizes that according to article 33 of the Fourth Geneva
Convention, collective punishment of civilians under occupation is prohibited, "No
protecled person may be punished fOr an offence: he or she has not pel'SOnally commillcd.
Collective penalties and likewise all measures of intimidation or of terrorism, are
prohibited." The Mission considers Ihat one of the principal motives behind the imposition
of the blockade was a desire to punish the people of the Gaza Strip for having elected
Hamas. The combination of this motive and the effect of the 'restrictions on the Gaza Strip
leave no doubt thlltlsraet's acriort!l and policies amount to collective punishment as defined
by intemalionallaw. In this connlXltion, the Mission supports the findings of the Special
Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in the Palestinian tCl'Titories occupied since
1967, Richard Falk,d the report of the United Nalions Fact-Finding Mission on the Gaza
Conflict" and most recently the ICRC01 that the blockade amounts to collective punishment
in violation oflsrael's obligations under international humanilarian law.

-, San Remo Manual, pan,8rtph 100b}..
'll San Remo Manual, paragraph 9J·9S, 100.
_l San Rcmo MllJIUI1, part. 102
.. C. Pilloud and J PiclC[, COnlTMrllDry tNt lM addllionolprolrxals ojlJJ_ 1917 101M Cff_

C~"lionsof /1 Aupsl /9~9 (tnlernational Commillee of the Red ClOSS, 1987), p,SJ para 2089.
See al$o Oxford English DiClionuy defInitions' "to dcpnve ofor keep scanllly supplied with food" or
10 w 5ubdue by famIne or low dM:'''.

~ AlHRClIJ/SJ,part..34
<6 T1Ie MISSion considacd the policy ofbtockade "amoUllIS 10 col1ecrive punisllmel'llllltmtionaJly

inniCled by lhe Governmenl of Israel on thepeople orOaza", MIRCJIV411, para. 18711.
01 In its SUllement or 1'- June 2010. the ICRe maintained that "the ~Ie orOna's civilian populalion is

bein8 pumshed for acts for which dley bear no responsibility. The elo$un: therefore consti1U!cs'

14
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55. It might be suggested that a bc:lligerent in an armed conflict has a right 10 visit,
inspect and control the destinations of neutral' vessels on the high seas, irrespective of any
dedared blockade. Whilst there is some controversy on this issue, the San Remo Manual
and a number ofmililaty manuals lake lhe view Ihallhe right may only be exercised upon
reasonable suspicion mat 8 vessel is engaged in activities which support the enemy," The
Mission takes the view mat a right of interference with third Stales' freedom of navigation
should 001 tightly be presumed

56. Thus, if there is no lawful blockade, the only lawful basis for intercepting the vessel
would be a reasonable suspicion that it:

• was making an effective COfllribulion to the opposing forces' war effort. such as by
carrying weaponry or was otherwise closely integrated into the enemy war effort
(belligerent right of capture);" or

• posed an imminent and overwhelming threallO Israel aad there was no allemative
but 10 use force 10 prevent it (self.defence under Article 5 I of the United Nations
Chaner).

In view of the information available. the Mission is satisfied that the interception of the
nolilla and related preparatory planning by Israel was not purely motivated by concerns as
to the vessels' contribution 10 the war effon. Evidence attributed 10 the Chief of General
Staff, Gabi Ashkenazi who testified that he did not believe that the IHH, one of the
coalition members organizing the Flotilla, was a "tc;rrorist organization".'lI The evidence of
Prime Minister Netanyahu to the Turkel Committee indieates that the decision to stop the
flotilla was not taken because the vessels in themselves posed any immediate security
threat. In any event. no such right of belligerent interdiction or wider claim of self-defence
againstlhe Flotilla has been asserted by Israel.

57. Then:fore the Mission is satisfied not only that the flotilla presented no imminent
threat but that the interception was motivated by concerns about the possible propaganda
victory that might be claimed by the organizers ofthe flotilla.

58. Given the evidence at the Turkcl Committee. it is clear that there was no reasonable
suspicion that the Flotilla posed any military risk of itself. As a result. no case could be
made to intercept the vessels in the ellercise of belligerent rights or Article 5I self-defence.
Thus" no case can be made for the lega1i[)' of the interception and the Mission therefore
finds that the interception was illegal.

59. The Mission finds that the policy ofblockadc or closure regime, including the naval
blockade impose<! by Israel on Gaza was inflicting disproportionate civilian damage. The
Mission' considers that the naval blockade was implemented in support of the overall
closure regime. As such it was part of a single disproportionate measure of armed conflict
and as such cannot itself be found proportionate.

a1IlCClivc punishment imposed In clear violation of Is~I'5obligations under intemational
humanitarian law~.

.. San Remo Manual.~ I t8 and 67; United Kingdom Manual. panllJ.91

.. San Rcmo Manual, paTllgraph 67 and 146.
)I Turltcl Commince: PublicCOmmissJOn to Examine the Maritime Incident ofM&)' 31,2010. Session

Number 4, II AugllSt 2010, responding to a question by Professor Deulch; hnp:l/www.turkd­
a1mmino:c:.gov,il/files/WoTcIoc!i07790ga.doe. 'The Mission nOles thai a Germany-based organization
called "rntCmalionalc HumanilllCR Hilfsorgan;u.llon" that simes the same abbreviation but has no
link with the Tundsh organiution, is under- investlgatil?n in Germany for alleged 'terronst' links

15
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60. Funhermore, the closure regime: is considered by Ihe Mission 10 conSlilUte collective
punishment of the people living in the Qua Strip and thus illegal and contrary 10 anicle 33
ofthc: FourtJ:! Geneva Convenlion.

61. The MCssion considers lhaJ. the cnforocmcnt of an illepl blockade does not only
tonSlilute a violalion ofthc laws of war, bul also a ...iollllic)n of the laws ofneuuality giving
rise to Slate responsibility.

2. 1.IUlIationa' Humanitarian .....w

62. Thc relcvanl inte:maliona! humanitarian law standards binding on 1$l8e1 as the
oocupying power- in the oa;upicd PalCSlinian terrilOr)' we set 001 in the Founh Geneva
ConveMion of 1949 relalivc to the Protection of Civilian Persons in Time of War. In
addilion. ISBCI is bound by cuslOmar)' rules of inlcma1ionaI humanitarian law.

63. As the occupying power,lsrael has certain obligations imposed on it by international
law. The Inlc:ma1ional Court of Justice has concluded thlll the Fourth Geneva Convention is
applicable in me occupied Palestinian territories which before the 1967 oonfltcc lay to the
east of the Green Line Md which during the conflict were oc:aJpicd by 1S11lC:l.l1 This is also
the casc for the Gam strip. despite the unilateral withdnwal by Israel ofthc: forces from the
Gaa Strip in 2005, as the occupation has been confirmed repealcdly since then by lhe
General Assembly and the Security Council.}) In this context. the Mission notes that
OCCUp8fion continues to [he cxlc:nl to which the occupying power retains effective control.

64. The Mission agrees with the assessment presenled in the Goldstone Report as
follows:

Given the specific geopolitical configuration ofthe Gaza Strip. the powers thai Israel
exercises from the borden enable it"to determine the condilions of life within the
Gaze. Strip. Ismel controls the border crossings (including 10 a significant degree t~

Rafah crossing 10 Egypt. under die terms of the Agreement on Movemenl and
Access) and decides wha! and who gets in or out of the Gua Strip. It also conlrols
the territorial sea adjacent to the Gua Strip and has declared a vil'lUaJ blockade and
l!mits to the fishing zone, thereby regulating economie activity in that zone. It also
keeps complele' control or the airspace of the Gaze S1tip, inter alia, through
continl.lOus surveillance by ain:raft and unmanned aviation vehicles (UAVs) or
drones. It makes military incursions and from lime to lime hit targets within lhe
Gaza Strip. No-go areas IIl'C declared within the Gaza Strip near the border where
Israeli senlemcnis used to be and enforced by the Israeli tll1l'Ied forces. Furthennore.
Israel regulates Ihe local monetary markel baseo on the Israeli currency (the new
sheqel) and controls taxes and custom duties. l

)

The Mission is SlUisfied that these circumstances continued to prevail at the lime of the
incident urKIc:r investigation.

65. . Under the Founh Geneva Convenlion, individuals may nol be killed, tortured, ill­
treated or suffer humiliating and degrading treatment and there may not be destruction of,

)1 Lcp! COlIsequc:n<:es ofthe CODSlnKliofl orthe Wall in the Occllpted PtlCSlilllan Tcnitory, Advisory
{)pin1OCl of9 July 2004, fa Reports 2004, pin. 101.

lJ Securily Councll resolution 1160 (2009), GOIeT1II Assembly resolutions AJRdiY4N1. and
.......194.

JJ Humin Ripcs m PlIcstine BId OdlerO<:c:upied Arab Tcnill:lricl: Rcpon of the Uniled Nlllions FKl:­
Findrna Mission oalhe Gau Conniet, UnIted NIbOIilS Doc AlHRClI2I41 (25 Seplember 2009), pan
211.

"
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property unless absolutely necessary for the: military operation. Article 147 Fourth Geneva
Convention spells out a list ofWgl\lve breaches" of internalionaI humanitarian law.

66. Flotilla passengers were civilians and in the context crthe interception of tile vessels
must be considered as protected persons. Under anicle 4 Fourth Geneva Convention,
protected pe~ns are those who, at a given momcnt and in any manner whatsoever, find
themselves in the hands of II part 10 Ihe conflict of occupying Power of which they are not
nationals. In a situation of armed ronniet, military force can only be used against a
combelaflt or against civilians panicipaling actively and directly in combat activities, which
C8Ill'lOt be said or tile civilians on the Mavi Marmara .

I

J. Internalionl Human Rights Law

67. Israel is parI)' to the core human rights treaties relevant 10 the situation under
consideration.'" The vessels in the flotilla whilst in international waters Wcfc; also subjeclto
Ihe jurisdiction of the flag states, namely Cambodia (Rachel Corrie), Comoros (Mavi
Mannara), Greece (Eleftheri Mesogios), Kiribati (Defile V), Togo (Sfendoni), Turkey
(Gazze I) and the United States of America (Challenger I), The international human rights
treaties accepted by each of these states at the lime oflhe incident under investigation were'
applicable on the relevant vessels. I

68. Human rights law in its entirety continues to apply in sitUlllions of armed conflict,
except for derogations in accordance with treaty provisions relating to times of
emergencies. In this respect the Mission notes the recef1t reitcration by the Human Rights
Committee of its view that "the applicability of the regime of international humanitarian
law during an armed conflict, as wcll as in a situation of occupation, does not preclude the
application of the Covenant, except by operation of article 4, whereby certain provisions
may be derogated from in a time of natiollal cmergency:d' In its General Comment 29, the
Human Rights Commiltcc specified that the Covenant continues to apply in situations of
armed conflict to whieh the rules of international humanitarian law are applicable. "While,
in respect of certain Covenanl rights, more specific rules of international humanitarian law
may be especially relevant for the purposes of the interpretation of Covenant rights, both
spheres of law are complementary, not mutually exclusive.r

"

69. Moreover, in the Nuclear Weapons Advisory Opinion (1996) the ICJ affinned the
applicability of the Covenant during anned conflict, stating that "In principle, the right not
arbitrarily to be deprived of one's life applies also in hostilities. The test of what is an
llfbitTary deprivation of life, however, then falls 10 be determined by the applicable lex
specialis, namely, the law applicable in armed conflict which is designed to regulate the
conduct of hostilities. Thus whether a particular loss of life, through the usc of a certain
weapon in warfare, is to be COrlsidered an llfbitrary deprivation of life contrary to Article 6
of the Covenant can only be decided by reference to the law applicable in armed conflict
and not deduced from the lenns of the Covenant itselr.rS1

70. In its Advisory Opinion on lhe ugof consequences O/IM COfl.SlrUCI;on 0/a Wall in
lhe Occ':lpied Pales/inion Terri/Dry, the Court considered that wthe profC(:lion offered by the
human rights COl'lvCfltions does nOI cease in case of armed conflict, save through the effect

,. ICCPR, ICESeR, CEDAW, JCERD, CAT, CRC and tbeOPon the invol\o"tlTlcntofcllildn:n in Anncd
Conflict .

" CCPRJISR/COI3, partl.5
" Human Rigllts Committee, GellCr.1 Comment No. 29, para J, also incorporated into General

Commenl 31, pl\J'8. II.
~, LAgoltlYOJIM Tlvrol (N Us. ofNue/tor WrilpOfU, Advuory Opmfoll of!h!)' 1996, 1996 ICJ

Reports, p. "226, Para. 25.
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of provisions (Of derogation of any kind to be found in Article 4 of lhe Intemational
Covenant on Civil and Political Rights. As fCgards lhe relationship between international
humanitarian law and human rights law, there are thus three Possible SilU3tions: some rights
may be exclusively maners of international humanitarian law; others may be exclusively
matters of human rights law; yet others may be matters of both these branches of
imemationallaw,odI

71. The Mission is eflhe view thatlhc conduct orlne IOF on board the Mavi MllfTnara
as well as the conduct of the authorities in the afteimll!h of the operation is ROt limited
strictly 10 Ihe law ofarmcd conflict, but is subject also 10 human righls law. [~deed human
rights law and international humanitarian law are not mutually exclusive but rather should
be regard to be complementary and mutually reinforcing to ensure the fullest protection to
the persons concerned.

72. The [(CPR contains severnl articles.which cannot be derogated from even "in times
of public emergency which threatens the life of the nlllion (art. 4)." Non-dcrogable rights
include the right to life and the right not to be subjected to torture or to cruel, inhuman or
degrading treatment of punishment. Israel has made a notification under article 4(3) of the
lCCPR - states of emergency•. dated 3 October 1991. specifically relevant to article 9
regarding liberty and security of person." In this connection, the Human Rights Committee
extends in its General Comment No. 29 the list of non-derogable provisions as provided for
by article 4 (2), emphasizing that States parties to the Covenant "may in no circumstances
invoke article 4 of the Covenant as a justification for acting in violation of humanitarian
law or peremptory nonns ofintemationallaw, for instanee by taking hostages, by imposing
collective punishments. through arbitl"/ll')' deprivation of liberty or by deviating from
fundamental principles of fair trial, including the presumption of innocencc.'>Oll

73. . Article 2 of the ICCPR obliges each State party to respect and to ensure to all
individuals "within its territory and subject to its jurisdiction" the rights reoognized within
il. The extra-territorial applicability was elaborated by the Human Rights Committee in its
General Comment 31; "A State party must respect and ensure the rights laid down in the
Covenant to anyone with the power or effective control of that State pany, even if not
situated within Ihe territory of the State party....! The applicability ofthe \CCPR "in respect
of acts done by a State in the exercise of its· jurisdiction outside its own territory" ,was

;,
Ltgol Co"nqu~ncn . . Para 106.

" ·Since its tstlblislunent, the Stilt of Israel has been the viaim OfcontlO\lOUS threatslllld atlACks on its
very existence as wen as on the life and property of its citizens.
"Tbex havc taken the fOml of threats of war, ofactual Inned attacks and campaigns of lerrorism
resulting in the murder of and injury to IIuman beings.

-In view oflhe abovc; the Stlte ofEme'Bcncy which was proclaImed in May 1948 has remained In
foree ever 5ince. This 5itultion COO$tilUlCS a public emergency within the meaning ofar1iele 4 (I) of
the Covcnant.
'ihe Qovernment oflstael has the:rtfoll: found It f\CQCSSl1')', in accordance with the s.aid aniele 4, to
take measures 10 the extent 5tnClly required by the ell1gencie:s of the sirualion, for the defence ofthe
State and for the: prolection oflifc and property. inel\ldln8 the tlICTCise of powers ofllfTCSt and
detention
"In so far 1$ any ofthcse mc.a.5U1'e$1Ill: inconSIstent with ar1icle 9 of the Covenant, lmel thereby
~es from its obligations under that provision."

60 Human Rights Committee, General Commenl 29. pat1l II (HRIIGENlRcv.9 (YoU»)
" H\lm~ Rights Committee, General Comment 31, part 10.

I'
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confirmed by the ICJ in its 2004 Adyisory Opinion on the Wall.l.! The Human Rights
Comminee itself has rcaffinned this view in irs recent consideration of Israel in July 201 O.t:!

74. Oilier relevant United Nations human rights standards applicable 10 member Stales
of the United Nations include lhe Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement OffICials; the
Basic Principles on the: Use afForce and Firearms by Law Enforcement Officials; the Body
of PrinCiples for the Prolection of All Penons under Any Form of Dc:tallion Of

Impri5onment; and me Principles on the Effed:ive ~enliOfl and Invcsliplon of Extra­
legal, Arbitrary and Summary Executtons.

m. Interception ofthe flotilla by the lsraeli navy and its
aftermath

A. Organisation of the Gaza Ootilla and the response of the Israeli
governmenl

flelual Ducripliolll.nd Findillp

7S. The Mission found the following facts 10 have bc:m established to its salisfaction.

(a) T1teaims of"~ F~~Gazo MtNefrJUl101!dw GazoflOlil/aofMay 2010

76. The Free Gaza Movement, a human rights organizalioo registered as a charity in
Cyprus, orpnizcd five successful boat voyages to Gau between August 2008 and
December 2008 using on each occasion one or twO small boats. The self-declared purpose
of the voyages was to break the blockade on Gua. The boats were nol intercepted by the

Israeli authoritia at the time, aJrhough some threatening IDeSSIIgcs were received by lhe
organizers from the Israeli authorities. A sixth mission in December 2008 was obliged 10

UL6p~,~111

IU CCPRIISRJC0t3, ....5; l1IeContml1ke reill!BteS itsvlCW,~y _d mJ*llVlph II ofits
contluctina obseNMions on tile Sille l*fY's seoond periodic report (CCPRJCM8IISR)-S
parasraph 10 ofits concludJnl obstrvItions on the Stilt party's lI'tih.al repon (CCPR/Cf79/AIkI,93),
thlll the applicability oflhc regimt ofUlltmalionai hlllTWlitarian law during an lImIcd COlInl~, liS well
as In I situllion ofoccupalion, does oot preclude the application of the Covenant, except by Oper1llion
ofartICle 4, whertby ctrtllin provisions may be derogltcd from In I lime omMionl! emerJency. The
Committee" position has been cndot'sCd, UIlanimously, by tile lnltmlhonai COIlIt ofJlI!tIec In its
Advisory Opinion on the Ltpl CoI'I!C:~of tile COl't5lnlUiOll ofl Will in Ihe Ck:alpied
Palestinian TtmlOfy (Advisory Opmioa,I.CJ. RtpOI'IS 2004, P. 1J6), KC:Ofditlj to which thc
Co-t is IppIICIbIe iD~ofIdS done by I SUitt In exemsc of lIS jurisdietion OUlSide iu own
1el'riIofy. FUfthumore.1be apptlClbilty of1he rqime oflllltrnltionll humanltariln law does IlOC
prcdudt IlCCOUIItIbility ofStaleS f*'Iies IIIlde:r lItidt 2. pwqraph I. oflhe Covawlt fi:II" the IClJOIIS
oftheil' authorities or acents CMSide lbeito>m tttritonc:s, mdudln& in~d tanfOries. The
Committee Itw:fe.fOtt; rcileraO:S and IIIldtneores thM, eontnry to the Stile lI'"Y's poslllOft, in the
current circwMUnees, the provisions of the COYt:llIllt appty 10 !be benefit of the: popuillion oflhe
oeeupitd lerritooes, including in the GIW Strip, for all QDI'ldud by !he $IMe party', authorilies or
agcnts in lIIose ttlTllones affllCling the enjoyment ofrights cllShrincd in !he Covenant (arts.::I Ind 040).
The Slate pIIty ShOlJld ensure the full applicalion of the COvenlJ'll in IsraelI! well as in the oceupied
territories, induding the West Bllllk, Elst Jerusalem,lhe GIW Strip and the occupied Syrian Golln
Heigh!$. In ICOOT'danoe WIlli the Colnminte', seneral (:()mmelll No. ) I, the·Statt party should ensIlte

thM all ptQOnS under its Jllrisdiaion and effective control In: afforded the: full mjoymc:nt of me rights
enshrined m the CoYtfllllt ..

"
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divert to Lebanon after the boat was rammed and severely damaged by the: Israeli Navy and
8 seventh mission in January 2009 was aboned after fcan it too would be rammed.

77. On 29 June: 2009, approximately 20 nautical miles from the coast ofGaza, thc: Israeli
Navy intercepted a boat called the "Spirit of Humanity" owlled by Ihe Free Gaza
Movement, carrying 21 passengers and a cargo of humanilarian aid to Gaza. Aftcr Israeli
requests to tum around were: refused, the boat was boarded arid takcn 10 Ashdod where: the
~sengerswere arrested and c1ctained.

78. After these uT15uccessful attempts. the Free: Gam Movement sought wider
collaboration with other organizations with a view \0 increasing thc: number of boats on
future missions. The Movement C$tablished contact wjth a number of organizations
including a Turkish humanitarian organization called thc: Foundation for Human Rights and
Freedoms and Humanitarian Relief (IHH) which enjoys consultative status with the
Economic ood Social Council. IHH, which has been active in over 120 countries ood
territories including the GII2ll Strip, had been plooning ilS own mission to Gaza ood
committed to joining the flotilla with two cargo vessels and a newly-pun:hased passenger
boat with a tolal CllJ'T)Iing capaci!y of over six hundred passengers. A number of other
orgooizations, including the Ship to Gua (Swcdco), the Ship to GII2ll (Greece) and the
European Campaign to Break the Siege on Gaza, also agreed to join what became known as
the "Gaza Freedom Flotilla".

79.. The stated aims of the Flotilla, as testified by the leaders of the Free Gaza
Movement and IHH, were threefold; (I) to draw international public attention to the
situation in the Gaza Strip and the effect the blockade; (2) to break the blockade; and (3) to
deliver humanitarian assistance and supplies to Gaza. AlI.panicipants interviewed by the
Mission shared their aims, although most placed emphasis on the delivery of humanitarian

aid.

. 80. The MiSsion notes a certain tCllsion between the political objectives of the flotilla
and its humanitarian objectives. This comes to light the moment that the Israeli
Government made offers to allow the humanitarian aid to be delivered via Israeli ports but
under Ihe supervision of a neutral organization. The Mission also notes that the Gaza Strip
docs not possess a deep sea port designed 10 receive the kind of cargo vessels included in
the flotilla, raising pnteticallogistical qucslions about the plan to deliver large quantities of
aid by the route chosen. Whilst the Mission is satisfied that the flotilla constituted a serious
attemplto bring essential humooitarian supplies into Gaza, it seems clear that the primary
objective was political, as indeed demonstrated by the decision of those on board the
Rachel Corrie to reject an Irish Government sponsored proposal that the cargo in that ship

to be allowed through Ashclod intact.

(b) Composition olthe Fla/J/fa

8\. The flotilla was composed initially of eight vessels carrying a total of 748 persons
(see table in annexes):

• M. V. Mav; MormaN' - a passenger ship registered in the Comoros'" and owned by
lHH;

• M.V. Delne Y- acargo boat registered in Kiribati and owned by IHH;

• M.V. GalLe J - a cargo.boat registered in Turkey and owned by IHH;

.. The shiP was bought by lHH early in 2010 wllh fund:5 raised by members and IVU regislCfD:! with !he
ComorosjUSl a few days before it set sail for Gaza

(

20
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.• M. Y. Sf~ndoni or Sf~ndonh - a passenger boat registered in Togo and owned by
Sfendonh S.A. based in the Marshall Islands. The boat was given an alternative:
name. "Boat 8000". just before it joined the notilla which was used in official Israeli
accounts;

• M. V. Elefthe.ri Me.sogios or SOfia - a cargo boat registered in Greece and owned by
the Eld\heri Mesogios Manne Company based in Athens. The Greek name of the
ship translates as "Free Mediterranean" and an alternative name "Sofia" is alsb used
in some accounts;

• ChaJ/mgu J - a pleasure boat registered in the United States of America and
owned by the Free Gaza Movement;

• Challengt!r 2 - a pleasure boat registered in Ihe United Stales of America and
owned by Free Qaza·Movement; and

• M. V. Rachel Corrie. - a cargo ship registered in Cambodia and owned by the Free
Gaza Movement.

The participating organizatioos were: obliged to purchase their own vessels since
commercial shipping companies were reluctant to allow their ·vessels to be chartered for the
planned flotilla. The services of the crew of the IHH-owned cargo ships were procured
through an agency in Istanbul.

82. The Challenger 2 withdrew from the flotilla when it developed engine problems. Its
passengers were uMsferred to the Challenger I and the Mavi Marmara in international
waters. The departure of the Rachel Corrie from Ireland was delayed and it thcrefore was
unable to join the f1o!i11a on 31 May. Since it was intercepted by the Israeli Navy on 6 June·
in international waters and its passengers went ~rough lhc same detention and deportation
proccss,the Mission has included this vessel in its invcstigation.

83. In line with practice during previous tripS, some passengers planned to board cenain
ships in international waters after being felTied from Cyprus. However, at the last moment,
the Cypriot authorities refused to allow these passengers 10 embark. After a series of failed
attcmpts to embark from ports in the south of the island, some passengers were able to
embllfk from the port ofF~agusla.

(e) Preparation of/he Flotilla

&4. The participating organizations in the flotilla were loosely bound together by a nine­
point agreement, entitled "Poinls of Unity", delineating the points of common purpose
shared by all panicipants inr;luding their commitment to resist interception only through the
usc: of non-violent means. According to the Free Gaza Movement, a steering committee,
made ofreprescntativcs of the participant organizations, wBs set up in each vessel.

85. Individuals with some fony different nationalitjes joined the flotilla. Each
organization applied its own criteria in sc:lecling who should join the various vessc:ls. There
was no unified protocol across all participating organiUltions to register prospective
passengers using a single signed fonn, although individual organizations did require
applications to be filled OUI and a screening and selection process took place. Many of the
panicipanl5 interviewed did not have specific skills or qualifications for humanitarian work.
Some organizations said that they selected participants on the basis of their qualifications
(for example, medical doctors), status as people of influence (parliamentarians, authors) as
well as their ability to resist provl)Cll.tion. Some organizers expressed a preference for
people who were known 10 lhcm.

86. The mission's attention was drawn 10 allegations that one ofthc passengers on the
ship, who had logistical responsibilities with regard to the cargo on the Mavi Marmara, was

21
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convicted and served a term of imprisonment f9f his involvement jn the 199.6 hijacking of a
Russian ferry boat. The hijackers were demanding the release of Chechen prisoners at the
time.~

87. Participants raised money within lheir communities for the trip and also solicited
cash donations which would be given directly to the population ofGaza.

88. There was stringent security surrounding lite Mav; Mamara in the pon of Antalya
and all items taken on board wcre checked. Passengers and their luggage were subjected 10
security checks similar to those found in airports before boarding, including body searches
1l'Ie passengers who were tmnsfern:d from the Challenger I onto the Mavi Marmara on the
ocean were .subjected to the same security checks.

89. Similar meticulous security checks were carried out on passengers onboard the
Elc:l'theri Mesogios at the port in Greece. The Svendoni was primarily carrying passengers
but also had on board a few medical items, inclllCling an ultra-sound machine, which had
been donated. 1l1e boat's captain '):lerSOnally checked the machine and the boat to confirm
that there were no weapons or similar items on board. Witnesses also said that the cargo
onboard the Rachel Corrie was checked by three independent authorities and sealed before
it left Ireland. The seals remained intact when the ship was boarded by the Israelis.

90. Testimony did not show Ii elear logistical plan on how the large amounts of
humanitarian aid being carried by the cargo ships in the flotilla would be unloaded in Gua
given the limited port facilities in Gaza. One witness said that he understood thai IHH
workers already in Gaza were preparing eranes to off-load the cargo into smaller boalS.
Another witness confirmed this plan and said that the Eleftheri Mesogios itself had a crnne.

(tl) Planned course and destination a/the Flotilla

91. The vcssels participating in the flotilla 10 Gua departed from different ports at
different dates, as shown below and made for an agreed rendezvous point in international
waters, approximately 40 nautical miles south of Cyprus. The following vessels proceeded
to the rendezvous as follows:

14 May 2010 Gaue / departs. from Istanbul to Iskenderun

18 May 2010 Rachel Corrie departs qrecnore Port, Ireland bound for Malta. [t had
initially left Dundalk on 14 May but stopped for repairs.

22 May 2010 MalJi Marmara, departs from Istanbul to Antalya, Turkey

22 May 2010 Gaue J departs Iskenderun towards Gaza

24 May 201.0 OeIM Ydeparts from Istnnbul

24 May 201 0 E/ftheri Muogios departs Piraeus, Greece

25 May 2010 Movi Marmara arrives in Antalya, Turkey

25 May 20 10 S/endoni departs Piraeus, Greece (then makes an intermediary stop in
Rhodes).

28 May 2010 MalJf Marmara departs Antalya, Turkey.

29 May 20i 0 Challenger I and ChOllenger II, depart from Crete; Rochel Corrie
arrives in Malta.' .

~ Repofl rrom the Meir Amillnlelligen<:e and Terrorism Informntion Center, ISlllel, 26 August 2Ql0.
http;lIwww.u:rrorism.infoorg.iVmalam_multimedlafEnghshlcnLnlpdl7ipc_eI19 pdf

"
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30 May 2010 The six vessels congregate 8t a meeting point to the sooth ofCypnu;
Rachel Corrie departS Malta.

92. Embark8!ion documents for the vessels leaYing Turkey gave Gaza as the official
destination, although CU5loms documents Slaled the destination as Lebanon since the
computer system did not include Gaza as a dcsigJUlcd port of entry. Some ~w membas
intcrvjewcd from certain boats said that they undostood the inlenlioo 10 be to sail fil'$l to
Egypl and then cntet Geza waten from the west.

93. The norilla Commenced its jolrney towards Gaza. ISS4 haUl'S on 30 May 2010
from the position approximaldy slxty-five nautical miks wesl: oflne: COd of Lebanon.

(Ij Israeli odvanc, plans 10 ifllc~pt lire FlaliJ/a

94. According to the: Israel Chief of Defence Staff, the Israeli authorities leaned of
planned flotilla in early February 2010 and understood that its intention was to break the
blo<:Ude. Diplomatic efforts begM immediately to prevent the flotilla from sailing and
contingency plans began 10 be fonnulated. Formal initial ordeI'1 to undertake: prepanttions
10 intc:rccpfthe flotilla were issued in mid-April and by 12 Maya mission plan had been
developed which was approved by the Israeli ChiefofGc:nenl Staffon 13 May 2010.

9S. On 13 M.,. 2010, the IlnIc:li Chief of General SgfT sent a letter to the Defenc:e
Minisl:CI" an<! Prime Minister setting out options for dealing with the flotilla, inclUding the:
military opcm of commandc:ering and impounding the ships and detaining the passengers.
A further evaluation was made on 26 May and the Defence Minister fonnally authorised
the operation. Extensivc 1I'Bining and planning was undertaken. including the sening up of a
processing centre for detainees al the Port of Ashdod.

96. According to infomuuion available to lhc Mission, lhc Israeli fon:es deployed to
intercept the flotilla included a number of COI"Icnes and missile bolUS, helicopters, :todiacs,
surveillance aircraft and possibly two submarin:es. Soldier5 from the: "ShaYClel 13" special
naval forces unil toOk pert in the operation. The opertiion was given the code name
"Opcral:ion Sea Breeze" or "OperMian Sky Winds". .

97. Advanced Kienlificalion and surveillance of specific passengers by Israeli
imdligenc:e forces toOk piece, as indieaJ:ed by • Iaminlllc:d booldcl, recovered from the
possessions of one of the captured [SI1leli soldier5 which contained the names and
photographs of specifIC high profile individuals on each of the six vessels as well as
photographs of each vessel. One passenger Wll5 able to confinn that me photograph of her
included in the booklet Wll5 taken just a few days before the flotilla sailed. Advance:
surveillance: is confirmed by evidence attributed to Defence Minister Ehud Barak before the
Turkel Committee which indicated that specific;: ordm wc:rc taken "to conlinue inlelligc:ncc
rraclc.ing of the flotilla organizers, with an emphasis on the possibilily lhat amongst the
passengers in the flOtilla lhere would be: lU\'OI'" elements who would allemp( 10 harm Israeli,......-

(fJ P~por(ZljoflS to defend 1M YUSds jn the t:Wlll ofan anempf'o b«rd

98. It is <:lear to the Mission that, as the flolilla was assembling off Cyprus, participants
became aware of the full extent of 1stae:1i plans 10 inlerocpl, board and commandeer Inc
ships. Details of the IsnICli plans had been published in an Israeli newspaper. Many
passengers said thai, prior to this point, they believed that the Ismelis would try to block the
path of the flotilla and force it to divert, bUllhey did not imagine thai they would seek 10

.. Testimony ofEhud Barak, Mmista ofDcfencc, Tllrtd Committee: Pub!;c ConlmissJon oflnqulty.

1J
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board the vessels by fon:e. This belief pcBisled with many 1C$5-expcrimced passengers
,. right up to the moment afme inlCrcepl:ion, oorwithstanding (he precedent of the "Spirit of

Humani!)''' in 2009. Many passmgm told lhe Mission mat they did'nol realty believe that
the Israelis would attempt 10 board until lhe firs! boats approached the Mavi Marmara on
IhemomingofJl May.

PrrpDT(J1j()ll and p/anniJ'Ig 0/1 Uw Mavi MQr~

99. The full realisation that the Israelis were serious about commandeering lhe flotilla
spread through the passengers on the Mavi Mannara during the c:ourx of 30 May. There: is
c1eac evidence lhaI some peop!le on board the MaviM~ including senior IHH Ic:adcrs,
weft: prepared llCtively to defend the ship against any boarding ancmpt. Video .evidence
shows • meeting of about fifty to a hundmt passengers on the ship on 30 May lJI which the
IHH President and • number ofother prominent passengers spoke with some bravado about
preventing an Isradj takeovo of the ship. The preutn of the water hoses was seen being
tested on the: decIu the day before the interception.

100. FoUowing radio c:ommunicatiofl with the ISI1lCIi Navy and the sigtllirws ortM Isneli
vessels. it became appart:nI thai a l:Joarnina ofme ship was an imminent realiry. Passengers
were insuuctcd 10 put on their life jackets. Although there docs not xem 10 hI.,e been •
coordiOluod plan involving all p;weriIcn, some individuals grouped together with the:
intention 10 defend the ship. There is linJe evidence of any unified axnrnand to coordinate
the dc:fc:ncc: ofthc: ship.

101. During the nighl of 30 to 31 May, some p;wengen lOOk electric tools from the
ship's wOfttshop, which was noIltcpt kM:lted and sawed secttons of railings inlo lengths of
approximately one and a half metreS, apparenlly for use as weapons. Lengths of metal
chains from between the: railinp were also removed. When the ship's crew discovered Ibis,
the: lools were: confisca1cd and locked in the: radio room on the bridge. A numbeT of the
passengers were also provided with gas masks to counter the: effects ofteaJ gas. However.
the Mission notes mat !he ship's slandard fire-figl'lling equipment would have included
breathing apparatuS. Funhermore, the met thaI some passengers engaged in last minute:
efforts to fashion rudimmtary weapons shortly pc-iof to the inlercc:prion confirms the.
findings of the Mission that no weapons were broughl ()fl board the ship.

PreparQ/;on and planning on 1M Challenger J. S[endonJ. EJeftheri Mesogios and RQC~J

CO'rie .

102. Passengers and crew on the: Challenger I underwent lraining in passive resistance
techniques, non-violence and what to do if detained in Israel (including contaeting a lawyer
before embarkation). Wimesses said discussions took place in advance amongst the
passengers on how to respoi'ld to an Israeli altempt to board the ship during which the crew
had insisted that there should be no attempts to repel boarders wilh physical force. The
captain and crew opposed a suggeslion lhat access 10 the bridge should be blocked, as il
was feared this would incense the soldiers. The intention, according 10 witnesses, was to
show a symbolic resistance 10 the soldiers sufficient to dcmonslrale thaI the boarding was
unwanted. The planned response 10 a boarding of Ute Challenger 1 was in part informed by
!he experience of some· of the passengers on previous boats which had been intcra::p1ed by
the ISI1ltlis.

10). Witnesses aboard the Svendoni and the Eleftheri Mesogios confirmed similar
discussions aboanJ their vessels. On the Elefthc:ri Meso&iOs, it was also decided Ihat water
hoses could be misconsuucd as weapons and hence should nol be used. On the SI/c:ndoni,
passengers intended 10 sit on the decks and slow down any Mtempt 10 take control of me
bridge through passive resistuee.
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104. The passengers on board the Rachel Corrie agreed and notified the Israelis before
boarding that no resistance would be offered "to the Israeli forces.

PrepartUion and planning on the Gaue Jand De/rte Y

lOS. There is no information to suggest thai any specifIC preparations were: made by the
crew or passengers ofGazzel arid Defile Y to defend against a possible boarding.

B. The interception of the Gaza flotilla by the Israeli Navy on 31 May 2010

I. Faclbal De.uriptlon lind Findings

106. The Mission foon<! the following facts to hl'll/e been established to its satisfaction.

(a) Contacts between t~ Israeli Navy alld lhe ~$el.f ojlheflotifla

107. The flotilla left the rendezvous point 811554 hours on 30 May 2010 and proceeded
in a south-westerly direction on course 222 degrees. This course was altered to 18S degrees,
approximately due soulh, tI1 23]0 hoof' upon drawing \evel with the coast of Israel and in
order to maintain a course roughly parallel to the coast. The flotilla maintained a distance of
70 nautical miles from the coast since a NAVTEX (Navigational Telex) advisory had
warned that the Israeli militlU)' wcre conducting cxcrcises up to 68 nautical miles from the

"".".
108. The first radio contact with the: Israeli Navy was at approximately 2230 hours. Each
vessel was contacted by the Israeli Navy, onc after the other, on Channel 16 and requested
to switch to an alternativc chanOt!. Each vessel refused to switch. in order that the
conversation could be monitored by all shipping. The Israeli Navy reque$ted each vessel to
identify itself and state its dcstination. It then warned each vcssel, with some variations, it
was approaching an area of hostilities which is under a naval blockade, that the'Gata
maritime lllU is closed to all vessels and that they must change coum to deliver their
supplies to the Port ofAshdod in Israel. In some of the mcssages, the captain of each vessel
was warned that he would be held personally responsible for any consequences of a failure
to comply with the Israeli request. TlIe Israeli Navy's contacts were similar to toose in
relation to previous Free Gaza Movement efforts to enter Gua by sea.

\09. In response, the captains of the various vcssels Slated that their destination was Gaza
and the purpose was to deliver humanitarian aid. They also asserted that the Israeli forces
did not have the right to order the vessels to change course and that the blockade referred to.
was illegal. A representative of the Free Gaza Movcment spoke to thc Israelis on behalf of
the wholc flotilla, reiterating that the passengers were unanned civilians delivering
humanitarian aid and that none of the ships lhat should be considered as any form of threat
to Israel. At no stage was a request made by the Israeli Navy for the cargo to be inspected.
Contacts with the Israeli Navy continued until around 0200 hours when communication
equilW'cnt was jammed by the 1Sl1ltli forces, cuning them off to all extemal
communications. However, the vessels in the flotilla were able to maintain contact with one
another via handheld two-way ~io!.

110. In early June 2010, audio recordings were released by the Israeli authorities of
apparent exchanges belWeen the Israeli Nav'y and the Dtfne V which included insulting
references by unknown persons refelTing to 'AuschWItz' and the 1\ September 2001 attack
on the World Trade Centre in New Vorlc. However, the Mission is nol satisfied that these
rtQOrdings are authentic, nor has the Israeli government mad:e this material available to the
Mission for appropriate examination. The Mission was given positive evidence that no such
statements were made by anyone involved in communications on the flotilla.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/3112015



StateDept008858

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 1213112015

A/HRC/ISI2I

III. The crew and passengcn oflhe six vessds became visually aware: ofthe ptt:SenUo(
Israeli naval vessels some: time after the initial communications, between 2300 hours and

. midnight, both through sightings Ind two-way radio communication between the vessels.
The laraer Israeli ships and helicopters came into view of the~ of the vessels at
approximately 0100 hours on)1 May. Similar sighlings were made by Olher vessels in the
flotilla at around the Same: time.

(6) Evenls on board lire M. V Mavl Marmora"

(i) Inilial am:mpt to board the Mavi Marmara from the sea

112. ISI'lleIi zodiac boats made a fim attempt to board the Mavi Marmar. from the sea
shonly before. 0430 hours. Several zodiac baals appOllChed the ship at the Item from both
the port and starboard sides. The approach was acc:ot'nJ*I\ied by the firins (If non-lethal
weaponry onlO the ship. incIudill& smoke: and stun aren8des. lear-gas and paintballs. Plastic
bullets may also have been u:sed at this stage: however, despite: some claims thai live:
ammunition was abo fired from the zodiac boa1s., lhe Mission is noc satisfied ttlal this was
the casc. The smoke: and lear ps wen: not effective due to the strong sea brt:eZlt and later
due 10 the: downdraft from helicopters.

113. The: Israeli forces Buc:mpted 10 boarrl the. ship through IItlaching Iadden 10 the hull.
Passengers engaged in efforts 10 repel the attempted boarding using the ship's water hoses"
and the Ihr.owing of various items III lhe boats including chairs, sticks, a box of plates and
other objoctS that were readily to hand. This initial a"empt to board the ship proved
unsuccessful. It is the view of the Mission thai the Israeli foroes should have re-evaluate<!
their plans when it became obvious that IN"ing lheir soldiers on board the ship m.,- lead 10
civilian casualties.

(ii) Landing ofsoidiers ftom helicopters onlO the Mavi Marmara

114. Just minutes after soidien from the zodiac boats had made initial unsuccessful
. utempu to board, the flm helicopter applOachcd the ship III approximalely 0430 hours,

hovering above the top deck.. At this point between 10 and 20 passet1ger1 were located in
the central area of the top deck. although this number i·ncreased as other pes:setlgen Ieamed
of eventS on lhe top deck. lbe Israeli rorces used smoke and sl\m grenades in an attempt 10
clear 81'1 area for the landing of soldiers. The first rope lhat was let down from the helicopter
was taken by passengers and tied it to a part or the lop deck: and thereby rendered
ineffective for the purpose of soldiers' descent. A second rope was then let down rrom the

'I For the PIllpOses of Ibis report,lhe followlnl tenns are used 10 dcseribe the various decks of the Mlvi
Murnan: Top I)cck; - the roofofthc ship where \he sate:llite lower and funnel are locMcd, Bridge
Dcc:k -Ille dc:dt below the Top Deck ~Ic:h lives..:x::ess 10 the BrldlC> Bow Deck -lowest open dedi.
wilh _ 10 the &un! of!he ship LM tdevJ5ion broIdcasts _ milk &om .. optR dedc .ra It

the bKk of !be Bndge ()eck.

.. II ~ wonb norin& IhIl in .........oee WJlb the IIIIalIIlional M.,tlmc: Orpnizaion's cimll.
·Guidlnee 10 stlip owners and ship opcrMOrS, sblplUSlEr$lrItI erews 011 prevenrinl and 1MflP'USin&
ICl$ 0IpwK)' and III1Md robbery apinsl: sbips' fi'om J_ 2009. the lISe 01_ boses is
ra:om~ IS I me.B 10 pRYCIlIlll _peed boIrdinl by pinltes and IIrllIed robbr;n. 11040
Cin::al. M-..11Cm..1))4. date U J_ 2009, A1IlIeJI:.1*Il S7 JlIleIIS ilIlOW$: '1'be aue of_
hoses shoWd also be considered thou&" they ll1IY be dtlTIeUh III t:/'IlrIlfevasiw:JIl~1 is IIso
lIItllll piace.. Water pressures oflO Ib per square inch and above haw: de(en'ed Illd repulsed IIIOCken.
Noc only does the an.::ker have to filht apinst the p ofwater but !he now may swamp Ilislher boll:
.nd damlle engines and doctrical systans. Spec:illi fitlings for !TImina Iloses oould be ton5nkred
wftic:h woutd also provide protection for !he hose operator. A number ofspan: fire ho$cs oould be
rigged .lMItied down to be pressllrW:d It short notite If. potential .tllde. is deleeted.~

"
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heJicoplCf and the first group of soldiers descended. The Mission does nol find it plausible
that soldiers were holding their w~pons and firing as lhc:y descended on the .rope.
HowevCf, i, has concluded thot live ammunition was used from the helicopter onlo the top
deck prior 10 ~e dc:scenl orthe soldien.

115. With the available evidence it is difficult 10 delineate lhe exact (X)llrse of events on
the top dedi: between the lime orlhe tim soJdicf descending and Inc Isneli forces securing
amtrol of the deck.. A 6gbl ensued between passengers and lhe first soldim 10 descend
onto the lOp deck that resulled in It k:ast two soldief$ being pushed down onto the bridge
dedt below, where they \vefe involved in suugglcs .....ith groups of passengcn who
attempted 10 lake their weapons. The equipment jack~ of ac least one soldier was removed
as he was pushed over the side of the deck. A number of weapons were laken &om the
soldiers by passengm and thrown into the sea: one weapon, a 9mm pistol was unloaded by
a passenger, a former US Mllfine, in front of witnesses and then hidden in another part of
tnc ship in an attempt to retain evidence.

116. A number of the passengers on the top deck fooght with the soldiers using their fists.
Slicks, metal rods and knives.· At least one of the scldiers was stabbed with a knife or other
sharp objecL Witne:sses informed the Mission lhat their objective was 10 subdue and disarm
the so!dm so that they oould not harm anyone. The Mission is .satisfied on rhe ev:kienoe
lhat at least two pass rgas on the bridge dc:ct also used handheld catapults 10 propel small
projectiles It the helicoptets. The Mission has fOund no evidence 10 suggest thai any of the
passengers used firearms or that any firearms~ taken on board Ihe ship. Despite
requests. the Mission has not received any medical records Of other substantiated
information from the ISfBCli llUthorities regarding any firearm injuries sustained by soldiers
participating in the raid. Oocton examined the three soldiers taken below decks and no
firearm injuries were noled. Further, the Mission finds that the Israeli accounts so
inconsi~en1 and contradictory with regard to evidence of alleged firearms injuries to Israeli
soldiers thal it has 10 rcjca iL"

(iii) Deaths ofnine passengers and woundina ofa! leaSI 50 other passengers

111. Owing the operation co secure conrrol of the top ded::. the Israeli fonxs landc:d
soldicn from three helicopten. over a fifteen-minute period.J. The Israeli forces used
paintballs. plastic bullets and live ammUliition, fired by soldiers from the helicopter above
and soldiers who had landed on the top deck. The use ofliye ammunition during this period
resulted in fatal injuries to four passengers,n and injuries to at least nineteen others.,
fooneen with gunshot wounds. Escape points to the bridge deck from the top deck were
narrow and restricted and as such it was very difficult for passengers in this area to avoid

., The Mission has found no eviOenoe ofknives bein& taken 011 bl-d by peengcn CJr.c:ept ror one
nditioaal ceremonial knire. H_, tbe Mlvi MInn.. had six kitchens, eadl of Which was
stoc*al wim IISlaI mliDlf)' knives.

11 In hts ~imony ID die Twtd Committee CIa II Au&vst 2010, CbieforGenetai Staff'~n~

10 one scNdia bang -shot in his.women by one ordle lCIivisu- and lhIl "ill the eourw ordle bMlle.
fi...e soldiers are WOWIdcd by stIbbinp, blows II'ld s/loo(in"- However," thE Special SllUn, oflhe
Humm Ripu Counal oa I June 2010 Ambls.slldcw Aharon Leshno Yur, Pumanc:nt Rqm:senwi...e
oftsrKllO me United Nlfions, Geneva SIlled mat pISSCI'Iscrs Mshottwo Is....:li soldiers~. In COIItraSl,
In tile S'lte's Response It the Hlbeas Corpus helrina oa 2 JUlie 2010, no specific nferc:nce is made 10
any l'rlCh soldiers betrlg shoI.

JI In his lcstimony to the TUIte' Committee on 11 AuguSl WIO, ChicfofGencnl Slaff Ashkenazi stlte<!
thlt the rIB! helicopter carrit'd IS soldien, the second helloopter CllTttd 12 soldiers and the th ird
helicopter earritd 14 soktien..

n FIhri Yalda, FIII'kan Dopn, hnhun Bilp and Ali Haydlr Bengi.

21
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being hit by live rounds. At lcast one of lhose killed was using a video camera and not
involved in any of the fighting with the soldiers. The ll'IIjority of gunshot wounds received
by passengers were to their upper torsos in the head, Ihonx, abdomen and back. Given the
relatively small number of p8SSCngeJ'S on the top deck during the incident. the Mission is
driven to the COnclUSKlO thaI the va5I majority were in reoeipt ofgtrI5hol wounds.

liS. IMaeli soldiers continued shooting at passengtn who had already been wounded,
with live ammunition, soft baton charges (bcanbe&t) and plastic bullets. Fomuic analysis
demonstn.tcs that two of the passcnaers killed on the lOp deck received wounds compatible
with beina shot at close f1Il\8e while lying on the ground; Furbn Dopn received a bullet in
the face and Ibnahim Bilp received a (lUll wound from. soft baIon round (bcanbea) fU'Cd
at such close proximity to his head tha parts such as wadding penclratc:d his skull entered
his brain. Furthermore, some of the wouoded were subjectc:d 10 fi.arthcr violence including
bein& hit with the bun of. weapon, being kicked in ltle hW, chc:sl and bKIc and being
vabally Ilbuscd A number of the wOtnicd passengers wa'e handcuffed and then Idt
unattended (Of some lime before beina dragged 10 the &ont of the dcdt by their ann! Of....
119. ~ the ISfaeli forces had sc:cured control of the lOp deck they undertook measmes
to move down to the bridge deck below in order 10 take over the: ship's br1d&e and thus take:
contfOl of lhe ship. In n:labon to this Opet1ltion, • seric:s of shootin& incidents occurred
cenln:d on the ponside doorway whiCt! gives access to lhe main stairwell on lhe bridge
deck. This door is ncar to the twch and ladder, which allows acocss from the lOp deck to
the bridge deck.

120. Isracli soldim fired Jive ammunition both from the: top deck at pauengm on the:
bridge dc:d: below and after they had moved down to the bridge deck. At least four
pessc:ngc:rs wen: killed,n and • IeasI nine injwed (five with firearms injuries) during this
phase:. None of the four passengm who were killed, including I photographa who at the
time: of being shot was engaged in taJcjng photograp/'II tnd was shot by an Israeli soldier
positioned on lhe top deck above, posed any threat to the ISlUli forces. 1berc: was
oonsidtnble Jive fire: &Om Israeli soldiers on the top deck and I number of passengers wcrc
injured or killed whilst (tying to take refuae inside the door or assisting olher to do so.
Wounded passengc:n were: brought into the ship lhrough the stairwell and through the
ship's bridge room and were helped downstairs whcrc they could be given some form of

. rnc:diCllI treatment by doctors and othc:rs on board.

121. One wilness described Ihe circumstances in which one: passenger was kilJc:d on the
bridge deck:

1 saw two S()ldic:rs on lop of the roof slanding there holding their guns down at
some:t:hing on lhe roof that I couldn't see. There were two guys hidden underneath a
walkway of the ship to the right hand side and I was screaming It them not to move.
The twO passc:ngeB were below the soldiers. They could not see the soldiers and the
soldiers could not sec: them white they were hidden under the walkway. Tti~ the
guys moved out·mui".g thc:mselves visible as they tried 10 ron towards lhe: mctal
doof. One: man made: it to open lhe doof and got inside. The Olhef man must havc
been shot. I think he was Shol in the head from the WlY he looked, he wasn'l moving
at all. He was twenty or thiny metres away from me. When the: sc:c:ond man gOl shot,
the first man opened the door and using it as 8 shield Iric:d to reach out for the
second man. He managed 10 reach him and _ pulling him by his righl arm. I
couldn'l soc any biood, but he WllSfI't movins't all.

"
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122. A group of up 10 twenty p8SSCngers, some holding sticks and rods and wearing gas
masks, were located on or around the stairwell inside the ship. One passenger Slandingjust
inside t!'le door Wa! shot through the broken porthole in the door by a soldier standing a few
metres aWly on the bridge deck oUl$ide.

123. During the shootings OIl the bridge declc and as it became apparent that a large
number of passen&erS had become injured, Bulen! Yildirim, lhe Pn:s.delll of IHH and one
of principel organisers of the flotilla, remo\lcd his whilc shirt which was then used as a
white flag 10 indicate a surrender. This does no( appear 10 have had any efTed: and live
firing continued on the ship.

124. Israeli forca moved down 10 the bridge deck and moved rapidl)' to take over the
bridge room towards the fronl of the ship. The doorway and windows of the bridge room
came under fire and the ship's captain' ordered the ship's engines 10 be cut. Israeli soldiers'
entered the bridge room through the door and broken window. The erew were made to lie
on the ground at gunpoint. The: captain remained standing but was held at gunpoint.

(iv) Shootings II! the bow deck, the: release: ofthe 1s~li soklim and end of the operstion

12S. During the initial fighting on ttK lOp deck direr: Israeli StMdicrs were take\. under
control a1d brought inside the ship. While some pass ngers wished 10 harm the: soldiers,
Olhc:r pass ogas en5Uft:d that they were protected and able to receive rudimentary medical
trealmcnt trnm doctors on board. Two of the: soldim had received woonds 10 the abdomen.
One of the soldiers had a superficial wound to the abdomen, caused by a sharp object,
which per1elrated 10 the: subcutaneous tiSSIJe.. None of the Ihree soldier.! had received
gunshot injuries, according to doctors who examined them. All three soldiers were in a slate
of shock and were sutttfi~g from cuts, bruises and blunt foree trauma.

126. As the seriousness of incidenu on the outer decks became apparent. there was
growing concern' among some of die flotilla organisers lhat holding the captured Israeli
soldiers may have serious implicalions for lhe 3eCUfity of all passengcn on board.Jo I! was
decided that the soldien should be released and they ~ere taken to the bow of the lower
deck. Once on the bow dect two of the soldien: jumped into the sea and were piclced uP by
Israeli boats. The lhird soldier did not jump and w8s rapidly joined by Israeli soldiers who
came down from the top declc.

127. At least four passengers were injured on lhe bow afdle ship, both before and around
Inc time thai the Israeli soldim were released. At leasl two passengers received wounds

.... from live ammunition, while others received injuries from soft baton charges, includingo~
.doctor who Wl!5 tending to injured passengers.

128. The Israeli forces stated that the active phase of the Israeli forces opctation
concluded It OS 17 hours.~ once the ship was under their control and the dlree soldiers were
released. During the -4S·SO minUle OperBlion, nine passengers were killed. more than 24
passengm had rc:ceivcd serious injuries caused by live ammunition and a 1lU"JC number of
other passengers had received injuries caused by plastic rounds. soft baton ehatges (bean­
bags) a1d other means,

~ II aJsc apPears thai the ISrllcli forces _rc planning 10 enter the ship'5 ClIbil'lS in order 10 locate the:
lhree soldiers' In his IC5limony 10 the Turkel Committee on II Augll.5l 20 10, COGS Ashkenazi Slated
ll\at at the lime when the Isncli roru:s 5pOItcd the lhree soldiers on the bow Occk'11lc force
.com"''''' (_ ptqlarill11l0 nl5b the passatICB' arellO order 10 IOCMC the mlSSl"l sold~-

~ A5 stilled by COOS A5hkcnazJ m bis 1c:Slim0ll)' 10 the Turkel Commiueeon II Augu5I2010.

"
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Deoths occurring on the Top Deck (roof)

FW'kan Dogan

Furkan Do~an, a nineleen-year old with dual Turkish and United States citizenship, was on
the central area of the lOp deck filming wilh a small video camera when he was first hit
wilh live fire. It appears Ihal he was lying on the de<:k in a conscious. or semi.conscious,
SUilt for some lime. [I total Furkan m:eived five bullet wounds, to lhe face, head, back
tho{8X. left leg and foot. All of the entry wounds were on the back of his body. except for
the face wound which entered 10 the fight of his nose. ACl:.Ording to forensic analysis..
tanooing around the wound in his face indicates that the shot was delivered at poinl blank
range. Furthermore, thc 'rajectOf}' of the wound, from boltom to top, together with a vital
abrasion to Ihc left shoulder thai could be consistent wilh the bullet exit point, is compatible
with the shot being received while he was lying on the ground on' his back. The olher
wounds were nol the result of firing in contact, near contact or close range, but it is nol
othelWise possible to determine the exact firing range. The wounds to the leg and fOOl were
most likely received in a sllUlding position.

Ibrahim BUgen

lbnlhim Bilgen, a 60 year old Turkish citizen, from Siirt in Turkey, wason the top deck and
was one of the fiBI passengers 10 be shot. He received a bullet wound 10 the chest, the
trajectory of which was from above and 001 at close range. He he.:! a further IwO bullet
wounds to the right side of the back IUld right buttock, both back to fronl. These wounds
would not have caused instant death, but he would have bled 10 death within a shon time
without medical attention. Forensic evidence shows that he was shot in the side of the head
with a soft balon round at such elose proximity and that an entire bean bag and its wadding
peneuated the skull and lodged in the brain. He had a further bruise on the right flank
consistent with another beanbag wound. The wounds are consistent with the deceased
initially being shot from soldiers on board the helicopler above and receiving a further
wound to the head while lying on the ground, a1r~y wounded.

FQhri YQfd~

Fahri Yaldiz, a 42 year old Turkish citizen from Adiyaman. received five bullet wounds,
one to the chest, one to the left leg and Ihree to the right leg. The chest wound was caused
by a bullet that enlCTed near the left nipple and hit the heart and lungs before exiting from
the shoulder. This injury would have caused rapid death.

A(; Heyder Beng;

According to the pathology repon, Ali Heyder Bengi, 8 38 year old Turkish citizen from
Diyarbakir. received six bullet wounds (one in the chest, one in the abdomen, one in t!'le
right arm, one in the right thigh and two in the left hand). One bullet lodged in the chest
area. None of the wounds would have been instantly fatal, but damage to the liver caused
bleeding which would have been fatal if not stemmed. There are several witness accounts
which suggest that Israeli soldiers shot the deceased in the back and chest at close range
while he was ly'ing On me deck lIS a consequence of initial bullet wounds.

Deaths occurring on lhe Bridge Deck. portside

Cew:Jel KiIi~/ar

Cevdel Kilil;lar. 8 38 year old Turkish citizen from Istanbul, was on the Mavi Marmara, in
his capllCity as a phOIOgrapher employed by IHH. At the momen.t he was shot he was
standing on the bridge deck on the pan side oflhe ship near to Ihe door leading to the main
stairwell and was attempting to photograph Israeli soldiers on the lOP deck. According 10
the pathology repons, he received a single bullet to his forehead between the eyes. The

30
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bullet followed a horizooUlltrajectory which crossed lhe middle of the bm;n from frool to
back. He WQuld have died iRSllntly.

Certriz A.tyKz and Cengiz Songiir

41 year old Cengiz Akyfiz from Hahly and 4(j ye. old Cengiz SongOr from Izmir, both
Turkish citi%enS, were injured on the bridge dock in close succession by live fire from
above:. They had been sheltering and were shot as they attempted to move inside the door
kading 10 the stairwell. Cmgiz AkyO:z rec:eivcd a shot 10 the head and il is probable (hal he
died iOSWltly.

The pathology report shows four wounds: to the neck, face, chest and thigh. Cengiz SongGr
rec:eived a single bullet to the upper oentJa1 thorax below the neck, shot from a high angle,
which klclged in the righl thoracic cavity injuring the heart and aorta. Unsuccessful effons
Wete made by doctors inside !he ship to resuscitate him Ihrough heart massage.

Cnin TOJ'PIofl1l '

(:c:tinT~lu, a 54 ye:Nold Turkish cili:tCll from Adana had been involved in helping to
bring injured passengers inside the ship to be IlUttd. He was also shot ckJse 10 the door on

""
bridge dc:c:k. He did not dae instantly and h.is wife, who was also 00 board the ship. was with
him when he died. He was shot by lhtec bullets. One bullel: efllercd from thc top the soft
tissues of the right side of me ba:k of !he head, exiled from the neck -.d then ~tered
into the thorax. Another buIld: enleft\d the left buttock and lodged in the right pelvis. The
third enlcnd the right groin and ellited from the lower bKk. There arc indications that the.
victim may have bctn in a crouching or bcndina position when this wound was sustainccl.

Dtaflu and seriolUfy wouNkd occvrring U1lU1b1own localioru

Hectic! Yildirjm

The location and circumsraooes oflhe shooting and death ofNccdd Yildirim. a J I year old
Turkish citizen from Istal1bul, remlin unclear. He was shOllwice in the thorax, once from
the front.and once from the back. The trajectory ofboth bullets was from lOP 10 bottom. He
also received bruises consistent with plastic bullet impact

Wounding a/Up Su/eymon SuyltTneZ (in 0 coma)

The serious nature of wounds to U&ur Suleyman SGylemez, a 46 year old Turkish citizen
from Ankara, which include atlcas! one bullet wound to the head, have left the victim in a
coma in an Ankara hos ilal. He remains in I critical condition with I serious head in'ul')',

(v) Treatment of injured On·the Mavi Marmara

129. Whilst the Israeli opet8lion was still under way, efforts were made 10 tend to
wounded passengers inside Ihe ship by other passengers, amongst whom wete around 15
docloOrS, nurses and others with medical training. including an ophlhalmologisl and
orthopaedic specialist. Prior 10 the attlCk the docton had met and ayeed 10 use the ship's
small medical room. bul Ihete was no anticipated or preparatiop for the nllure of injuries
thaI transpid The limited medicines and lack of appropriate equjpnlenl made il very
difficult to properly treat wounded peBOlU, particularly lhose who had received live fire
injuries and required immediate surgery. By the end of the Israeli opention more Ihan lhiny
persons were being'lre8led inskle the cabins, primarily' in the lower deck in makeshift
surgery areas., twef\ty of whom were in a critical condition.

130. The flotilla organisers and olber passengen engaged in efforts 10 request the Israeli
forces 10 provide the nc:ccssary tl"'CIfmCnl ID the wounded persons. One orpniser used the
ship's intercom ID n:qucsl usislanc:c in Hebrew and persons .Iso COfT\m\lnicaIc:d directly

]I
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through the cabin windows or by placing signs, written in English and Hebrew, in the
ship's windows. These: allempts proved unsuccessful and it was up to two hours before tile
Ismeli forces took OUt the wounded persons. Howeyer,!tIe' wounded were required to leaye
the cabins themselyes, or taken outside in a rough manner, without apparent concern for the
nal\Jre oflheir injuries and the discomfort that this would cause.

131. The wounded passengers were taken to the front of Ihe' top deck where they joined
othCT passengers injured during the operation on the top deck and where the bodies of
pc:rsons killed during the operation had been left. Wounded passengers, including persons
seriously injured with liye fire wounds, were handculTed with plllStic cord handcuffs, which
were often tied very tightly causing some of the injured to lose sensiliYily in their hands.
lbese plastic handcuffs cannot be loosened withoot being cui off, but can be tighlened.
Many were also stripped naked IlI1d then had to wait some time, possibly as long as two­
three hours, before receiving medical treatment Medical treatment was given·1O a number
of wounded persons on the top deck by the ISl1leli forces.'"

132. Oyer several hours the wounded passengers were then airlifted by Israeli forees
helicoptCf'S from ,the ship to hospitals in Israel. lJ Howeyer, some of the wounded remained
on board the Mavi Marmara, at least one of whom had injuries eaused by liye ammunition
llfId did not receive appropriate medical treatment until after the ship's arrival at the port of
Ashdod in Israel many hoors later. .

(Yi) Search and initial dClention ofMavi Marmara passengers

133. All other passengers on the Mavi Marmara were taken onc-by·one from the cabin
areas and onto the ell.ternal deck areas and wm searched. The vast majority of passengers,
including the ship's captain and crew, were then handculTed wilh plastic handcuffs and
forced to kneel on the various dei::ks for some hours. Some women, elderly men IlIld
persons fTom weslern countries were nDt.handculTed, or were iemporarily handcuffed and
then uncuffed aftCT a relatively short period of time and were then permined to sit on the
benches. Most of those kneeling were drenched by water from the blades of the helicoptCT
and were thus also in wet clothing throughoul this period and were very cold. Other
passengers ell.posed on open decks received serious sun-bum to their skin as a result of
many hours exposure: medical reportll show that at least thirteen passengers received first­
degree burns as a consequence. During the course of the twelve-hour journey 10 Ihe port of
Ashdod in IS11lel the passengers were broughl. inside the ship and allowed to sit on the
aYaila.ble seating.

134. In the process of being detained, or while kneeling on the outet decks for seyeral
hours, there was physical abUse of passcngers by the Israeli forces, including kicking and
punching and being hit with the butts of rifles. One foreiWi correspondent, on board in his
professional ca~ily, was Ihrown on the ground Ill'ld kicked and beaten before being
handcuffed. The passengers were not allowed to speak: or to move and \here were frequent
instances of yerbal abuse, including derogatory SOlual remarks about the female
passengers. Passengers were denied access to toilet facilities or made to wait for lengthy
periods before being esconed 10 the toilet and then forced to use the toilet with Israeli
soldiers watching and while handcuffed. Some 'passengers were in serious discomfon as a
result, while others used makeshift receptacles, such as plastic bottles and others still were

~ A<:eordinglO the testimony.ofCOGS Ashkenazi to the Turkel Committee on 11 AugLJ5l2010, field
surgeries ~rt perfonned on roortec:n passengers on boafd the ship

.. According 10 the lcstimony ofCOGS Ashkenazi to \he Turkel Committee on 11 AuguSl2010, 31
WOUfIded passengers Ind seyen wounded l5TICii soldiers were airlifted IJom the ship utilizing
"tIpprollimalely 40 helicopter eYllCUllionsH lind an wounded had been eVJC\lated by 1230 hoors.

J2
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forced to urir'latc on themselves. The Israeli forces also employed dogs and some
passengers received dog bile wounds. Some witnesses who sufTer from chronic medical
conditions, such as diabetes or heart conditions, W~ not provided access 10 their required
medicines which were taken by Israeli soldiers.

135. The manner in which plastic handcuffs were Ilttached 10 the wrists of passengers
caused severe pllin and discomfe:n. There was widespread misuse of the handcuffs by the
Israeli soldiers who lightened the plastic handcuffs to an c;'tlent that caused pain. swelling, Ii

loss of blood circulation in the hands and the loss of sensitivitY in their hands and fingers.
Most passengers who requested that the handcuffs.be loosened were ignored or it resulted
in the handcuffs being further ti~tened. A number of passengers are still experiencing
medical problems related to the handcuffing three months laler and forensic rcJlOf'U confirm
thaI at least fifty-four passengers had received injuries, U'aIlsversal abrasions and bruises, as
a result of handcuffing on board the Mavi Mamara.

(c) Evems aboard lhe ehoflengu f

136. Passengers and crew on the Challenger I, the smallest and fasles! vessel in the
flotilla, were able to witness tile first moments of the assault on the Mavi Marmara. OllCC it
became appaJent that the Israelis intended [0 commandeer the ships. the decision was made
for the Challenger I to accelerate o.ut of tile fonnation of the flotilla to allow more time' for
the journalists aboard.to transmit news of tile asS8l1lt to the outside world via the boat's
satcllite inteme:t connection which remained in operation, but also in tile nope: that at least
one boat might still be able: to reach Gala. The boat was chased by one of the Israeli
corvette boll1S which il was unable to outrun. Eventually Ihe starboard engine lost oil
pressure and tile captain, concemed the Israelis might ram the boat, shut down the engines.

137. The boat was intercepted by two Israeli boats and a helicopter. Passengers on the
board said that at [east one stun grenade was launched althe boat by the Ismelis before they
attempted to board. Passengers on the decks had decided in advance 10 employ passive
resistance techniques to resist symbolically the Israeli soldiers boarding the boat. The
passengers stood unarmed side-by-side blocking the path of the soldiers. Soldiers opened
fire willi paintballs and rubber bullets as they boarded, hining and injuring one woman in
the face with either a plastic bullet or a paintball. Another woman was bruised on her back
by from rubber bullets.

138. Once on board. the soldiers moved to take control of the fly bridge. PassengCfS
obstructing access were forcibly removed. On entering the fly bridge, the soldiers were met
with no resistance, but a female journalist sustained bums on her arms from an electroshock
weapon fired by an Israeli soldier. Witnesses said Ihatthe primary concern of the soldim
seemed to be the confiscation of photographic equipment and media.

139. The passive resistance offered by the passengers was met with force. One woman's
head was hie against the deck of the boat and then slepped on by an Israeli soldier.
Passengers were handcuffed very tightly wim plaslic ties behind their backs, while the
woman injured in the face was left unattended.

140. Several passengers said that it was clear mat Ihe Isrneli soldiers knew who was
onboard as they referred to some passengers by name. A plaslicised bo9klel recovered from
a soldier on the Mavi Mannara and filmed identified specific passengeB on several boats
with names and photographs including the Challenger I.

141. One crew member observed that the soldiers were very young, seemed frightened
and that were initially poorly organized. Soldiers behaved aggressively from the OUI5Cl

towards me passengers. Passengers were handcuffed with plastic ties and denied access to
lhe toilet. One elderly man was obliged to urinate in his clothes because he was refused
access to the toilet. lbere was an attempt 10 forcibly eject one woman from Ihe boat into

"
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one of the zodi~. Two women had hemp bags placerl over their heads for an extended
period. The woman injured in the face in the initial stage of boarding was left unaltmded
for an extended period, even though there was an army medic on board. The physical
violence was described lIS "unwarranted and excessive". No distinction was made between
activists and joumalists, despite the presence of several well-respected international
journalists on board. '

142. The boat arrived in Ashdod at around 1100 houl'S on 31 May. Severol passengers
joined arms to resist disembarkation, protesting that they had been brought to Israel against
their will from international walen. Two female p35S(:ngers were handcuffed and forcibly
removed while a male passenger was threatened with an electroshock weapon al point
blank range. Passcngen were led off the boat one·by·one accompanied by IwO Israeli
officers.

(d) EllenlS aboard lire Sfendoni

14]. The operation to board the Syendoni took place: simultaneously with the assault on
the Mayi Marmara Soldiers were able to ·c1imb directly on board in a straightforward
manner from zodiac boats without the need to usc: grappling irons or other equipment. Prior
to boarding a number of stun grenades, plastic bullets and paint balls were fired at the boat
from soldiers on the zodiacs: at least tWQ passengers were hit, one on the back of the head.
According to a medical doctor on board, one of snm grenades landed in the confined space:
of the bri<!ge, injuring a number ofpropIe and causing damage to the hearingofone man.

144. Once aboard, the soldiers proceeded to the bridge of Ihe ship. The passengers had
planned to Sil down on the decks of the boat to show passive resistance, bul in the event the
plan was only panially implemented, Many of the passengers, including the elderly, stayed
below decks in the mt\in lounge. On deck, passengers linked arms around the bridge. The
Israelis then ptoceeded to fire electroshock weapons at the protesting passengers 10 ~lear

acee!lS; a merlical doctor, who was himself hun in this way, later treated numerous
electrical bum injuries to passengers. When two Israeli soldiers entered Ihe bridge, one of
the crew grabbed the wheel tightly, protesting that Ihe boat was in international waters, A
soldier hit him with the butt of hi! gun and in the ensuing scume the caplain was ki~ked in
the back, punched several times in the face and received electric shock bums from an
electroshock weapon.

145. At one point after the boat was taken under control one passenger was roughly
trealed and restrained at the hands and feet with plastic ties. He screamerl in protest and
because the ties were too tight At the insistence ofa medical docIor, the handcuffs were
removed. TIle man then ran and jumped into the sea. The passenger was later picked up by
another boat. ,.

146. The Israeli forces took control of tile boaa and the passengers were made to sit down,
Some passengers were restrained with plastic ties for an initial period. but Il\QSt were not
The soldiers attempted to stop a medical doctor from treating the passengers' injuries.
saying that the army medical officer on board would treat Ihem. But since he was masked
and armed like the other soldiers, no passengers would consent to be trealed by him. The
doctor said thai they would have to shoot him to prevent him doing his job.

147. Passengers were sean:hed one·by-one and taken to the main salon. Passengers said
thai access lO water and to the toilet was only possibly with difficulty after repeated
requests and not all passengers were granted access, Passengers were allowed to prepare
food which they refused to eat until an anny cameraman ceased filming them for
propaganda reasons. Witnesses said that lhe soldiers were always aggressive·and shouting
and pointing their guns, but otherwise no one was ill-treated or restrained.
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{t.} Ewnt$ aboord the £/ejlheri Mesogios

148. ISTlleli forces boarded the Elefthcri Mesogios after 04]0 hours, conc~rrcnlly with lhe
assault on the Mavi Marmara and Sfendoni. S;pldiers boarded from three zodiac boals, using
grappling irons and rope IlKIders to climb the sides of the ship. Although batbed wire had
been placed around the ship, the soldiers were able to board relatively quickly.

149. The passengers did not engage in any pro-active resistance to the take-over of the
ship but used passive resistance methods, blocking access to the bridge with their bodies.
The Israeli forces used physical force, electroshock weapons, plastic bullets and paint balls
to cleM the atea.. A number of passengers were injured, including one passenger whose leg
was fractured leg.

ISO. All the pa$$CTlgers and crew were handcuffed. Israeli soldiers confiscated their
passports and subjected them to body searches. 1llose who refused 10 cooperate: were:
roughly treated. According to a number of witnesses, some people who refused to surrender
their passports were assaulted, including one woman who was punched in the stomach and
one man who was wrestled to the ground by two soldiers, kicked and beaten. One passenger
said that the hand ties were too tight and when he asked for taem to be loosened they were
instead tightened further.

151. Witnesses stated that the passengers were almost continuously filmed on video
cameras by the Israeli forces. One passenger said that he' felt this was being done
deliberately to humiliate the passengers and that this contributed directly to an elderly
passenger experiencing an anxiety attack.

(j) Events aboord {he M. V. Gazu I and M. V. Defne Y

152. Israeli forces boarded the M.V. Gaue I from zodiacs boats sometime after 0530
hours. The crew and passengers on board offered no resistance and the Israeli forces took
control of the ship without incident. Passengers were ordered onto the deck while the ship
was searched with dogs and then later taken to the di'ning hall where they were body­
searched. During the eight-hour journey to Ashdod they were not handcuffed and wete
provided with food.

153. Israeli forces boarded the M.V. Defne Y by fast rope from helicopters at
approximately 0530 hours. The crew and passengers on board offered no resistance and the
Israeli forces took control of the ship without incident. They were then kept within the
cabins unlil Ihey arrived in the port of Ashdod. No crew members or passengers were
handcuffed and the Israeli soldiers brought food from the lcitchens for them to eat. One
passenger, a ClUTler.lman working for the IHH organisation, said that he was interrogated for
a five hour period and physically assaulted, il'! rehuion to a video tape that he had hidden.

(g) £venlSaboard lhe M.V. Rochel Corrie on 5 JUM 2010

154. The Rachel Corrie was delayed in departing Ireland and stopped in Malta for
passengers to embn The ship therefore was unable to join the rest of the flotilla at the
meeting point south of Cyprus. Nevertheless, it W"as intercepted by the Israeli forces lUld the
people on boilrd went through similar experiences to those on the other ships. There was a
tOlal ofnine erew and eleven passengers on board including a number of high-profile public
figures. .

155. The passengers aboard the Rachel Corrie, having leamed of the interception of the
flotilla b)' satellite phone, unanimously decided to proceed to Gaza as planned as a mark of
respect for those who had died. The erew were consulted and also agreed to continue. A
press release was issued confirming the decision to continue.

3S
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156. On 3 June:, the Irish Government engaged in negotiations"with the Government of
Israel to guarantee that the cargo of aid aboard the Rachel Corrie could be delivered to
Gaza if the ship diverted 10 the port of Ashdod. The passengers on the ship did not
participate in these: negotiations and decided 10 reject the ofTer sin<:e their objective was not
only 10 deliver the aid but also to break what they considered the illegal siege ofGaza

157. The ship continued its journey towards Qua. n,e interception oflhe vessel followed
the~l of the earlier in~ions. but without \/tolmce, on f June. A number of
Israeli naval vessels came illU) vtew and radio eontaet commenced II about 0630 hours. The
captain was informed that Gaza was a closed milita1}' zone and that the ship should 00l
pt'tlOOCd. The Rachel Corrie responded thai it was • civilian ship delivering humanitaJian
aid and mill their cargo, whicfl had been checked and scaIcd by the aulhorities in Ireland.
did not constitute a threat to Israel.

158. The passengers on the ship noted with i"illuian that the Israelis continually referred
to Ihe ship by its former narT\c, the M. V. Linda. The ship had been renamed shanly before
leaving Ireland to commemorate an American woman. Rachel Corrie, who had been killed
by an Israeli bulldozer in the Gua Strip in 200].

159. When the Israelis warned of their intention 10 board the: vessel, the pas$Cflgtn
rejected Israel's rigtlllO board since they were: in inlemational wlten and did not IXlnStitute
I threal: bul stated thai: there would be no violent resistance to I boarding. The ship's
communication capabilitY was jlmmcd. The engines were cut by the: captain and. II: IrOUnd
liDO hours, zodiacs apprneched the: ship and sokIiers boarded in accordance with In agreed
procedure. The passengers and crew were gllher amidships and sit with the.ir hands
outstretched, while one man controlled the boat in the wheel house. Around 3S 8mled
soldiers. including three women, boatOed in full riot gear. The boarding proceeded
peacefully. According to one witness, the ship was ]5 naulical miles from Gua al Ihis
point.

160. The lead passenger, wno had conuol of the ship jusl prior 10 the boarding, was
handcuffed and made 10 kneel 81 the back. of the ship for approximlltcly 45 minutes Ifler
which he was placed with the: crew. His wife was no( allowed 10 see him during most of the
journey to Ashdod. The othef passengers had their passpons checked, were searched and
then made to sil in the sun for sevc:ral hours while the ship was se8fChed. The ship was men
taken 10 Ashdod without incident.

161. The Israeli Chief of General Slaff,tatiFying before the Turkel Committee, cited the
Rachel Corrie as an example of a humanitarian ship which had accepted to be diverted to
Ashdod in order that lhe aid could be delivered to the Gaza Strip by land. This contradicts
lhe assertion by passengm of Ihe ship that they were boarded after protesl and were taken
10 Ashdod qainst their will.

2. t.q;al Analysis orlbe use orrorc:e ill ialen-!p1inl tlle CaUl Rolilla

(a) E:xassiYe U.J~ offorce oN1 the righl 10 life and 10 physical ifllegrity

162. Article 6, paragraph I of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights
stales:

Every human being has the inherent righl to life. This tight shall be protccted by
taw. No one shall be arbitrarily deprived of his life.

This right is non-dcrogable.

163. Insofar as the Israeli inleroeplion of the flotilla was unlawfu~d the Mission
considers thai it was unlawful---the use of for<:t by the ISJaCli forees in seizing conlrol of
the Mayi Marmara and other vessels was also p'imojocie unlawful since: there WIS no legal

"
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basis for the Israeli forces to conduct an assaull and interception in intemalional walers.
Moreover, in undertaking these operations and regardless of the legality of the operation,
the Israel; forces were obliged 10 do so in accordance with the law, including Israel's
international human rights obligations.

164. The Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials prescribes in Article 2 thai "in
the: performance of their dUly, law enforcement officials shall respect and protect human
dignity and maintain and uphold the human rights of all persons"; and article) continues
"Law enforcement officials may use force only when strictly nea;ssary and to the eximt
required for !he performance of their duty". This article clearly determines that the use of
firearms is considered as an extreme measure and lIlat whenever the lawful usc of force and
fireanns ;s unavoidable, law enforcement officials shall minimize damage and injury and
respect and preserve human life.

165. In boarding the Mavi Marmara, both from the sea and from the air, the Israeli forces
met a level of resistance from some of Ihe passengers on board that was significant and, it
appears, unexpected. Howeva, there is no available evidence to support the claim that an)'
of the passengers had or used firearms at 80)' stage. In the initial phases of fighting with the
Israeli soldiers on the top deck, three Israeli soldiers were disarmed and taken inside the
ship. At this point, there may have been ajustifiable belief of an immediate threat to life or
serious injury of certain soldiers which would have justified the use of firearms againSl
specific passengers.1I

166. Principle 9 of the Basic Principles on the Use of Fireanns b)' Law Enforcement
Officials stipulates that "Law ertforcement officials shall nOi use firearms against persons
except in self-defence or defence of others against the imminent threat of death or ~ious
injury, to prevent the perpelT8tion of a particularl)' serious crime involving grave threat to
life (...) and onl)' when less extreme means are insufficient to achieve these objectives. In
an)' event, intentional lethal use of firearms rna)' onl)' be made when stricti)' unavoidable in
order to protect tife."

167. Nevertheless, throughout the operation to seize control of the Mavi Marmara,
including before the live fire restriction was eased, lethal force was employed b)' the Israeli
soldiers in a widespread and arbitrary manner which caused an unnecessarily large number
of persons to be killed or serious I)' injured. Less extreme means could have been emplo)'ed
in nearl)' all instances of the Israeli operation, since there was no imminent threat to
soldiers; for example in relation 10 the operation to move down to the bridge deck and seize
control of the ship and the firing of live ammunition at passengers on the bow deck of the
ship. Even in a situation where three individual soldiers have been injured and detained, the
objective of treeing these soldiers dots not legitimate the use of force outside applicable
international standartls and $Oldiers must continue to respect and preserve life and to
minimize injury and damage.

168. In such circumstances the use of less extreme means, such as available less-lethal
weaponry, would have been sufficient to achieve the required obje<:tive as required b)'
Principle 4 of the Basic Principles on the Use of Fireanns b)' Law Enforcement Officials.1t

11 The ISlXli CllieforDefence Staffis attributed with ~ying thltthe rules orenpgemenl or the
soldiers made clear that live file was initially only 10 be U$Cd in life-threatening situations and tllal
tillS ICStnctlOn was only Iller eased in or<k:r to target protest~ deemed to be violent in response to
unexpected level of violent resistance and the unknown whereabouts ofsorne soldle~ IDF Chiefof
General Staff, Gabi It.sI1kenazi's testimony 10 the Turkel Commi«ec: Public Commission to Examine
the Maritime Incident of May ] I, 2010, Session Number 4,.11 It.ugust 2010.

N Law enfot"ccrnent officials, in c:anying out their duty, sI1all, IS far IS possible, apply non-violent
means before resorting to the use afforce and firurms. They may use force and filUrms only ifo\heT"

J1
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A well-trained force such as lne Israeli Defence Force Should have been able 10
successfully contain a relatively small group of passengers armed with sticks and knives
and secure control of the ship without the loss of life or serious injury to either passengers
01' soldien.

169. A'iarge number of injufed passengers received wounds 10 critical areas of lhc bod)'
containing vital organs - the abdomen, thotax and 1'Icad. furthermore, • number of
passengers who were clearly 1'01 c:npged in any Etivilies to resist !he boarding by !he
Israeli foo::es, including a number ofjournalists and persons who had been sheltering from
the fiR\, received injuries, including fatal injuries. 11 is apparetlllhat no effort was made 10
minimise injuries at certain stages ofthc opcratton and that the use of live fire was done in
an cxtensive and arbitrary manner. It is dirrlCult not to conclude that. once lhe order 10 usc
live fire had been given, no one was safe. Under the circumstaneeJ. it seems a matter of
pure chance lhat there wen: IlOt more fatalities as a result. Principle 5 of the BMit
Principles on the Use of firearms by Law Enforcement Officials stipulates that "whenever
the lawful use of force and firearms is unavoidable, law enforcemei'll officials shall: (a)
Exercise restraint in such usc. and act in proportion to the seriousness of the offence and the
legitimate objective: to be achieved; and (b) Minimizx: damage: and injury and respect and
~e:humanlire..~

170. 1be circumstances of the killing of at least six of the pass 19c:lS were in a manner
consistent with an c:xtJ'a..-lcpI. mtlW)' and summ.,. execution. Furbn Dotan and Ibrahim
Bilgen were shoe at near range: while the victims wen: lying injured on thc: lOp deck.. Cc:vdc:t
Kilil;lar. Cengiz Akyilz. Cengiz SongOr and <;etin Topc;uoilu were shot on the: bridge dccIt
while not participating in ~ivitic:s that re:pracnled a thrc:atto any Israeli soldier. In these
instances and possibly other killings on the Mavi Marmlll'1l, ISI1lCli fon.:es CltJTied out extra­
legal, arbitrary and summary executions prohibited by international human rights law,
specifically article 6 ofthe International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights,lII

171. It is apparent that a number of the passengers on thc: top deck wen: subjected to
further misrreatment while lying injurCd. This included physical and verbal abuse some
time after the operation to secure: control of the deck had concluded, FwtheomOie these
passengers were not provided with medical tn:atmcnt for two to three~ after the
cessa60n of the operation. Similarly injured passengers who were inside the ship at the end
of the opctalion of the ISBCli fon:c:s were denied proper medical treatment for a similar
length of time despite frequent efforts by other penons on board, including flotilla
organizers, requesting such assistancc to be provided. Other passengers suffering from

, chronic medical conditioll5 were abo denied lOCesS to their required CSSCfltial medicines.
The Israeli forces failed to meet the requirement to provide proper medical treatment to all
those: injured as rapidly as possible!' Furthermore:, the usc. of firearms should have been
preceded by clear warnings of the intent to do so,l] While the: circumstances of the initial
stages on the lop deck may not have been conducive lD the issuance of 5Ilch warnings, later

means rcrrwn inctrecli~OI"Wltflout any pronuseof~dle inIended R$Ult.
• See PritJgples 1 IIld 1 of the Princ:ipks 0fI1be Efkerive~ Md InV$1pOOIl ofExlra-lqid,

ArtJinvy IIld Summa')' Executions.
II As 5CI. out In prinapk 4 (e)ofthc 8asie Principleson the Use offirurms by L- Enforc.emenl

OffieialS Silla th.l_ enforcemmt officials sIIaIl "E~ !haIauiSUinc:e MId medieal aid~
m1den:d 10 an)' injurctl or .ffeaed persons tt the earliest possible momenl~,

l! Prineiple 10 of the BlSie Principles on the Use offirelrtl15 by Law Enforoemc:," om"ills stipulates
thlt"llw tnfor«ment officills shall identify themselves IS sueh IIKI give. clear wlmini oftheif
intall 10 usc lirearms, with sumc:ienltime fOf the wll'lllnglO be observed, Wlless 10 do so would
unduly place the I.w enforeematt officials tt risk or would erea!e. risk ofdetlh Of serious harm 10
othef pc:rsoM, or would be dearty ifttppropnlJte or pointless 10 the elrCUlllJt1nCe:5 ofthe ineider«.~

JI
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stages in the Israeli operation to secure control of the ship certainly wen: possible and_.
172. The Misskm is satisfied lhat much of lhc: force used by lhc lmaeli soldien on board
the Mayj Marmara and from the helieoplm was unncccssary. disproport;o.we, excessive
and inappropriate: and resulted in the wholly avoidable killing and maiming of I large
number ofciyilian passengers. On the basis of the for=sie and firearm evidence. at least six
of the killinas can be chantcterised as extra.legaI. arbitrary and summary executions. M
such, the conduct of fhe Israeli forces amounled to violalions of the nghl to life and of the
right to physical integrity, as slipulaled in articles 6 and 7 of me International Covenant on
Civil and Political Righ13.

173. The Mission is also concerned with the nature of the force used by the Israeli forces
in the inlercepl.ion ofthe Ihree fi.Jrttlc" vessels in the flotilla: OJallenger I, Sfmdoni and the
Eleftf1cri Mesog)os. One each of the vesscb some of the pIlSSCfl&ers merely used pa$ivc
resistance: lecMKjUC3 - p1acin& their bodies in the palhs of the Israeli soldiers - as a
symboltc gesture in opposilion 10 the respcaive boarding.. However, in securing COfIlfol of
lhc$c vessels the Israeli forces used signiflCallt force, including stun grenades, electroshock
weapons, soft-baton eharges fired at close range, paintballs, plaslie bullets and physical
force. This resulted in a number of injuries to passengers including bums, bruises,
hematomas and fractures. One passenger who was not participaling in passive resistance
activities, a pholo-joumalist, l1:CCived bums from an electroshock weapon. lne Mission has
found Ihat the: force used by the lsraeli soldiers in intercepting the Challenger I, the
Sfendoni and the Eleftheri Mcsogios was unnecessary, disproportionale, excessive and
inapproprill1e., and amounted to violations of the righl to physical integrity, as stipul8ted in
article 7 oflhe International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

(b) RighI to liberty and seclUity ofperson and treatment 0/detoinees, including tor/un and
Olher cruel inhumon and degroding tnatment or punishment

174. Article 9, paragraph I of the lnlemational Covenant on Civil and Political Rights
states:

Everyone has the riatu k> liberty and security of pmon. No one shall be subjected to
arbitrary arrest or detenlKm.. No one )hall be deprived of his liberty Of.CICp( on such
grounds and in accordance with such procedure as an established by law.

Since thC Mission considers the Israeli inten:cption of !he flotilla was unlawful, the
detenlion of passengers on board each of the vessels was also prima facie unlawful.

175. The deprivation of the liberty of the passengers funher meets the criteria for being
arbilrary in nature in accordance with the definitions adopted by !he United National
Working Group on Arbill'ary Detention. Deprivation of liberty is considered category I
arbitrBry dClention: "When il is clearly impossible 10 invoke any legal basis juslifying the
depriVlllion ofliberty 1.~.J."

176. The mass detention of more than 100 pessc:ngers and crew on board the six vessels
had no basis in law, was arbitrary in nature and is a viol.a!ion of Anicle 9 of the
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

177. Furthennore, no one on board Ihe flotilla was informed of any reason for their
delenlion. Anicle 9, paragraph 2 oflhe International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights
Sl.a!es:

Anyone who is lln'C$Ied shall be informed. at !he lime of arrest, of the reasons for his
arrest and shall be promptly informed ofany charles &gains! him.

"
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While dctatncd on board the vessels ofthe Rotilla,. period which lasted U910 12 hours. aJl
passengers should have been informed of why they were being subject to detention and the
natures of the specific charJCS being brought against them. This was 001 done and in some
instances passenger requests for such information were mel with verbal abuse or physical
violence. As such, the concerned Israeli forces violated Miele 9 of the International
Covenant on Civit and Political Rights.

178. During !he period of detention on board the: Mavi Marmara the passengers were
subj«tcd to treatment lhal WllS cruel and inhuman in nalure and which did nol respect the
inherent diani!)' of persons who have been deprived of their liben)'. This included a large
number of persons being forced to kneel on the outer decks in hllTSh conditions for many
hours, the physical mistreatment and Yetba;I abuse inflicted on many ofthosc detained, the
widc:sprc:ad UfInecessarily ti&I'II handcuffing and the dalial of acocss 10 basic human needs
such &1i the usc of toilet facilities and provision of food. In addilioo there was a prevailing
climate of fear of violence thel had • dehumanizing effect on all those detained on board.
On Olhet vessels in the flotilla Ihcn: was additional illSWlCCS ofpersons being subjected to
similar severe pain and suffering, including a person being seriously physically abused for
refusing to provMk his passport without a receipt. Principle I of the Body of Principks for
the Protection of All Persons under Any Form of Detention Of Imprisonment stales: ·"All
persons under any form of ddention Of imprisonment shall be tR:ated in I humane manner
and with respect for the inherenl dignity of the human person," In addition, Principle 6
states; "No person under any form of detention or imprisonment shill be subjected 10

lorture or to cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment. No circumstance
whatever may be inyokcd as a juslifiClllion fo.- torture or other cruel, inhuman or degrading
treatment or punishment."

179, The Mission is particularly concerned with the widespread use of tight handcuffing
of passengers on board the Mlvi Marmartl in particular and to an extent of passengers on
board the Challenger I, Sfendoni and the: Eleftheri Mesogios.. Numerous passengers
dc:saibed l:he pain and sofTerin, caused by being shackled by plastic handcuffs (abo known
as 'piasticufTs') in an overly tighl manner, frtquently behind their backs, causing further
suffering. Many were experiencing neurologicaJ damage up 10 three months after the events
of the: flotilla. As has been highlighted, the manner in which handcuffs were used on
passengers on board the flotilla is consistent with the systematic use of handcuffs by the
Israeli forces in a manner that causes pain and injury.1J The Mission is satisfied that the:

Il In June 2009 the Public Commince Agaill!1 Torture in Isncl (PCATI) published a report on the use of
hln<k;m by lhe ISnteJi Defence Forces enlitled "ShllCklJna IS I Fonn ofTonure and Abuse". PCATl
finds thit: "Soldiers roulinely handcufTdeliinces in I jMIinfulllld injurious manner &om the moment
oflhcir arTCSI and througb lbcir lraIlSfcr to the V..-l0llS inlCn'OJltioA facilities.. The syskmllie nllure

of the pnclIce SIJIBCSI$ disregard for !he sufTcrintl; caused eo detainees and pcrtIaps CYCfI deliberate
inlCtllto C&I$C.-in. This trelltmenC often bRaks the detainee's splnt and "'softcos"lhem lip before
the)' arrive fOe- incentl&Jlion lithe GSS facility. This is J*'llCUlart)' tNI: 1llIlhe case ofncinors,. The
sysacmlC lI$C oflhe Qlffift& pl)S1Iic.:l as explaiMd above IIUI)' abo refka the m1kalVC punishmc:rll
and inclmidllion ofseauit)' dr:l:ainces in Saxnol Every month PCAn recri~ dolI:ftS ofwmplaint$
'<bcnbina this rom. ofsMclUlIlI- 0wJ-1he past re- alone, fICAn lias ibalmaUed 514 SldIca5C$.
Thou&h this fill" is Sll~1y onty the tip of the ia:berJ. II lal)' IIldKate tbc scope oflhe pbolOlliOlOi~M

Furthmnore, III cxpen n>ed:ical opinion by nturokllial spcclllrsl Dr. HInIUlh-BdlllUl Sleincr·
Binnallns is ameJ;ed 10 the report. Dr. S!einer·8innannsSlllCS tl\at WfiJllt llandeufli -such as
IIItTOW and "lid pllSlle handeulfs tlptened so that there is no SpICC brtwem!he llandcllm and Ihe
delaince's hands - prus SlJ"OniIy apill$llhc wrisu. The handcuffs may remain on the delalllee's
IIands for protndcd periods. In such conditions the llandculfs can cause alnsions and damap 10 soft
tissues, skin brIIises 100 C\'en bone ITactures The hlndcuffs also press apill$llhc nel'\lCS in the palms,
leadina 10 paralysis lIl\d I Joss ofsel\S4tion in the palms. These neurological dam~&CS can be transient
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manner in which Ihc handcuffs were used was clearly unnecessary and deliberately used 10
cause pain and suffering to passengers.

180. Tonure is prohibited under thc non-derogable article 7 orlne ICCPR. Fl!rthc:nnorc,
Article I of the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading
Treatment or Punishment stales;

For the purposes of this Convention, the term "torture" means any act by wtiich
severe pain or suffering, whether physical or mental, is intemionally inflicted on a
~n for such purposes as obtaining from him or a third person information' or a
confes~ion, punishing him fOf' an act he or 8 third person has committed or is
suspected of having commined, or intimidating or coercing him or Rlhird person; or
for My reason based on discrimination of any kind, when such pain or suffering is
inflicted by or at tile instigBlion of or with the consent or acquiescence of a public
official or other person acting in an official capacity.

Anicle 2(2) of the Convention emphasizes' the abSolute prohibition of torture:

No exceptional circumstances whatsoever, whether a state of war or a threat of war,
internal political in stability or any other public emergency, may be invoked as a
justification of torture.

Insofar as these abuses amounted to the deliberate punishment of the passengCl'S, or were an
attempt to intimidate or coerce one or more of the passengers for panicipation in the flotilla
and/or activities to prevent the interception of the flotilla, the treatment tended towards
tonure.

181. The Mission thus determines that the treatment of passenge~ on board the Mavi
Marmara and in certain instances on board the Challenger I. Sfendoni and the Eleftheri
Mesogios, by the Israeli forces amounted to cruel, inhuman and dc;grading treatment and,
insofar as the treatment was additionally applied as a form of punishment. torture. This
represents 1Io violation of articles 7 and 10 (I) of the International Covenant on CivilllTld
Political Rights and the Convention against Tonure and Other Cruel. Inhuman or
Degrading Treatment or Punishment.

(e) Possible vio/alions of/he Fourth Geneva co~"tion and clIS/omary international
humanitarian law

182. In addition to the international human rights violations set out above, the Mission
considers that the same factual circumstances provide prima facie evidence that protected
perSons wffered violations of international humanitarillTl law committed by Israeli forces
during the interception, including wilful killing, tonure or inhuman treatment and wilfully
causing great suffering or serious injury to body or health within the terms of article 147 of
the Fourth Geneva Convention.

C. Detention of flotilla passengers in Israel and deportation

I. Factutl Deseription tad Findings

183. The Mission found the following facts to have been established to its satisfaction.

but thcy"Clln also be permanent From 1M: neurologist's perspective light handcuffs mty cause
lTInsicnl or irreversible dJ.mage to the detJ.inet and, IICOOrdingly, !he use ofloos:ened handcuffs
should be considered."

"
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(a) Proceuiflg Offh~ passengers ot rM Port ofAshdod

\84. All of the intercepted vessels in the flotilla were taken to the Ismcli port of Ashdod
where a processing centre had been set up in advance in marquees on the quay!ide to
receive the passengers. The Challenger I, the fastest vessel in the flotilla, arrived around
1100 noun on 31 May. The last ship 10 arrive was the Mavi Mann~ alllfOund 1800 hours
on the same day. As • result of the numbers of passengers 10 be processed, the
discmbarblton process was extremely lengthy. Some passengers fiom the Mavi Marmara
said that they had !O wail up to twelve: hours inside the ship under armed guard after it had
arrived at the pon and some did not discmban> until the next morning.

18S. The vcsscls were greeted by crowds of soldiers and sometimes eivilians. including
school children. at the quayside. waving flags and cheering the rttum of the Israeli forces.
Some passengers said that they were jeered or taunted by the people on the quay. There
were also television camera crews and journalists recording the disembarkation of the
passengers. Many passengers said that they found the experience of being "paraded" before
the media and lhe sometimes hostile crowds unsenllng and humiliaIing.

1&6. Injured passengers wno had nol been airiifted were diagnosed and sent to nearby
hospitals for treatment. Some passengers with serious injuries were made to walk off the
Mavi Mannan unaided. Due to the delay in disembaridng and processing all passengers.,
some injurut pes:sc:ngcn had to wait for considerable periods befor-e they were diagnosed
and sent 10 hospital. Othen were not diagnosed untifthcy arrived at the prison later.

187. During processing, all passengers were presented with offICial papers to sign.
Various translalions of the pe.pers were in circulaIion, in English, Turkish and Arabic, but
most passengers said that they were given a version in Hebrew and that the contents were
not explained to them. According to those able to understand the papers, they stated that the
signalory admilled to having entered Israel illegally and consented to deportation and be
banned from rt-enlering Israel for a 100year period. Some: passengers were told thai signing
the document would expedite early release from Qlstody and repatriation whereas failun: 10
sign would result in a lengthy detention period pending court ~ings.

188. Almost all passcrtgers refused 10 sign !he document on the basis that they had bc:en
brought to Israel from inlernational waters against their will or because: they did not want 10
sign a doaJment that they did not understand. Then: were concerted eff0rt5 by some Israeli
officers 10 coerce passengers inlo signing the forms. Some passengers did sign under durt:SS
having annolaIed Ihe Itxl to reflect the circtlmstancc:s of their cntTy inlO lSl'ael or Slating thai
it was signed "under protest". Some passengers were Ihreatened wilh physical violence for
refusing to sign; others were beaten or physically abused for refusing to sign or for advising
ochers nollO sign. Efforts 10 persuade passengers 10 sign the fonns continued at the airpon
almOSI up to the moment ofdeparture.

189. Pas5cngcn were subjected 10 a seiies of meticulous searches, il'lCluding slrip
sc:ardlcs. Although female Officer1 generally searc:hcd the women. some complained that
they were ~hed in full or p8l1ial view of male officers.. Some male passcnccrs said lhat
they were subjected 10 or threatened with intcmal Civil)' searches. A number of passenger'S
described the process of being searched as being deliberately degBding and humiliaIing,
accompanied by taunts, provoeative and insulting language: and physical abuse. During the
course of their detention in Isrnel, many passengers were searched multiple limes, long after
such searches could serve a useful securil)' purpose.

190. During processing. passengeB wen: photogrnphed eilhcr for official documentation
or, in some cases., for "trophy piclures". The processing of some passengers was also
videotaped. Passengers had their fingerprintS and in some cases DNA swabs. were taken.
Whilst some sllCCeSSfully declined to submit 10 fingerprinling. some had their prints taken
by force. A victim and wimesscs provided. vivid description oflhe circumstanceS in which
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one pauengcr, • Greek national, was severely beaten for refusing to provide his fingerprints·
to the Israeli authorities. The passenger was lhgged aJon& the ground for some di$llll'lcc
and lhetl $UlTOOnded by • large gR)Up of Israeli offteials who plOccedcd 10 bcal him
severely, including the dclibcralC Fracture of his leg. His cries for bell' were ignored, and
one witness noted uniformed officials, both male and female, laughin& at him. The
passenger's broken leg was nollrcaled until after he had left Israel.

191. Passengm were also given a medical check, although some were able 10 and did
refuse.. Many passengm constdered the medical checks 10 be cursory and pro forma. The
medication of some passengers who Wtte following special medical prescriptions for
existina condilKms had been c:onfiSCllled by soldiers Of left behind on the vessels. Requests
for these medications 10 be relumcd were not met prompdy although some people did
receive their medication later after repeated requests.

192. In addition to the examples described above, there were other incidents of physical
violence being perpctr1lted against individual passengcn deemed non-<XlOperBlive, which
resulted in physical injuries and uauma. One passenger. who mldc a general pro!CSl about
the way !he passengers w~ being treated, was tokl by an Israeli offlCtt: "You~ in Israel
now; you have no rigllts".

19]. PISSmgen: w~ not allowed aocess 10 a lawyer or 10 consular KrYioes during
pnx:es5ing at the port. Some passengen said !hat lhere were translators available in some
languages and some officials involved in the processing spoke languages other than
Hebrew. However. many passengers were unable to understand what was being said 10
<hem.

194. The wife of one of the deceased passengers was trea1ed with oomplele insensitivity
to her bereavement. She was not allowed to make a phone call to inform her family of her
loss. There were cxamples of members of the same family who W~ separaled and kept in
complete ignorance of the whereabouts and well-being of their relalives until repatriation.
This separation added to the distress and anxiety experienced by the passengers.

tb) DetenJion ofpcuungusandcrnllDt EJlaprison ~ar lkersltevo

195. After pro<:cssing I! AshQod. the majority of pasSQIgetS were It1Insferrtd in balches
to Ella Prison. near Bcenhev.. a one 10 rwo hour journey by road. Passengers were
transferred in regular prison vehicles with barred windoW5.. Some passengen had 10 wait in
the vehicles for several hours. One passenga said that he spent (WOlty hours waiting in a
van both at Ashdod and at the prison. Many pa$$Cngers complained that excessive air­
conditioning made the vans very cold. Others complained that they were locked in the vans
with closed windows' in the sun for long periods SO that the atmosphere became suffocating.
Requests to adjust the Itmpenlture or to allow acc:eu to the toilet were either ignored or in
some c:ase:s resulted in threats ofor actual viok:nce..

196. On arrival I! the prison.1l'lOSI passengersw~ placed in cells in groups of up 10 four
persons. A number of passengers reported that they were kepi in isolation and did not meet
with other pa.ssengm until they left the prison.

197. Most witnesses reported that the conditions at the prison were acceptable. although
some complained that on arrival at the facility they had 10 clean the cells and the communal
areas. Some also swed that Ihc: lOilels did nol function properly and some, including
women, reponed disc:omfon in using the showCJ$ due to the presence of 5U1W:iI1ance
cameras. Passengers wae genc:rally provided with food and water. Many passengers
complained thai they were prevented from sleeping in the prison due to rqular roll-eaJls,
noise from the prison guards and other deliberate disturbances.
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193. Many passmgcn were: subjc:cted to further incc:rroaarions while in detention; some
said that this was done repeatedly. "There were a number of allegations of beatings during
these interrogations.

199. Most witnesses reported thai they continued 10 be denied access to a lawyer and 10
conlSet with their embassies. Lawyers from one Israeli legal aid NOD said chat they made.
tcpealed 8ltemptS to visit the detainees but were denied enll')' for some time. When they
were granted access, the lawyers had 8 vcry limited time with each detainee and could only
conduct cursory interviews. Some pas:sengm received a visil from their embassy
represent.ivc but the majority had no such conlaCt Ahhough there' was JOmC lICCC$S to
Ic:Jcphoncs, tdcphone cards, when distributed, allowed very limited callin& lime making it
pnclically impossible 10 call abroad.

200. No (oo:ign "national detained at 8eeJsheya was charged with any offence or brought
before _judge. One passenger" was however taken. after he had protested his ript to appear
before a judge, befon: what he considc:n:d 10 be • "sham court" close 10 the airpDft to have
his deportation confirmed.

(c) Ill·treatment ofpammgers aJ 11M airport and npotr/oJIOf/

201. Depending 00 'their lime ofamval, passengers were detained from between 24 and
n hours. Jordanian~ and passengers from certain other countrie:s with no diplomatic
relation~ with Israel were released early and transported bad: to Jordan by road. The
majority of passengers were taken from the prison 10 Ben Gurion lntemational Airport in
Tel Allill for repatriation by air. Many passengers complained Ihat they had again 10 wait
for many hours in thc sun inside prison IIllllS both at the prison and on amllal at the airport
during the deportation phase. One women, overcome by the oppI'eSSille conditions in her
IIchielc said that she was refused access 10 a toilet despite making dear that she was
mcrwruatina.

202. Pcrnaps the mo51 shocking testimony, after that relating to the violence on the Malli
~ provided to the Mission was the consistent MX:OUnls of a number of incidents of
extreme and Wlprovoked violcnoe perpctralCd by uniformed 15I'8Cli personnel upon certain
pllSWllCf'S during the proc;cssing procedures inside the terminal aI Ben Gurian International
Airport on the day of deportation. These accounts wt:re so con~istent and lIillid as 10 be
beyond qucstMm. An intimidating number of armed soldiers and pllK:c were present inside
the tcrminal building. Some passengers said that these officers were "~poiling for I fight".
All paMCflgcrs had been subjccted 10 multiple searches and wcre completely under the
control of the Isracli~ by this ~tage. Mo~1 passengers were continuing to refuse to sign
deportalion documents and some were determined to make a point about tile legality of tile
proces5 by insisting on a court hearing 10 confirm the deportation. None of the violence
described seems 10 have been jlJ$tificd.

203. Some passengers in the passport chc:eking aree saw an oldet passcnget_ being
roughly treated after receiving what appeared 10 be a beating.. When other passengers,
incllKling Irish and Turtish, protested at this treatment. tAey were charged by so'diers using
batons. In the foray, aroWld 30 passengers were beaten to the ground, kicked and punched
in a SUSlllincd attack. 'by soldicn.. One Irish p8SSet1&CI' was seen being particularly badly
bea1cn around the head and held in a choke position 10 the point of nell suffocation. He
identified his anackers as police officers. He was taken 10 a holding cell.

204. ~ Turkish passenger inllOlllcd in the fight said that he was subsequerv.ly taken by
soldiers, handcuffed with metal cuffs, picked up by the cuffs, taken to a small room and ,.
beatcn and kicked by five more soldiers while omcrs shielded the scene from outside. The
police intervened to SlOp the violence in this case.

..
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20S. A number of women were pushed around by soldteTS, one of wnom was beaten wilh
fists, They were also subjCCled to scxuallaunts.

206. In a scpenltc iocidenl. a passenger was physically attacked by around seventeen
offlCel'S when he refused to sign deportation paper, kicked in the head and threalencd at
gunpoint A number of passengers had resolved to resist deportation in order 10 have the:
opportUnity 10 demonstrate their il"ll'lOOC:nCC in an Israeli court. This was taken as a
provoealion by the Israelis.

207. One medica.l doctor pvc a detailed account· of his treatment. On arrival II the
airport. the: offICer accompanying him jostled him and tried to trip him up on the stairs. He
was then suijeclcd to verbal insullS as he passed through a check point. An officer slapped
him on the: blIIck of the head and when he procestcd he was set upon by a group of
unifonncd offIcers, knocked to the ground and repeatedly punched and kicked. He was then
dragged OUI of sight of other passengers where the attacks resumed. A"c:mpls were made to
break his fingers. He was restrained with metal handcuffs behind his back so lightly thai he
kist feeling to one hand. He was then hoisted up by lhe cuffs and pushed against a wall.
When he asked for the cuffs 10 be loosened, he WIIS told lhis was the price he had to pay for
attempting to go to Gaza and lha1 "it would be good for hi5 heallh". The doctor was
wearing a,;.xet which clearly iderllifled him as a medical doctor and said the anEb were
oompleady unprovoked.

208. There were other incidents of isolated "iolence against indi"iduaJ prassengen who
were deemed 10 be uncooperative. One pa3Setlgcr was seen ha"ing his arm [\/fisted behind
his back by police to lhe point that the arm broke. Another WIIS kicked and hit by some ten
soldien, handcuffed and taken by "chicle to another place 10·15 minutes away, where
soldiers abused him for up to two hours. When he returned to lhe airport, he was bleeding
from the head.

209. A llll'ge number of the militaf)' and police personnel at the airpon exhibited serious
and unprofessional lapses or-military discipline whilst commanding offK:ef$ failed in most
cases to intlCf\lene promptly. Much of the behaviour was swcly aiminal under domC$lic
lsBeli law.

210. The majority of the passengers regardkss of nationality were deported from Israel
aboard aircraft pro"idcd by the Turkish Go"emmaiL The Jonianian detainees howlCYa
were deported by bus acrD" the land border between Israel and Jordan. The Greek
possc:ngtrS werf: airlifted back to Athens aboard (I Greek military aircraft sent by the Greek
Government. At least. one pa5salgCl" with dual nationality including Israeli nationality
elected not to be deported in order not to jeopardise his ISr&eli citizenship. He was
threatened with prosecution but was rf:leased in ISl'BlCI and later left the country without
hindrance.

211. Some passengers were made to wait for many hours on board the aircraft while the
dcpomlion procedures for the other passengers were being completed. Some pan nges
said that they boarded tflc: plane in the momina but did not take offuntil after midnight.

rtf) Tnat~1IJ o/injWf!dp<USettgers in IsrruJi hospitals

212. According to Israeli sources, lhirty-one wounded pascngers from the Mavi
Marmara were air-lifted to various hospitals in Tel A"iv, Jerusalem, Haifa and other
locations. All witnesses rf:poned that there were guards, either police or soldiers or both, at
the bedside or stationed outside their rooms. Thcy remained in the hospitals for between
three and five days receiving medical treatment and were lhcn transfclTlCd to Turkey by
lJlICI"Oplanc. Most were then taken directly 10 the AtatOrk Rc:searcll Hospital in Ankara for
further ueatrnent.
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213. Some of the passengers treated in Israeli hospitals acknowledged lhat they wert well
cared for by the medical personnel, but others reported veroal abuse and tBunting by their
guards. A number ofwitnesses said that they were unable to sleep properly throughout their
stay in hospital due, in some cases, 10 deliberate disturbance by the guards. The patients
were subjected to the same repeated questioning by police or soldiers and heavy pressure [0

sign documents in Hebrew as other passengers had cJ(perienced at Ashdod. Some patients
were visited by a rej>resentative of their embassy or by representalivcs of the International
Committee of the Red Cross. .

214. Many of those treated in the Israeli hospitals reported that they were handcuffed to
their beds using standard metal handcuffs throughout InciT stay. Some were also restrained
at their ankles. These w.ere seriously injured people and the cuffing was done with no
apparentr~ to their injuries.

2. lACtl Antlysis of the treatment or the pusengen in Isratl

fa) Arbitrary or illegal arreSI 01' detention

215. As stated above, Article 9, paragraph I of the International COvt~nant on Civil and
Political Rights guards agaill$l arbitrary arrest or detention. Since the Israeli intCl'ccption of
the flotilla was unlawful,the detention of the passengers and crew from the seven vessels at
Ashdod was also prima facie unlawful since there was no legal basis' for the Israeli
authorities to have detained and transported these people to Israel. The passengers found
themselves in .Israel on the basis of an unlawful act by the State of Israel. The Israeli
authorities were therefore under an obligation to deal with these People in accordance with
their international human rights obligations. However, oncc they arrived in Israel, the
Israeli authorities attempted to shroud the illegality of the interceplion in a veil oflegality.

216. 00 amval in Ashdod, attempts were made to get passengers to sign certain
documents which passengers understood 10 be a confession of illegal entry into Israel. The
passenger! almost universally refused to sign these documents based on the logic that since
they had been brought to Israel against their will, they could not themselves be held to have
illegally entered the country. They objected 10 the implication that they, as viaims of an
illegal ac;t by the State of Israel, could Ihen be held guilty of the illegal act of entering
IsraeL The Mission shared \his objection and is of the view that the continued detention of
the passenger! al Ashdod, Beersheva ind at the airport constituted a continualion of their
unlawful detenlion initialed by the soldiers on the vessels .after the interception

211. Some passengers wished to challenge the legality of thai dctention as a means of
arawing attention to the illegal acts which had resulted in their arrival in Israel. They
insisted on their right to appear before a judge and said Ihat they had received summons to
appear in ooun to face charges. The Mission did nol receive copies of any court documents
showing that foreign nationals involved in the notilla were ehargro with any eriminal
offences in IslllC1. [f they were, then the denial of the right to a fair hearing before an
independent, impanial and compelent tribunal would constitute a violalion of their rights
under article 14 oflhe [CCPR.

(b) TOI'true and other cruel il1hlmUlfl and degrading Ino/meflt or pUl1ishment

218. At all times, the Israeli authorities were bound to treal the detainees in accord~e

with Israel's intemational human rightS obligations and to protect them from hann. The
Mission considers that, whilst the detention phase purported to proceed within a framework
of legality, there was pervasive hostility towards the passengers which allowed abuse to
take place.

..
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219. Passengers' testimony inctooc:d a "number of credible a1leprions of physical
violence: and abuse pl:l'J)CtBtcd by Israeli offlCefS, soldiers and policemen aI the pr1)CCSSing
centre in Ashdod, at me prison and II! lhc: airport. In some cases, this violence secmo:l
gratuitous; in other cases. it seemed aimed specifically aI forcing compliance with
panicular procedures (signin. forms, fingerprinting) or punishing individuals for non­
compliance. The Mission considers that acts of torture were committed by Israeli officials
against passengers during Iheir period of detention in Israel in violation of article 1 of the
Convention againsl Torture and ar1idcs 7 and 10 oflhe International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights.

220. There were olhc:r instances of behaviour by IsnlCli officials which was aimed at
humiliating individuals whkh. if nollOnure, would oonslitule cruel, inhuman or degrading
treatment or punishment under the terms of anick: 16 of the Convention apinst Torture.
Body sc:an:nes were not always conducIed in accordance with acc:epced procedures aimed at
proI~ing lhc: dignity of the penon being sc:archc:d and the frequc:ncy of the searches raises
lhe sugesllon !hat !hey served 10 humiliale and degrade tither than meet seeurity needs.
The Mission would like 10 draw paniwl.. attallion to !he lrea!melll received by some
women by female 1Sl'Kli offICerS 81 !he processing centre thai fell well short of accepIabIe
behaviour.

(c) Parading oftkfajners

221. Whilslthe passengers and crew arriving 8t Ashdod cannot be classified as prisoner.!
of war, the scene at the quayside described by those interviewed carries the hallmarks of a
'lriumph' at which captured prisom:rs of war an: paraded in front of flag-waving crowds.
Prisoners of war would have been protected against this humiliating spectacle by article 13
of the Third Geneva Convention which prolecfS them from "insulu and public curiosity".
As civilians. the flotilla passengers shoukt have been eIllitk:d to me same basic level of
proIcdton.. which would also rail under general customary taw provisions protc:ding
civilians from assaults on their diiflity. The failure of the Isradi authorilies to afford this
proteetion may also be oonstrucd, inter alia, as a violation of the presumplion of innocence
under article 14, paragraph 2 of ICCPR compBBble to the public display of those
suspected of criminal offences. Regardlc:s:!l ofwhcthcr any passtflgen on board the flotilla
Wert; suspected of having committed of criminal &cts. all pwengcrs should have been
protected from public curiosity.

(d) Righi to srcurJty ofthe person and to InunaJI dignity

222. The serious incidents of physical violence: perpetrating by Israeli military and/or
police officers against the passengers at Ben Gurion International Airpon clearly constitute

. grave violations of thc protection that should be afforded to detainees under international
human righu law and international humanitarian law.....nick 9 of the ICCPR provides for
the rii/lt to security of person and article 10 gtJlITWItccs that "all persons deprived of their
liberty shall be treated with humanity and with respc:cc for the inheralt dignity of the human
person". Insof.. as the tJeatmcnt meted out at the airpon was perpetrated by soldiers and
police, sometimes with the acquiescence of their superiors, this behayiour QTl abo be
cons)dered torture. It seems clear to the Mission that these fICtS at the. airport. at a lime when
the passengers wen: cornplel:eIy under the COI'IITOI of the authorities, constituted an attempt
by individual groups of officers 10 "give them a bloody nose" just berate dcperture.

223. OIher reported actS of physical abuse and ill treatment during t!le ~entioo IU1d
deportatiOn phase would similarly constitute violalions of the right to security of person.

224. The Code ofConduct for Law Enfon;ement Officials KIS OUI some basic obligations
which should have been followed by III Israeli military and police: personnel whilst they
wcrc charged with the care of the passengers. These include the duty to rcSpecl and protect
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human dignity and maintain and uphold the hl.nllfl rights of all persons (article 2), to use
fora: only when strialy necessary and to the extCflt required for the performance of their
duty (anicle 3) and not to inflict, instig81c Of lO!erltc any act of tonure or Other cruel.
inhuman or de&l'ding treatment or punishment (article S). Ead1 of these dulies was
disregarded by certain hradi officill~s II certain points during the detention and deportation
process.

(e) Other detemjon rights

225. Regardless of the pretended· claim to legality of the detention of the nouna
pankipants inside lmeI, lhe State of l$f'lIcl was bound to afford the detainc:cs certain basic
rights whilst in detention. In certain instancc:s.lhe facts as presented to the Mission indicate
tIw lhesc righlS were not I'CSpected.

226. A"kle 10 ICCPR provides thal all penons deprived of their liberty shill be treated
with humanity wKl with respecc for the inherent di8J'iity of the human person. This provision
is supplemented., intes' alia, by the Body of Principles for the Protection of All Pmoos
under Any Form of Detention or Imprisonment (1911) and the. Code of Conduct for Law
Enforoement Officials (1979). Whilst a system was put in place at Ashdod for lhe
processing of the disembarking passengers.. it is dear that pffK:ef5 Showed a hostility
towards the passengers under their can: which encounged behaviour which viollUcd basic
standards of civilized treatment of detainees.

227, There were problems wilh ensuring lhal all disembarking passcngers understood the
legal processes and procedures 10 which they were being subjecled due 10 language
diffICulties, Although lhe Israeli authorities dearly attempted to provide documents in
languages other than Hebrew and SOffie offioen were on hand able 10 speak English, Arabic
and Turkish, it is clear that many passengers did not undersland whal was happening 10
them. Anicle 9, paragraph 2 ICCPR requires that detained persons are informed about the
n:asons for their arrest and detention. Principle 14 of the Body of Principles states thaI.
penon who does not adeqUIICly undenland or speaIt: the language used by the authorities
responsible for the arrest, detention or imprisonment is entitled 10 receive procnptly in a
languqe: which he understands certain specifIC infonnation relating to his arresc and
detention and 10 have the assiStanCe. free of eharr;e. if 1tCCCSW)', of an interpreter in
eonnedion with legal proeecdinp SUbsequenl to arresL The M'ission considers that many
detainees were not afforded these riihu,

228. Funhermore, there is evidence that some detainees were speciftcally mi:tinfonned
aboutlheir legal situation by Israeli officers, particular wilh regard to the deportation papers
they were asked to sign. In one absurd example, an individual says !.hat he WI! told that
refusing to sign the deportation form would incur the death penalty - an I!senion which the
detainee did not take seriously. Principle 21 of Ihe Body of Principles prohibits taking
"undue advantage of the situation of a detained or imprisoned pcr50n for the purpose of
compellina him to confess, to ineriminate himself oLhetwise or 10 testify against another
,."..."

229. Man)' oflhe detainees spc:ciftcally requested, on numerous ocx:asions, IICCCSS 10 legal
counsel an&'or the con5l.Ilar services of their cmblssies or dipbmatie rep«:sc:nWives in
Israel. Although some did eventuall)' receive visits &om legal aid lawyers and diplornatic
consuls.. other did noL Principle 17 of the Body of Principles swes that ". detained person
shall be milled 10 have the usrance of a legal counscl. He shall be informed of his righl
by the compcte:nt authority prompll)' after arrest and shall be provided with reasonable
facilities for exercising iL" Principle 16 (2) furthcnnorc: provides:

If a detained person is a foreigner, he shall alsa be promplly informed of his right 10
communicate by appropriate means witti a consular post of the diplomatic mission

..
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of the State of which he is a national or which is otherwise enlilled to receive such
communication in accordance with intcmationallaw or with thc rcpresentll!ive of a
competent international organization, if he is a refugee or is otherwise under the
protection of an international organization.

Any communication under this provision must be made or permitted without delay. Most
delli.in~ who gained access to a consul were: only allowed such access several days after
they had originally been detained and requested access.

230. Principle 18 provides that "8 detained person shall be entitled to communicate and
consult with his legal counsel [and) shall be allowed adequate time and facilities for
consultation". Israeli legal aid lawyers who gained access 10 some ortne detainees where
barely able to spend more than a few minutes with each detainee in the lime allocated by
the authorities for the visit.

231. All detainees complained that they were not allowed the means to contact lheir
families who would have been distressed and concemed after hearing from news reports
about the interception of the flotilla. In one extreme and insensitive example, the wife of
one of the deceased was not able to call her family to notify them of her bereavement.
Although telephones were available to some detainees in prison, they could not be used to
make the numerous international telephone calls neeessary for this particular cohon of
detainees from more than fony countries. Principle 16 (I) of the Body of Principles states
!hat "Promptly after arrest and after each transfer from one place of det.ention to another, a
detained J'CfSOn shall be entitled to rl()(ify or to require the competent authority to rl()(ify
members of his family or other appropriate persons of his choice of his arrest, detention or
imprisonment or for the transfer and of the place of detention where he is kept in custody."
There should be no delay in the implementation ofthis reQlJirement.

(f) Treo/menl ofinjured people in detention

232. Most passengers were offered a medical examination, albeit perfun~tory, in
accordance with Principle 24 of Jhe Body of Rules which states that "8 proper medical
examination shalt be offered to a detained or imprisoned person as promptly as possible
after his admission to the place of detention or imprisonment."

233. In some instances, passengers who had been injured, including those injured by
assault! commined by Israeli officials did not receive immediate medical anention. Anicle
6 of the Code of Conduct stales that "law enforcement officials shall ensure the full
protection of the health of persons in their custody and, in particular, shall take immediate
action 10 secure medical attention whenever required."

D. ConfIscation and Return of Property by the Israeli authorities

I. FU;fu.1 Description and Findings

234. The Mission found the following facts to have been established to its satisfaction.

(a) Possessions ofpassengers confIScated by the Israeli authorities

235. The Mission received aaounts from passengers who were on board all six vC$Sels in
the flotilla on the confiscation by the Israeli authorities of cash and a wide variety of
personal belongings, including passports, identification cards, driving licenses. mobile
telephones, laptop computers, audio equipment including MP3 players, photographic' and
video recording equipment, credit cards, documents, books and clothing. These items Wb"e
taken at a number of stages, primarily while on board the vessels (during body searches and
ilems left in others parts of the vessels that Ihey were nol pennitted to retrieve) or during

..
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processing _ lhe Ashdod detention racility. The MissKln estimatcs thal: man)' hundreds of
expensive electronic items mnain in lhc pOssc:s.sion of the Israeli authorities. Mllfly
passengers were canying considenble amoulltS ofaM donllllions 10 be distributed in Gaz:a,
in some cases amounting to leN of thousands of dolllllS. There WiIS inconsistent practice by
the IsneJis with regard to cash: some passengCD were allowed to hold 0f1 10 cash
throughout their detention, some had t:ash confiscated and then returned IUld others had !he
cash laken and it was not returned. ,
2]6. Furthcnnore, while most peuports were returned 10 passengers prior to their
dcpanure from Israel and otncrs have sinoe been returned. some pa.ssengm have still flO(

received their passportS nearly four months after the ineKSenl .

237. II is clear in the view of the Mission thallhc Ismeli aUlhorilic:s dKi JlOI put. system
in place to properly record items that were cooft!oCllcd and idcnlify pcnooal effects with
the aim of returning them to me rightful Ownet1 On board the various vcuels, me Israeli
foR:CS conducted extensive searches of the passengers' luggage that left personal
possessions streWn IICfOS$ the cabins in I highly disordetcd Slllie. One witness., who had
been isolated and beal:en, described the surreal experience of sitting handcuffed on a large
heap of lapcops and electronic deYiccs and being "serenaded"' by mobile lelephones
rcconnceting 10 the nclWorit IS the ship approached Ashdod.

238. Some items were l"Cturned to the Turkish authorities and passengers were able to
retrieve some items of luggage from the forensic office in Istanbul. When the vessels were
later returned from Israeli cuslody. some luggage and other items still on board were stored
at an IHH warehouse in Islanbul. However, passengers who went 10 the warehouse were
only able 10 reclaim a few clothing items or cmpIY suitcases. The mission was informed
that items belonging to some of the British passengers wm: also returned 10 !hem by post
via the British Consulate in Israd but that thc:se items were damaged or flO( actually theirs.

239. The mission's attention has been drawn 10' 5Cvcralllllegalions rcprcIing miswc: of
ilems confiscated by the Israeli althorilies, including lapIOp computers, creclit cards and
mobile telephones. On 20 Aueust 2010 it was reported in the ISfIldi medii that "at Icast
four" Israeli soldien had been detained on suspicion of stealing and selling laptops
belonging 10 pm tgefs that were on board the flotilla." Furthermore, at least fow
passcngen have swed that their pmonal itcrns, including credit cards and mobile
lelephones, have bccn subsequently used in ISl'BCI. There is an aca>Unt of a pe.nicular
witness, a journalist, who was on board the Svendoni and alleged that his credit card was
used to purchase items in Isrtlel, both while hc was detained at the Beersheva prison and
after he had been released.~ There is anotner specific account where more than SI ,000 was
spent on a confiscated credit card in Israel!' .

240. Amongst the ilems confiscated and not returned by the Israeli authorities is a large
amount of video and photographtc footage that was recorded on electronic and other media
by p8SSCl1gers, including many professional journalists. on board the VCS!ltls of the flotilla.
This includes a large number of photographtc and video material of the IsnlCli assault and
interception on the Mavi Marmara and otMr vessels. The Israeli authorities have

.. hnp·ftwww ~~diplomlCy-dclC:nscrKlr.soIdl~-o(-thcIl.-Ilom-aaz--fIoI:iIll'

snip-I 308162
IJ hltp;f~h~lZ.comIprinl-edllionfntwsfitaliln-fIoI:illl-jOUI'l\"I~.my-cmlit-Cllrd-wa$-used-lftcr­

Idf·«mflSClited-il-I.295493
.. http://www.guardillll.c:o.ukfworldf2010fjunfl8fgaza-c:onYOy·IClivists4ebit-eard-hud
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subsequently released B very limited amount arlhis for public access, in an edited form.IJ

but the vast majoriry has remained in the private canCrOI aflhc Isl1lCli authorities.

241. The Mission is satisfied that this represents a deliberale 81templ by the Israeli
authorities lO suppress or destroy evidence and other information related 10 the events of31
Mayan the Mavi Marmara and other vessels ofthe Ilocilla.

242. Many joumaJists who were on board the f1oI.illa in their professional capKiry ha...e
subsequently submitted various complaints regarding the confiscation of their data and
equipment and the non-peyment of damages Of compensation. An example armis is a IcncJ
ofbehaJfof the approximately 60 joomalists that was SClt to request action of the European
Commission. The mission is aware of formal claims being prepared on behalfof. number
of passengers whose personal propcrty WII:I taken or confi$Cated on board the Mayj
Marmara and other vessels. The Mission estimates the value of such property 10 be not
inconsidemble.

(b) Vessels oftMflOlilla confucaled by the Isroeli authorities

20. The six vessels of the flotilla were held by the Israeli authorilies fOf" an extended
period of time. For example, the Mavi Mann... DefOe Y llfld Glue I ships wee only
taken co the Turkish port oflskendcu1 on 7 August. more !han two months afta arriving al
the port ofAshdod in Israel.

244. The Mavi Marmara was in a stale of di~pair on its return to Turkey. The ship's
captain II'Id other crew II'Iembers confirmed thaI items damaged had been in full working
order when the ship was taken under the control of the Israeli authorities on 31 May, The
Mission's own investigations confirmed that equipment had been destroyed or badly
damaged including two Automatic Identification Systems (AIS) and a gyro-screen, IWO

Very High Frequency (VHF) handset radio 10ucI speakeB, surveillance and other
equipment, the VHF radio and VHF DSC Walch Receiver, MF-HF radio and DSC
equipment, the control panel indicator. the speed log screen, the rNMARSAT-C scrttn. the
Raytheon Planer-Radar replac:crnent screen, two mobile Global PosiUoning SySlerM (GPS)
and the fire alarm control JIMd. Other items had been removed, including the Salellite
telephone, the ship survey recanting computer and its spare equipmcru and the ship's
journal and all records, including the ship's ccniflC:ale file. In the Ctlgine room, the oontrol
room generator and main contrOl dash were~ed and the gear dash was damaged.
There was oily wiler and submergible pumps in the bilge water compartment of the engine
and the diesel generalor spare pans were scattered with some sea water as well as oillcaks
were prescnt. Furthermore, the engine command and control systems had been tampered
with.

2. Lqll Anllysis of tile dellill of property Illd riCbl to fiudom of ClIpressio_

245. The Mission is mneemcd lhat the acIions of the Israeli authorilies in oonfiscatin~

withholding, and in some cases destroying the priva!e property of many hundreds of
passengen: on board the various vcsseb of the fIocilla represents both a violation of rigtll:S
related 10 property ownership and 10 the freedom ofexpressiOn.

246. Article 17 of the Universal De:c:lanlion of Human Rights states lhat "EvI:f)'ORe has
the nghl 10 own property alone as well 8.1 in usoci81ion wilh othel's; No one shall be
arbitrarily deprived of his property," Insofar as the Unive1'S81 Declantion in considered to
fOl'TTl part of customary intemational law, no Stale may arbitrarily deprive someone of their

If For Cllll1ple, foolqc liken by. pISsengcr on the top dc:ek while lsrxli sotcfic:n Ik$C:endCd onw the
fkc:t; hltpJJ-.yOUlube.lXlftII'wMdI?t,-$6Xmllrz·tl)
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own property. The Mission considers that the Israeli authorities, in disregarding the rights
of many hundreds of passengm 00 board the flotilla 10 their possessions, fails 10 meet a
State's obligalions in relation to righu to own propeny.

247, In rchttion to Intc:mational HumaniUlrian Law. Article 97 of the F<M.a'th Geoeva
Convention SUlles: "Intemoes shall be pc:nnillcd 10 retain llI'ticks ofpcrsonaI use. Monies ...
and valuables in their possession may not be taken from lhem except in .cc:ordancc with
established procedure ... On release or repatrildion: internees shall be given all articles.,
monies or ocher valuables taken from them during internment ... with the exception of any
articles or amounts withheld by the Detaining Power by virtue of its legislation in force. If
the propc:ny of an internee. is so withheld. the owner shall receive a detailed rcceip(. Family
or identil)' documents in the possession of intemte$ may not be taken away without a
rea:ipt being given ......

248. Furthermore, the Inlc:mational Criminal Tribunal for lhe Former Yugoslavia has
eslablished thai as far ItS the de$ltUClion or approprial.ion of property cannol be juSfified by
military necessity. it is unlawful.- Clearly no military nccc:s.sity existed to justify the
confiscalion and continuing appropOllllon of the propeI1)' of the passengers of the Flotilla.
Furthermore, the Mission has been made aware of communications between the Israeli
government and a law firm in the UK, where the 1Sl1ltli govemment admit! 10 retaining
property of the passengers. but does not claim reasons of military necessity but only that the
items are necessary for ongoing inve:stigatloRS within Israel.

2<49. Article 19(2) of the International CovCfWlt on Ciyil and Political Rights stiles tJw
"Everyone shall have !he rip to freedom of expression; this right shall include freedom 10
seek, receive and impart information and ideas of all kinds, regardless of frontiers, either
orally, in writing or in print, in the form ofart, Of through any other media of his choice."
While mis right may be subjecl to certain re:striClions, 11$ set out in .nicle 19(3), none of
Ihese are met in this case mat would allow the Israeli lluthorilies 10 restrict the rights of
journalists and other passengen to freely utilize and share information gathered on board
the vessels of the flotilla. Journalists in panicular have the righllO utiliz:e the tools of their
trade.. 1bc Mission considen that Ihe actions of the Israeli authorities represent. coruinuing
yiolation of the righl 10 freedom of exprC5Slon for the journalists and other passengers on

board the f1olilla.

E. Consequences for Israeli Citizens ofpartidpatioD in tbe Flotilla

FactuJ.1 Description and Findings

250. The Mission found the following faclS to have been established 10 its satisfacliOfl.

(a) Deren/ion and criminalprOUCllliDn oflsraeli ciliuM

25 I. Passengen with Israeli citizc:nship were separaled from odler passengers on arrival
in Ashdod. After inte:rroption, they were informed that they would be detained and face
charges under Israeli law, including anempting to kill. soldier, seizing arms. shooting from
a soldier's gun, organizing violence and being present in. militar)' zone. Although taken to
a different prison. they had similar experiences as the other passengers including sleep
deprivation J.od denialof~ to a lawyer.

2S2. On I June 2010, !he Ashkelon Magis!rate's Court rem8llded in custody four
Palestinian Israelis: Mr. Muhammed Zeidan, Oairman of the High Follow-up Committee

• ICTY, Ju.dgment. T1w ProMCII1~ •. Dario KordlC and MtrIO c.rhz, rT-9S-14I2-T
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for Arab Citizens of Israel; Sheikh Raed Salah, the Head afthe Islamic Movement of Israel
(northern branch); Sheikh Hamad Abu Daabe, Head of the Islamic Movement in Israel
(southern brunch) and Ms. Lubna Masarwa ortne Free GaZli Movement. On 3 June 2010,
the same court decided to release the group with certain conditions, including a period of
house arrest until 8 June. prohibition from leaving the country for 4S days and the posting
of 8 bond of 150,000 Shekels by a third party.

253. The four people have nOI since been indicted OOlItic file is still open and the charges
have not been withdrawn.

(b) Reprisals agaiflSt an elected mem~r a/1M Knessel

254. One member of the Israeli Knesset, Ms Hanecn Zouabi, was a passenger on the
Mavi Marmara. Ms. Zouabi was not detained, but W!ls extensively intcrrogated.

255. As a result of her participation in the flotilla, the Knes5et voted on 7 June 2010 to
remove three of plll'"tiamentllJ)' privileges available to Ms. Zouabi as'a Member of the
Knesset: her privileges in overseas t"wel; her diplomatic passport; payment of any legal
fees in case of removal of her parliamentary immunity from criminal prosecution. The
Knesset held severnl sessions on the issue of her participation in the Flotilla during which
there were racist and sexist remarks and physical thre.als madC: against her. Some
parliamentarians have also called for her to face criminal prosecution and measures, such as
revoking her membership in the Knesset, were discussed. The Israeli Minister of Interior
accused Ms. Zouabi of treason and requested authorization from the Attorney GenCl1l1 to
revoke her citizenship. To date, no criminal proceedings have been initiated against Ms.
Zouabi. Since her participation in the Gaze Flotilla, Ms. Zouabi has received many death
threats.

. 256. The Inter-Parliamentary Union's Committee on the Human Rights of
Parliamentarians adopted a confidential decision at its l30th session in July 2010." holding
the punishment of Ms. Zouabi for exercising her freedom of speech by expressing her
political position to be unacceptable and calling on the Knessetto reconsider its decision.

257. The Mission refrains from any comment on any domestic legal proceedings which
may be sub jlldice. However, the Mission notes that these actions against Israeli citizens
could give rise to certain violations of Israel's international human rigtits obligations.
including freedom of expression, political participation rights and rights to due process.

IV. Accountability and effective remedy

258. The Mission notes that the facts establisheq give rise to a series of violations in law.
In accordance with the provisions of the International Covenant on Civil and Politieal
RighlS. the victims of such violations have a right to an effective remedy which includes
judicial remedies as well as the right to reparations which should be proportionate to the
gravity ofttie violations. In cases of torture, victims should in addition be afforded medical
and psychological care. Finally. article 9 (5) of the Covenant provides for a specific right
to compensation. As far as the grave breaches of the Fourth Geneva Convention are
concerned. these may give rise 10 individual criminal responsibility.

259. In the past. Israel has not honoured its obligations referred to in the preceding
paragraph. It is hoped that on this occasion the ISl1leli authorities and those concerned will
carry oul prompt. independent and impartial judicial investigations of violations of

" Case No. 11M - Haneen Zoabi - IsracI
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international law, including international humanitarian Jaw and human 'rights law, with a
view to bringing the perpetrators to justice.

y. Conclusions

260. 1ne anack on the flotilla must be viewed in the context of the ongoing problems
between the Israeli Government and the Palestinian Authority and People. In carrying oul
its task, the Mission was exposed to the depth of conviction on both sides orthe correctness
oflhciT respective positions. Similar disasters are likely 10 reoccur unless there: is a dramatic
shift in the existing paradigm. It must be remembered that might and strength are enhanced
when anended by a sense: ofJustice and faiT play. Peace and respect have to be earned not
bludgeoned OUI of any opponent. An unfair victory has never been known to bring lasting
p'ou.

261. The Mission has come to the finn conclusion that a humanitarian crisis existed on
the 3 I May 201.0 in Gaza. 11Ie preponderance of evidence from impeccable sources is far
too overwhelming to come to a contrary opinion. Any denial that this is so cannot be
supported on any rational grounds. One of the consequences flowing from this is that for
this reason alone the blockade: is unlawful and cannot be sustained in law. This is so
regardless of the grounds on which it is sought to justify the legality onhe blockade:.

262. Cenain results flow from this conclusion. Principally, thc action of the IDF in
intercepting the Mavi Marmara in the circumstances and for the reasons given on the high
sea was clearly unlawful. Specifically, lhe action cannot be justified in the circumstances
even under Article 5 I of the United Nations Charter.

263. Israel seek! to justify the blockade on security grounds. The State of Israel is entitled
to peace and security like any other. The firing of rockets and other munitions of war into
Israeli terrilOry from Gaza constitutes serious violations of international and international
humanitarian law. But action in response which constil\ltes collective punishment of the
civilian populalion in Gaza is not lawful in the present or any circumstances.

264. ~e conducl of the Israeli military and other personnel towards Ihe flotilla
passengers was not only disproportionate 10 the occasion but demonstrated levels of totally
unnecessary and incredible violence. II betrayed an unacceptable level of brutality. Such
conduct cannot be justified or condoned on security or any other grounds. It constituted
grave violations ofhuman rights law and international humanitarian law. .

265. The Mission considers that several violations and offences have been commilted. It
is not satisfied thaI, in the time available. it can say that il has been able to compile a
comprehensive list of all offences. However, there is elear evidence to support prosecutions
of the following crimes within the terms ofarticle 147 oflhe Fourth Geneva Convention:

• wilful killing;

• tooure or inhuman treatment;

• wilfully causing great suffering or serious injury to body or health.

The Mission also considers that a series of violations of Israel's obligations under
international human rights law have taken place, including:

• right to tife{article 6, ICCPR);

• lonure and other cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment (article 7,
ICCPR;CAD;
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• righl 10 liberty and security of the person and freedom from arbib'lll')'~ or
detention (article 9, ICCPR)j

• right of detainees 10 be !teated with humanity and respect for the inherent dignity of
the human pason (article 10, lCCPR);

• freedom of expression (article 19, ICCPR).

The right to an effective remedy should be guaranlecd to all victims. The mission must nol
be understood to be saying that this is Il comprehensive Jist by any means.

266. The Mission nola thaI the retention by the Israeli authorities of unlawfully seized
property remains a continuing offence and Israel is callod upon 10 return such property
fonhwith. •

267. The ~ors of the more serious crimes beiRi masked cannot be idenliftcd
without the lWi.stanoe of tbe Israeli IWtflorities. They reaacd in a violent manntf" whc:oeva"
they thought that anyone was ancmpling 10 identifY them. The mission sincerely hopes mal
there will be coopemion &om the Israeli govc:rnment 10 assist in !heir idenlificaliOfi with a
view 10 prosecuting the cutpabk: and bring closure 10 the situation,

268. The Mission is aware that this is not the first time that the Government of Israel has
declined to ooopcralc with an inquiry inlo events in which it:! military penonnel were
involved. On this occasion the Mission accepts the assurances of the Israeli Permanent
Representative thai Inc position which he was dirccted to follow was in no way directed
towards tnc members of the Mission in their personal capacities. It is nonetheless
regrettable that. on yCl anothcf occasion of an enquiry into events involving loss of life at
the hands of the Israeli military, the. Government of Israel has declined to cooperate in an
enquiry not appointet! by it or on which it was signiflClll\tly reprcsc:nted. .

269. The Mission regretS that its requests 10 the Permanent Mission of Israel for
infonnllion were not entertained. The: reason initially given was that the Govcm~t of
Israel had c:stabIi$hed its own independent panel of distirtg\lishc:d penons 10 investigate the
flolilla incident The Mission was told that for tha! reason and also because the Sccrctary­
General h-' al.so anrounced the establishment of another distinguished panel with a similar
mandate, that "an addilional Human Rights Council initiative in this regard an: both
unnecessary and lll'tpl"OduClivc",

270. The Mission did not agree with that position and for that reason suggcsted to the
Permanent Representative of Israel that he should direct to the Council and not the Mission
a request that the Mission defer submitting its repon to permit other enquiries to complele
their tasks. The Mission has not received any direction from the Council to date and
considers that il would have been obligated to respond positively to any sudl directive from
the Council.

271. In the litht ofthc fact lhat the Turitcl Committee and 1he Secretary-General', panel
have not concluded thcir sittings, the Mission will refrain from any remarks which ate

capable of being construed as not allowing those bodies to compkte thc:ir tasks "lWIfcnCf'Cd
by exlcmal events". The Mission confines i~fto tnc obscfvaLion that public: confidence in
any investiptive process in circumstances such as the pracnt is not enhanced when the
subjecl ofan invcstigldion either investigates himselfor plays a pivollll role in the process.

272. Elsewhere in this report the Mission has refCl"rc:d to the fact thai il found it neccs.sary
to reinlCfJ:l'Cl its mandate because of the manner in which the resolution appointing it was
couched .II is importanl in the drafting of maners of the sort thatlhe impteSsion is noc given
of the 'ppcarancc of lIny prc-judgmenl. 1bc Mission took particular care at the first
opportunity to indicate that it interpreted its mandate 1$ mjuiring il to approach its task
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without any precollCCplions or prejudices. It wishes 10 assure all concerned that il has held
to that position scrupulously.

273. All the passcngm on board the ships comprising the flotilla who appeared before
me Miuion imprc:sscd the members as pc:nons genuinely commined 10 the spirit of
humanitarianism and imbued with • deep and genuine concern for the welfare of the
inhabitantS of Gaza. The MissM:m can only express the !lope that diffmnces will be
resolved in the short ra1hcr man the: king tc:nn so that pc:ac:e and harmony may exist in the-
274. Nine human beings lost their lives and sevenl others suffered serious injuries. From
the observations of the Mission deep psychological scars have been infltctcd by what mUSl
have been a very traumatic C1tperieocc: not only for the passengers but also the soldiers who
received injuries. The members orille Mission sympathise with all concerned and panicular
with the families oflhe deceased.·

275. The Mission is oot alone in finding that I deplorable situation cxists in G&lJL It hlU
been charlCterizcd as 'unsustainable'. This is IOtllIly in~erable and unacceptable in Ihe
21st Century. It is amazing that anyone could chaJacterise the condition of the people there
as salisfyina the most basic of acxq:ubIe standards. The: parties and the international
community are urged 10 find the solution that will address all legitimate security concern of
bam Israel and the pcopIe of Pakstine bam of whom are c:qua1ly entitled 10 "1heir place
oodc:r the heavens". The apperent dicholomy in this case between the competing right of
security and the right 10 • decent living can only be resolved if old antagonisms an.
subordinated to a sense ofjustice and fair play. One has to find the strengm to pluck &om
the memory rooted sorrows and 10 move on.

276. The Mission has given thought 10 Ihe posilion of humanitarian organitalions who
wish to intervene in siluations of long-standing humanitarian crisis where the international
community is unwilling for whatever reason 10 take positive action. Too often are they
accused as being meddlesome and at wOfSC as terrorists or enemy agents.

277. A dislindion is made between activilies taken to alleviate aises and action to
8ddress the causes creating the crisis. The laner action is ~erized as political action
and therefOR inappropriate for groups that wish lO be classifJtd as humaniUlrian. This point
is made because of the evidence mat while some of the pas.scngen were solely interested in
delivering supplies to the people in Qua. for othen me main purpose was raising
awareness of lhe blockade wilh a view to its removal, as the only way to solve the crisis.
An examination should be made 10 clearly define humanitarianism as distioci from
humanitarian &Clion so that there can be an agreed fonn of intervention and jurisdiction
when humaniwian crises occur.

278. 11M: Mission sincerely hopes mat no impc:diment ~i11 be put in the way ofthosc who
suffered loss as a result of the unlawful actions of the lsraeli military to be compensetc:d
adequately and promptly. It is hoped mat there will be swift action by the Government of
Israel. This will ga along .....y to revening the regrtttaMe reptJUlion which that counny has
for impunity IWId inumsigc:nce in international affairs. II will also assist those who
genuinely sympathise with !heir siruation to support them without being stigrnalised.

"
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[NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTEDI

From:"
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Classification:

Cassidy. Joseph P
Thursday. September 30, 2010 9:11 AM
Melia, Thomas 0; Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M; Baer, 'Daniel B; Posner, Michael H
Sicade. lynn M(DRl); Galindo. David R
FW: HRClS RESULTS

UNCLA$$IAED

Votes are rolling in. Here are some results. David G is preparing a morning update for the Front Office.

,----------------------------NR

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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From: Millar, McKenzie
To: Lapenn, Jessicai Tat, Osman Ni cassayre, Mark Ji Nassel, Suzanne F; Honlgstein, Michael 0; Griffiths, Douglas Mi
'Patel, Gayatri Ai Brancato, Gilda Mi $icade, Lynn M (DRL); cassidy, Joseph P; Trumbull, Charles P; Geneva HRC15
sent: Wed Sep 29 09:41:29 2010
Subject: HRC15 RESULTS

L33: Follow up to fact finding mission (Flotilla)

US called vote.
Y:30
Nl
Abs. 15
Resolution passed.

NR
I

--------------- 1 NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905419 Date: 12/3112015



StateDept008892

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905419 Date: 1213112015 NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. De artment of Slate Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905419 Date: 1213112015



StateDept008893

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905419 Date: 1213112015 NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. De artment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905419 Date: 1213112015



StateDept008894

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905419 Date: 12131/2015 NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. De artment of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905419 Date: 12131/2015



StateDept008895

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F·2010·04163 Doc No. C05905419 Date: 1213112015

,
••••• OISCLAIMER ••••• Deze e-mail en al zijn bijlagen zijn uitsluitend voor de
geadresseerde bestemd en kunnen vertrouwelijke informatie bevatten. Als u deze boodschap
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verantwoordelijk worden gesteld voor enige wijziging van zijn bericht tijdens de
elektronische transmissie.
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject

Fittpatrick. Kathleen M
Saturday, December 11. 2010 8:29 AM
Hutchings. Jilt Graze. Deborah E; Posner. Michael H; Austrian, Courtney E
Fw: Overnight Brief 12/11/--lran stoning case

NR

From: OpsAlert
sent: 50t Dec 11 05:30:08 2010
SUbject: Overnight Brief 12/11/1 (58U)

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

EXECUTIVE SECRETARlAT
Operations Ctmter

Overnight Brief
Saturday, Duembu II, 2010

0530 EST

WIKILEAKS UPDATE

ISRAEL OFFERS COMPENSATION FOR TURKISH DEATHS
(SaU) Israeli Prime Minister Netanyahu proposed paying $100,000 to each family oCthe nine Turkish citizens
killed during the raid on a Gaza~bound aid flotilla in May, in exchange for Turkish protection against lawsuits,
media report. Embassy Ankara conunents while promising, the proposal falls short of Turkey's demand for a
formal apology. Embassy Tel Aviv adds Israel is treading carefully to avoid being perceived as acquiescing to
Turkish demands. (OpslEmbassy Ankara e-mail, OpslEmbassy Tel A v;v Ie/con, A/ Jazeera)

r~~~~~_AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior I
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Ashraf, Madeeha 5
Friday. August 06, 20107:31 PM
Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner. Michael H
FW: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding.Mission (FFM): What Next ?

Sorry, just read the high side chain on this same subject and realized that neither DRL, nor l were on this chain. I'm
asking 10 to redo the cable on this based on the points discussed on this chain.

Thanks,

Madeeha
Classified by M. DoS on 12131/2015 - Class: CONFIOENTIAl- Reason:
1.4(8),1.4(0),81 - Declassify on: 08/0612025

Madeeha Ashraf
D(S) Staff
202-647·8690

From: Ashraf, Madeeha 5
Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 6:56 PM
To: Bass, Warren; Anderson, Gerald C; Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Dicarlo, Rosemary A
(USUN); 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Shapiro, Daniel 8.'; 'Power, Samantha J.'; 'Geffen, Daniel A.'
Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; lapenn, Jessica
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

Thanks,

65

Madeeha

Madeeha Ashraf
DeS) Staff
202-647-8690

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior'
Reviewer

From: Bass, Warren
Sent: Friday, August 06, 20106:04 PM .
To: Anderson, Gerald C; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Dicarlo, Rosemary
A (USUN); 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Shapiro, Daniel B.'; 'Power, samantha J.'; 'Geffen, Daniel A.'
Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; lapenn, Jessica
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?
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From: Anderson, Gerald C
sent: Friday, August 06,20105:59 PM
To: Ashraf, Madeeha S; Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Bass, Warren; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Dicarlo, Rosemary A
(USUN); 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Shapiro, Daniel B.'; 'Power, Samantha J.'; 'Geffen, Daniel A.'
Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; carpenter, Michael R: Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Ashraf, Madeeha S
.Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 5:57 PM
To: Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Bass, Warren; Barks·Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; Dicarlo, Rosemary A
(USUN); 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Shapiro, Daniel B.'; 'Power, samantha J.'; 'Geffen, Daniel A.' .
Cc: Nessel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Aotilla Fact-Rnding Mission (FFM): What Next?

Madeeha Ashraf
O(S) Staff
202·647-8690

From: Walles, Jacob
sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 5:54 PM
To: 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Bass, Warren; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; Dicarlo, Rosemary
A (USUN); Busby, SCott W.; Shapiro, Daniel e.; Power, Samantha J.; Geffen, Daniel A.
CC: Nassel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica
SUbject:: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza F10tllla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next?

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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From:! . 86
sent: ~August"06"',2"0"1"Oc5":1"goPM..--------
To: Ashraf, Madeeha 5; Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacob; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; DiCaoo, Rosemary A
(USUN); Busby, 5cott W.; Shapiro, Daniel B.; Power, Samantha J.; Geffen, Daniel A.
Cc: Nessel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michaef R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jess.ic3
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gala Flotilla Fact-Rnding Misslon (FFM): What Next?

Sorry, just got out of a bunch of mtgs.

85

Thanks.
Prem

From: Ashraf, Madeeha 5 [mailto:AshrafM5@state.gov]
sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 3:34 PM
To: Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacob; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; Dicarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); Busby, Scott
W.; Shapiro, Daniel e.; Power, Samantha J.; Kumar, Prem G.; Geffen, Daniel A.
Cc: Nessel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gala Flotilla Fad-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

Gerry,

I know this isn't full cleared 'but in the interest of time 0 left for leave {ada I went ahead and shared with him. 85

Thanks.

Madeeha

MadeehaAshraf
O(S) Staff
202-647-8690

From: Bass, Warren
sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 12:45 PM
To: Walles, Jaoob; Bam-Ruggles, Erica J; Ander>on, Gerald C; lliCarb, Rosema A USUN ;

B6
___--' Geffen, Daniel A.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905343 Date: 1213112015
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Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact·Rnding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

+ Jessye lapenn (who'll be minding the store for Suzanne) and Dan Geffen (who's been doing likewise for Scott).

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Walles, Jacob
sent: Friday, August 06,201011:51 AM
To: Barks·Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; Dicarlo, Roserna 66

: osse, uzanne F; carpenter, MiCflael R;ASfiF.i, a ee a; , arren; u man, ra
SUbject: Re: Heads up: HRC Gaz~ Flotilla Fact-Anding Mission (FFM): What Next?

+ Mara

From: Barks-Ruggles, Erica J .
To: Anderson. Gerald C: DiCaI1o. Rosemary A (USUN); Walles. Jacob:I _

I""Cccc:-cN~os=se"I,-os~u-za-n-n-e~F~;~ca-r-pe-n~te-r-,~M~ic~ha~e"I""R-;7A5"hC:ra:C;I~,M=ad:;:ee=ha=S;-cBa=ss~,~W;;ca"rc:rec:n-------------
Sent: fri Aug 06 11:07:17 2010
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next?

Erica

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Anderson, Gerald C
sent: Friday, August 06, 20109:59 AM
To: DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); Walles, Jacob; 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Shapiro, Daniel Bo'
Cc: Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Ashraf, Madeeha S
Subject: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Rnding Mission (FFM): What Next?

Here's Geneva's cable reporting the state of play. Would welcome your thoughts on the course of action outlined
below:

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department 01 State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905343 Date: 12/3112015
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sau
This email is UNClASSIFIED.

From: Cassayre, Mark J
To: Donahoe, Eileen C; IO-HR·DL; Geneva HRC; Griffiths, Douglas M; Nossel, Suzanne F
Sent: Fri Aug 06 06:44:48 2010
Subject: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Anding Mission: What Next? .

Flotilla Cable below.

UNCLASSIFIED

85

MRN:

Date/DTG:
From:

Action:
E.O.:

TAGS:

Captions:
Reference:
Subject:

10 GENEVA 664

Aug 06, 2010 I 061035Z AUG 10
USMISSION GENEVA

WASHDC, SECSTATE IMMEDIATE

13526
PHUM, PREL, IS, KPAL, TU, UNHRC-1

SENSITIVE

A) GENEVA 654
HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission: What Next?

1. (U) This is an action request. See para 13.

SUMMARY

2. (SBUl Following Secretary General Ban Ki-moon' 5 announcement (on
August 2) of a panel of inquiry into the May 31 flotilla incident, and the
decision of both Israel and Turkev to coonerate with this investination

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Stale Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905343 Date: 1213112015
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85

End Summary.

Reactions to Ban's Announcement

3. (U) Human Rights Council President Sihasak Phuanketkeow (Thailand)
stated at a press conference on August 4 that the Geneva and New York
processes would not overlap, but would "complement" one another. He
stated that the Geneva process would focus on "perceived violations of
human rights and humanitarian law" while the New York process would focus
on preventing similar incidents in the future.

81
1.4(8)
1.4(D)

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905343 Date: 1213112015
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1.4(6)
1.4(0)
61

Status of the Geneva Investigation

-,. (SBU) Discussions with the OHCHR staff supporting the Geneva fact­
finding mission closely tracked with the view outlined by the HRC
President in his August 4 press statement (see para 2). The fact-finding
mission sees itself as having a clear, "fixed" mandate from the HRC to
investigate alleged violations of international human rights and
hUmanitarian law, during the specific event 'of the flotilla
incident. Ban's announcement does not change or affect that mandate.

8. {SaUl The fact-finding mission members will meet in Geneva beginning
August 9 and will devise a formal plan of work. While in Geneva, the
members will request meetings with several diplomatic missions including
the United States.

9. (SBUl The fact-finding mission intends to request travel to Jordan,
Turkey, and Israel to speak with government officials and witnesses. They
intend to write a report detailing what occurred with an analysis of
whether international law was violated. The group will submit the report
at the September 2010 session of the Human Rights Council, at which point
the mandate will be completed, barring any new resolution extending the
mandate. Given the short timetable for the panel to carry out its work
and the insatiable appetite of many HRC delegations for scrutiny of
Israeli conduct, a call from some quarters to extend the mandate is judged
likely_

61
1.4(6)
1.4(0)

Comment and Possible Alterna~ives

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905343 Date: 1213112015
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S6U
This email is UNClASSIFIED.
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.4(B),Bl,1.4(D),NR

From:

Sent
To:

. Subject:

Categories:
Classification:
sensitivitYcode:

Griffiths. Douglas M
Friday, July 16, 20106:05 AM
Bass. Warren; Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M; Geneva HRC; Donahoe. Eileen C; IO·ttR·OL;
Nossel, Suzanne F; DRl-MlGA-Dl; King. Betty; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E;
Anderson, Brooke 0 (USUN); Simon, Jennifer J; Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko.
Barbara J (USUN): Ried. Curtis R (USUN); SChedlbauer, Amy W; Banos. Mariano H;
Cassidy, Joseph P: Johnston-Gardner. Sarah R (DRl); Andris, Matthew R; Doutrich. Jack T;
Holmstrom, Todd C; Walles. Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G:; 'Busby, Scott W:; Posner, Michael
H; Graze. Deborah E
RE: sau - Israelis on Flotilla and Goldstone Committees

Working
UNCLASSIFIED
Sensitive

High Commissioner PillaV has removed Motola from the Goldstone follow-up committee and replaced him with Sim<;m
Walker, who was described as a "'straight arrow'" by an OHCHR contact.

Interesting example of engagement with Pillay a~ually having a tangible result.

SBU
This email is UNClASSIFIED.

lassified by M, DoS on 12131/2015 - Class: CONFIDENTIAL­
eason: 1.4(8 ,1.4(0),81 - Declassi on: 07/1612025

From: Bass, Warren
Sent: Thursday, July 15, 2010 5:51 PM
To: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Griffiths, Douglas M; Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Eileen C; Io-HR~DL; Nassel, Suzanne F; DRl·
MlGA-Dl; King, Betty; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Simon, Jennifer J; Gennain,
Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); SChedlbauer, Amy W; Banos, Mariano H; cassidy,
Joseph P; Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRL); Andris, Matthew R; Doutrich, Jack T; Holmstrom, Todd C; Walles, Jacob;
'Kumar, Prem G.'; Busby, Scott W.
Subject: sau - Israelis on Flotilla and Goldstone Committees

looping the usual Goldstone suspects and USUN/NV.

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Sent: Thursday, July 15, 2010 11:45 AM
To: Griffiths, Douglas M; Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Bleen C; lo-HR~Dl; Nossel, Suzanne F;· DRl-MlGA-Ol; King, Betty;
Bass, Warren; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E
Subject: Re: S8U - Israelis on Actilla and Goldstone Convnlttees

Looping in NS Posner and PDAS Graze.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Stale Case No. F-201C>-04163 Doc No. CD5905319 Date: 1213112015
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From: Griffiths, Douglas M
To: Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Eileen C; rD-HR-Dl; Nessel, Suzanne F; DRL-MlGA-DL; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; King, Betty;
Bass. Warren
Sent: Thu Jul15 11:30:58 2010
Subject: SBU - Israells on Flotilla and Goldstone Committees

SBU - Entire Text:

Ronny Yaar met with Pillay. I

On the Flotilla issue! B1
1.4(
1.4(

NR

B)
D)

Regards,

Doug

Douglas M. Griffiths
Deputy Permanent Representative
Tel: (41) 022 749 4302
Email: GriffithsDM@State.Gov

Please visit the U.s. Mission Homepage, become afan on Focebook, orfollow us on Twitter.

U.S. Mission Homepage I Facebook Page I Twitter I YouTube

S6U
This email is UNCLASSIFIED..
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From:
sent:
To:
Subject:

Thks

Posner, Michael H
Friday. July 23. 20107:11 AM rRELEASE IN PART"]
Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M l"IB",6~ .J_
Re: $BU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla fact-Finding.Misston

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
To: POsner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Ueberman, Jessk:a 0 (ORt); Johnstone, Kari A (DRl)
Cc: 5i<;ade, Lynn M (ORL); Johnston-<iardner, sarah R (ORL)
sent: Fri Jul 23 07:08:51 2010
Subject: Fw: SBU -Final Composition eX HRC FlotiUa Fact-Finding Mission

Mike-below is the final list of members of the flotilla fact· findingm~ just in from Geneva..

From: Griffiths, Douglas M
To: Bass, Warren; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Eileen C; IO-HR-OL; Nossel, Suzanne F; DRl-MLGA­
DL; King, Betty; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Simon, Jennifer J; Germain, Ellen J
(USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); R~, Curtis R (USUN); Schedlbauer, Amy W; Banos, Mariano H; cassidy, Joseph Pi
~"!'fston-Gard: sarah R:DRL); Andr~; Matthew R: Ooutrich, Jack T: Ho!mslrom TCKldf Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, ?rem 86

5erit: Fri Jul n :40:30 2 10
Subject: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission

Dear all,

Here's the final composition. Apparentty an Austrian candidate dropped out this week upOn the recommendation of the
Austrian government. At the bottom I pasted the Wikipedia bio on the new member from Trinidad arid Tobago.

Regards,

Doug

Dear Colleagues,

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

With reference to my earlier emails to you below, there has been some chaJ"lies In the composition of the FFM on Flotilla.

The announcement will be made earty afternoon today with the final list of the members of the FFM as folk>ws:

Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, QC (Trinidad and Tobago), served as a judge of the International Criminal COurt from 2003 to 2007. He was

Attorney General and Minister of legal Affairs of Trinidad and Tobago between ).969 and 1973. He was appointed Queen's Counsel
IOC) in 1971. He has now returned to private practk:e with Chambers in Trinidad and Tobago and Grenada, West Indies.

Sir Desmond de Silva, QC (United Kingdom), is a lawyer with extensive experience in human rights, war crimes, terrorism, business
crime, espionage trials and sports law. He served as Chief Prosecutor of the UN backed Spedal CCXJrt for Sierra leone in 2005 at the

level of an Under·secretary General of the United Nations. He has been Queen's Counsel (OC) since 1984.

"

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201O-04163 Doc No. C05905328 Date: 1213112015
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Mary Shanthl Dairiam (Malaysia) was a member of the Committee on the Elimination of DiscrhT!ination against Women from 200S to
2008. Since 2007, she has been serving on the Gender Equality Task Force of the United Nations Development Programme. She is a
founding member of the Soard of Directors of the International Women's Rights Action Watch Asia Pacific.

Sincerely,

Kanita

Kanita Sapphaisal
Second secretary
Permanent Mission ofThailand to the UN Office
and other International Organizations in Geneva
Tel. +41227151010

+41227151028
Fall. +41 22 715 1000

Karl Terrence Hudson-Phillips, Q&.: (b. Apri120. 1933) is a fonner Attorney General of Trinidad and
Tobago and a fonner judge of the International Criminal Court. He was also Lead Counsel in the murder trial of
Grenadian Prime Minister Maurice Bishop.

Hudson-Phillips read law at Selwyn College. University of Cambridge; after completing a Master's degree in
Law in 1959 he was called to the bar at Gray's Inn. London. He returned to Trinidad and Tobago where he
established a distinguished legal practice and was appointed a Oueen's Counsel in 1970. He served as a Member
of Parliament from 1966 to 1976. Between 1969 and 1973 he served as Attorney General and Minister of Legal
Affairs. In this capacity he was associated with the dreaded "Public Order Act" which was proposed by the
People's National Movement govenunent in response to the Black Power riots and Army Mutiny of 1970. In
1973 he fell out of favour with then Prime Minister Eric Williams (for openly campaigning to replace Williams.
who had spoken about re~irement). This ended his political career in the PNM.

In 1974 Hudson-Phillips founded the National Land Tenants and Ratepayers Association of Trinidad and
Tobago. In 1980 he founded the Organisation for National Reconstruction. a political party which contested the
1981 General Elections. Despite getting the second-highest vote tally in the election, the ONR failed to secure a
single seat in Parliament. The ONR went on to form an accommodation with the National Alliance to contest
the 1983 local government elections. and went on the merge with those parties to"form the National Alliance for
Reconstruction. Hudson-Phillips and Basdeo Panday. as the leaders of the two largest factions in what became
the NAR decided to step aside and allow A.N.R. Robinson, leader of one of the smaller parties, to become party
leader. The NAR contested the 1986 general elections and won 33 of the 36 seats in Parliament. However,
Hudson-Phillips did not take an active role in the party after the election (allegedly due to disagreements with
A.N.R. Robinson).

In addition to the Grenada murder trial. Hudson-Phillips has been involved in many high-profile cases
throughout the Caribbean, as both Presecutor and Defender. In 1999 he was elected President of the Law
Association ofTrinidad and Tobago.

In February 2003. Hudson-Phillips was elected to the first ever bench of International Criminal CourtJudges.
As "dean of the judges", he chaired the first meetings ofjudges before the election of the Presidency. He also
contributed actively to the drafting of the Regulations of the Court. He resigned from the court for personal
reasons on 14 March 2oo7.W .

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905328 Date: 1213112015
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[edit] Publications

• Hudson~Phillips. K. 1968. The Historical Development ofthe Settlement a/Trade Disputes in Trinidad
and Tobago. I.L.O. Monograph.

• Hudson·Phillips. K.. 1987. A Case for Greoler Public Participation in the Legislalive Process. Statute
Law Review.

• Hudson-Phillips. K. 1997. Law and Practice ofArbitration in Trinidad and Tobago. International
Commercial Arbitration Bulletin.

[edit] References

I. f\ Illnternational Criminal Court (19 March 2007). RqignaJion ofJudU Karl T. Hudso~-Phillips. Accessed I J
Man:h 2009. .

[edit] External links

• lntemational Cnminal Court Biography
• Curriculum Vitae, 2002

Retrieved from ''http://en.wikipedia.orglwikilKarl Hudson-Phillips"

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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81,1.4{D),NR,B3 DOO-PI

From:
sent:
To:
Cc
Subject:
Attachments:

Hi A/S Posner,

Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRl)
Monday, November 01, 2010 4:34 PM

Posner, Michael H
Stanfield, Emily; Lieberman, Jessica 0 (ORl); Casskly. Joseph P; Mann, Winston E (DRl)

Read out re-tn meeti with 63 DOD-PH

lassified by M, DoS on 12131/2015 - Class: CONFIOENTIAl- Reason: 1.4(8), 1.4(0), 81
Declassify on: 11/01/2025 B3 D D-PII

•

•

•

•

•

•

I
NR

f---------------------------
B1
1.4(D)

NR

~:_==r===;::===__===~~==_======~;::::;_====B3DOD-PII
• On flotillaL jthought the GOI would be able to admit error/mistake with us. I asked about comparative

U.s. examples and procedures. He didn't think we would do what they did (drop down on the ship at night,

etc). But we are not entorong similar blockades.

I NR

------------,-----------------'
Best,
Sarah REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad. Senior

Reviewer

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs OffICt'f
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rignts and taoor (DRll

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04163 Doc No. C05905430 Date: 1213112015
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From:
Sent:
To:
Cc
Subject
Attachments:

Yetken, Melike A (DRl)
Tuesday, September 28. 2010 12:21 AM
DRl-Users·Dl

DRl UNG~ 2010; =======:::J
Final UNGA Readouts: 9/27
UNGA Readout 092710.docx

86.

Colleagues,

See below for the UNGA team's final readout from meetings today in New York.

Many thanks for your cOntinued patience throughout lhe UNGA process. The FO had many successful meetings due to
your hard work. .

With much appreciation and respect,

The DRL UNGA Team (Emily Stanfield, Josh Morris, Joannella Morales, Alan Krill, Joe Cassidy, and Melike.Yetken)

From: Melike Yet!<en I
To: yetken, Melike A (DRl)
Sent: Tue Sep 28 00:11:55 2010
Subject: UNGA ReaOOul 9/27

DRL UNGA: Daily Meetings Readout

Monday, Septen:..ber 27, 2010

~ -- --
Classified by M, DoS on 12131/2015 - Class: CONFIDENTIAl- Reason: 1.4(8), 1.4(0),

1 - Declassify on: 09/2812025 •

In this readout:

• DAS Melia's Meeting with Turkey (9/27)
• DAS.Melia's Meeting with Mauritius (9/27)
• DAS Melia's Meeting with Maldives (9/27)
• DAS Melia's Meeting with Spain (9/27)
• DAS Melia's Meeting with Canada (9/27)
• DAS Baer's Meeting with Ghana.(9/24)
• UPDATED: DAS Baer's Meeting with Peru (9/24)
• SEAS Hannah Rosenthal's Meeting with France, Argentina, Spain, Ukraine, and

Lithuania (9/23-9/24) ,

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

DAS Melia's Meeting with Turkey (9/27)
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DAS Melia meeting with Turkey DirGen for Multilateral Affairs Fertekligil

Topics covered:

• Flotilla

NR
\

Following a discussion of human rights conditions in Turkey, including the recent constitutional
amendments and the treatment ofTurkey's Kurds, DAS Melia and Amb. Fertekligil turned to
the summer's Flotilla event and its multilateral aftermath in NY and Geneva,1 81

1.4(8)
1.4(0)

NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201o-04163 Doc No. C05905371 Date: 1213112015



StateDept008916

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No."C05905371 Date: 1213112015

r

DAS Melia's Meeting with Maldives (9/27)
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[RELI::ASE IN PART I
~BJ.Bl.B5.1.4(D).~

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Hello, )

Johnston-Gardner. Sarah R(DRl)
Friday, July 23, 2010 10:55 AM
Fitzpatrick:, Kathleen M; Posner. Michael H; Graze. Deborah E; Lieberman, Jessica 0
(DRl); Johnstone. Kari A (DRl)

Sicade, lynn M (DRl); Stanfield, Emily; McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P
RE: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission

I

I wanted to offer a little additional background on the debate over the membership of this mission.

The Fact-finding Mission was mandated this past June in HRC Resolution 14{1. They are mandated with investigating the
"Israeli violations of international law" in the Gaza flotilla incident. Once OHCHR selected'members; Turkey voiced
opposition to one member, Dino Kritsiotis (Zimbabwe). HC Pillay removed him and replaced him with a new member
from Trinidad and Tobago. I I 85

I I
Israel does not intend to cooperate with this committee, but has noted they are cooperating with the UNSYG who may
be establishing a separate investigation. This committee is supposed to report their findings in the September HRC
session. MAG Mandelblit mentioned yesterday that Israel's domestic commission, led by Turkel, will not complete their
work until September, which would be too late for this mission to include the Turkel conclusions in their report. Senior
level testimony before the Turkel Commission begins the first week of August with PM Netanyahu, Mandelblit said the
testimony for this commission will be publiC. I 81

1.4(6)
1.4(0)

Best,
Sarah Classified by M DoS on 12/31/2015 - Class: CONFIDENTIAL - Reason:

1.4(8),1.4(0),61 - Declassify on: 07/23/2025

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs {MLGA}
202-647-2286

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 7:09 AM

. To: Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Lieberman, Jessica 0 (ORl); Johnstone, Kari A (ORl)
Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRl); Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRL)
SUbject: Fw: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Aotilla Fact-Anding Mission

Mike-below is the final list of members of the flotilla fact-finding mission just in from Geneva..

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905327 Date: 1213112015
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From: Griffiths, Douglas M
To: Bass. Warren; Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M; Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Eileen C; ID-HR-Ol; NosseI, Suzanne F; ORl-MlGA­
Dl; King, Betty; Posner, Michael H; Glaze, Deborah E; Anderson, Brooke 0 {USUN}; Simon, Jennifer J; Germain, Ellen J
(USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Schedlbauer, Amy W; Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy, Joseph P;
~rston--Gard:Sarah R~OfU.): Andrist Matthew R' ClcMl:idlJack T' Holmst~ C; Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem 86

sent: Fri JuJ 23 :40:30L10' 1
SUbject: SBU -Rnal Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission

Dear all,

Here's the final'composition. Apparently an Austri~n candidate drop~d out this week upon the recommendation of the
Austrian government. At the bottom I pasted the Wikipedia bio on the new membe"r from Trinidad and Tobago.

Regards,

Doug

Dear Colleagues.

With reference to my earlier emails to you below. there has~ some changes in the composltion'Ofthe FFM on Aotilla.
The announcement will be made early aftemooo today with the final list of the members of the FFM as follows:

Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, QC (Trinidad and Tobago). served as a judge of the International Criminal Court from 2003 to 2007. He was
Attorney General and Minister of Legal Affairs ofTrinidad and Tobago between l!ij)9 and 1973. He was appointed Queen's Counsel
(QC) in 1971. He has now returned to private practice With Chambers In TrinKfad and Tobago and Grenada, West Indies.

Sir Desmond de Silva, QC (UnIted Kingdom), is a lawyer with extensive experience In human rights, war crimes, terrorism, business
crime, espionage trials and sports law. He served as Chief Prosecutor of the UN backed Special Court for Sierra Leone in 2005 at the
level of an Under-secretary General of the United 'Nations. He has been Queen's Counsel IQC) since 1984:

Mary Shanthi Dalriam (Malaysia) was a member of the Committee on the Elimlnatton of Discrimination against Women from 2005 to
2008. Since 2007, she has been serving on the Gender Equality Task Force of the United Nations Development Programme. She is a
founding member of the Board of Directors of the International Women's Rights Action Watch AsIa Pacific.

Sincerely,

Kanita

Kanita sapphaisat
second secretary
Permanent Mission of Thailand to the UN Office
and other International Organizations in Geneva
Tel. +41227151010

+41227151028
Fax. +41 22 715 1000

r
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Karl Terrence Hudson-Phillips,2&: (b. April 20, 1933) is a former Attorney General of Trinidad and
Tobago and a fonner judge of the International Criminal Court. He was also Lead Counsel in the murder triai of
Grenadian Prime Minister Maurice Bishop.

Hudson-PhilJips read law at Selwyn College. University of Cambridge; after completing a Master's degree in
Law in 1959 he was called to the bar at GF8Y'S Inn, London. He returned to Trinidad and Tobago where he
established a distinguished legal practice and was appointed a Queen's Counsel in 1970. He served as a Member
of Parliament from 1966 to 1976. Between 1969 and 1973 he served as Attorney General and Minister of Lega!
Affairs. In this capacity he was associated with the dreaded "Public Order Act" which was proposed by the
People's National Movement government in response to the Black Power riots and Army Mutiny of 1970. In
1973 he fell out of favour with then Prime Minister Eric Williams (for openly campaigning to replace Williams,
who had spoken about retirement). This ended his political career in the PNM.

In 1974 Hudson·Phillips fOWlded the National Land Tenants and Ratepayers Association of Trinidad and
Tobago. In 1980 he founded the Organisation for National Reconstruction, a political party which contested the
1981 General Elections. Despite getting the second-highest vote tally in the election, the ONR failed to secure a
single seat in Parliament. The ONR went on to fonn an accommodation with the National Alliance to contest
the 1983 local govenunent elections, and went on lhe merge with those parties to fonn the National Alliance for
Reconstruction. Hudson-Phillips and Basdeo Panday, as the leaders of the two largest factions in what became
the NAR decided to step aside and allow A.N.R. Robinson, leader of one of lhe smaller parties, to become party
leader. The NAR contested the 1986 general elections and won 33 of the 36 seats in Parliament. However,
Hudson-Phillips did not take an active role in the party after lhe election (allegedly due to disagreements with
A.N.R. Robinson).

In addition to the Grenada murder trial, Hudson-Phillips has been involved in many high-profile cases
throughout the Caribbean, as both Presecutor and Defender. In 1999 he was elected President of the Law
Association of Trinidad and Tobago.

In February 2003. Hudson-Phillips was elected to the first ever bench ofIntemational Criminal Courtjudges.
As "dean of the judges", he chaired the first meetings ofjudges before the election of the Presidency. He also
contributed actively to the drafting of the Regulations of the Court. He resigned from the court for personal
reasons on 14 March 2007.W ...

[edit] Publications

• Hudson·Phillips, K. 1968. The Historical Development ofthe Settlement ofTrade Disputes in Trinidad
an.d Tobago. I.L.O. Monograph.

• Hudson-Phillips, K. 1987. A Case for Greater Public Participation in the Legislative Process. Statute
Law Review.

• Hudson-Phillips, K. 1997. Law and Practice ojArbitration in Trinidad and Tobago. International
Commercial Arbitration Bulletin.

[edit] References

1. '" I t International Criminal Court (19 March 2007). ResignaJion ofJudge Karl T Hudson-PhjiJjos. Ac:e:essed 11
March 2009.

[edit] External links

• International Criminal Court Biograohy
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• Curriculum Vitae, 2002

Retrieved from ''http://en.wikipedia.orglwikiIKarl Hudson-Phillips"

This email is UNClASSIFIED.

o
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From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject

I Jav USA TJAGLCsl B3 DOD-PH
Thursday. July 29. 2010 9:02 AM
Posner, Michael H
Harris. Robert K; Cassidy. Joseph P
RE: Read out· Arthur lenk. Israeli MFA - Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss,
opposition to Tomuschat, and flotilla (UNClASSIRED)

Classification: UNClASSIFIED
Caveats: NONE

RELEASE IN PART
1.4(6),61,65,1.4(0 ,NR,63 OOO-PII,66

Mike-~ B5

Happy to remain engaged. let me know if Ican assist.

B3 DOD-PH

Classified by M, DoS on 12131/2015 - Class: CONFIDENTIAl- Reason:
1.4(8),1.4(0),81 - Declassify on: 07/29/2025

Dave

----Original Message-­
From: Posner, Michael H (mailto:PosnerMH@state.gov)

Sent: Tuesday, July 27,20108:10 AM
To:1 !(IV USA TJAGLCS; Harris, Robert K; Cassidy. Joseph P
Cc: Koh, Harold Hongju; Cleveland, Sarah H
Subject: FW: Read out· Arthur Lenk, Israeli MFA· Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss, opposition to Tomuschat, and
flotilla .

B5

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon A.hmad, Senior
From: Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRL) IcR«e"'v";e"'w.,e,,, ...J
Sent: Monday, July 26, 20104:55 PM ~

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; Fitzpatrick, Kathlee~ M; Sicade, Lynn M (DRLI; Cassidy, Joseph P;

Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Johnstone, Kari A (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Subject: Read out - Arthur Lenk, Israeli MFA· Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss, opposition to Tomuschat, and

flotilla

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201 Q-04163 Doc No. C05905335 Date: 1213112015
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Hi A/S Posner,

As promised here is a out of my meeting with Arthur lenk, Director of the International law Department ofttie Israeli

MFA. I also included an update from Geneva's meetings with the Israeli and Swiss Ambassadors. I still do not have a
final copy of the UNSVG report, but will pass on to you as soon as I see it.

Arthur lenk:

81
1.4(8)
1.4(0)
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61

91.4(6)
1.4(D)

• Flotilla:

o UNSYG -this week there is a high levellSfilel~id"e"Ie...."tio"'n'-m~ee!tJto!!·lUinl!- ,
NY, with the UNSYG office and the US mission. 61

1.4(6)l
1.4(D)

From Geneva:

o FkJtilla in UN - The Israelis are wO.~rl<:::i::ng"-"w::it:::h:::the.:.::..cU::.:N:::S:::Y-=G-=o:::n:::h::.:is'-----------------
inquiry, possible to have a NZ chair. [ 81~

C J 1.4(6)
1.4(D)
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81
1.4(8)
1.4(0)

Best,

sarah

sarah Johnston--Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (ORl)

Offke of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)

202·641·2286

··-Origlnal Message­
From: Khanna, Melanie J
Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 12:59 PM
To: Khanna, Melanie J; Nessel, Suzanne F; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(ORt); cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M;
Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael 0; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K;
Pomper. Stephen E; Geneva HRC; I ~ Griffiths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; 86
Jacobson, linda; SChwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty
Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Ambassador Vaar called today with an update on several items:

NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905335 ·Date: 1213112015
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B11
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

I

Ambassador Held also called earlier:

This email is UNClASSIFIED

Melanie J. Khanna

legal Adviser

U.S. Mission to the U.N. and

,Other International Organizations

+41-22-749-4316

+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

From: Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRL)
Sent: Mondav. July 26,20109:17 AM
To: lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Sicade, lynn M (ORl); Fitzpatrick, K?thleen M
Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R(DRl); Stanfield. Emily; Posner, Michael H
Subject: FW:.Brieftng with Arthur lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905335 Date: 1213112015
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- -----
)

Good morning, .

Friendly reminder I'll be at a briefing with Arthur lenk, Dir. of the International law Dept of the Israeli MFA this morning
in the 10 conf room 6323 from 10:3Q.ll:30am 85
~ --.J You are all welcome to join.

Best,

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (DRL)

Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)

202-647-2286

From: Stanfield, Emily
Sent: T.hursday, July 22, 20103:18 PM
To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRl)
Subject: RE: 8riefing with Arthur lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Thanks for the ·heads-up - also on Israel-related stuff, feel free to add Posner to these emails.

Emily Stanfield

(202) 647-1337 office

_____ IBlaCk8errv

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRl)
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 2:36 PM
To: lieberman, Jessica D (DRl); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, lynn M
(DRL)

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905335 Date: 12/3112015
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Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRl); Stanfield, Emily
Subject: FW: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Hi,

Arthur lenk, the Director of the Il Oepartment"ofthe Israeli MFA will be here on Monday to brief further on the GOI

report. I I 85

I I

Best,

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (DRl)

Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)

202-647-2286·

From: Saltzman, Amy J
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:45 PM
To: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Harris. Robert K; Cassidy, Joseph"P; 8anos, Mariano H; Knopf, Payton l; Bass, Warren;
Walles, Jacob; Enav. Cari R; Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael 0; Doutrich. Jack T; T5Ou, leslie M; Sicade, Lynn M
(DRl); Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRl); Germain. Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN);

Schedlbauer, Amy W; Andris, Matthew R; Gorove, Katherine M; Morrison, Andrew l
Cc: Ifill, Donna G (DRl); Weaver, Patricia "A
Subject: Briefing with Arthur lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Arthur lenk, Director of the Department of International law at.lsrael's Ministry of Foreign Affairs, will be at DOS to brief

interested parties on Monday. July 26 at 10:30 AM. I

r~_-,--- ~_----,I Please let me know if you plan to

attend.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q..04163 Doc No. C05905335 Date: 12131/2015
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Thanks.

Amy

Amy Saltzman

Bureau for International Organizations (IO)

SaltzmanAJ@state.gov

(202) 647-9431

SBU

This email is UNClASSIFIED.

Classification: UNClASSIFIED
Caveats: NONE
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I
RElEASE IN PART t
B5,B6,NR ".

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subjec:t
Attachments:

Hi A/S Posner,

Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)

Tuesday, Septembe-r 28, 2010 10:54 AM
Posner, Michael H

Stanfield, Emily; Cassidy, Joseph P; lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl); Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M;
Melia, Thomas 0; Sicade, lynn M (ORL)
Update on the HRC Fact Finding Mission--Turkish resolution

Final TrackChanges.doc

Hope you are well. I understand that you are interest~d in an update on flotilla issue at the HRC.

The U.S. statement at the HRC/messaging: I

The u.s. vote on the resolution: We now have a near final version of the TurkiSh follow-up resolution, it endorses the
FFM report, includes a referral to the UNGA with no specific time and asks the High Commissioner to submit a follow~up

report at the March HRC session (attached). Conversations are ongoing about whether we will call for the vote, how we
will vote and whether we will deliver an explanation of vote. I've asked all relevant bureaus for their position. Here is
the current thinking:

Expected yote count: U.S. opposed in isolation. Italy and Netherlands opposed the June resolution but are no longer
members. The new Euros are the UK (who had told Geneva they will abstain). Geneva and demarches have not
confirmed how the new EU members will yote (Poland, Moldova, Spain, Switzerland). but I've asked Geneva to talk to
them.

f~E":IEWAUTHORITY: Sharo~ Ahmad, Senior I

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201()-04163 Doc No. C05905380 Date: 1213112015
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L_
Best,

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs OffICer
Bureau of Democracy. Human Rights and labor (ORl)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202-647-2286

65

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
sent: Monday, September 27, 20108:57 PM
To: Galindo, David Rj Mella, Thomas 0
cc: DRl-MlGA·OL; Graze, Deborah Ei Stanfield, Emily; Hawkins, Jeffrey; Johnstone, Kari A (CRt)
Subject: Re: MlGA Radar/call froml Ito Mike 66

Tom and MLGA colleagues - Mike got a call trmC= =:Jthis evening asking about next steps on flotilla res after .86
dabate today-wjat is tikefy vote count, does report get sent to NY etc. Can you update Mike on all of this expanding on
the radar item?

From: Galindo, David R
To: ORt-Radar
Cc: DRL·MlGA·Dl
Sent: Moo 5ep 27 11:00:262010
Subject: MlGA Radar 9/27/10

HRr \tom 7 doh.,o tnda.' I
NR

IHRC Flotilla Fact Finding Mission debate will conclude tomorrow~ the U.S.
'-"st-at:-e-m-e-n:-tWI'"'I'Ibe"--re"""leas:-:-e"d'm"""id'--m.Joming. Israel stated that the HRe is not an honest broker in fact finding.

Turkey stated that the FFM did an excellent job and urges HRC follow-up. The Tomuschat and flotilla follow~

up resolutions will be voted on Thursday. and ~e likely to pass. (MLGA-Johnston-Gardner).

From: Khanna, Melanie J
Sent: Tuesday, september 28, 2010 6:27 AM
To: Bass, Warren; Kha~ Melanie J; Nessel, Suzanne F; Io-HR-Dl; cassidy, Joseph P; Jolmstoo-Ga,dne<, sarah R
(DRl); Aswad, Evefyn H; t Geneva HRC15; Khoury-Kincannon, sahar; 'Kumar, Prem G.';
Anderson, Brooke 0 eli Germain, EIJn J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USlJN); Sarles-Ruggles, Erica J; Sutphin, Paul
R; Doutrich, Jack T; Walles, Jacob; Tsou, leslie H; Rudman, Mara; Martin, Julie B; Donahoe, Eiteen C
SUbject: Fact finding misslon--Turkish resolution as tab'ed

B6

All,

rA~t~ta~'~he~d~i~'~the=l=at=e='t::d=ra=ft=T::u='=ki='h=,e=,O::I=u'=io::n=,::,e,:,fl=e::,t=in=,=m::a::lI=ed::i=ts",=o::m:=a=,e=d=W=it=h"W=h=a=t=w=a='='i=rc=u~la=,e=d=p=,,,eV:io::U='3IY,
~ :::=oJ 65
'--- ..JVoting could in
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theory take place as early ilS late tomorrow Geneva time (Wed), but this is more likely to com~ up for vote Thursday or
Friday.

Melanie J. Khanna
legal Adviser
U.S. Mission to the U.N. and

Other Intemational Organizations
+41·22·749-4316
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

From: Ela GOrkem [mailto:egork.em@mfa.gov.tr]
Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 2010 11:15 AM
To: Khanna, Melanie J
Subject: Fact finding m;ssion

Dear Melanie,

Please find enclosed the draft resolution.

Sincerely.

Eia

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 DO<: No. C05905380 Date: 1213112015
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From:
Sent
To:
Cc
Subject:

A/S Posner,

McGeeney, Kristen R (DRl)
Tuesday, July 27,20107:06 PM
Posner, Michael H
Sicade. lynn M (DRl); Stanfield, Emily; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Background on HRC items for Posner-Donahoe mtg

RELEASE IN PART
5,NR

We understand that you do not need any paper for your Friday meeting with Ambassador Donahoe, however we
wanted to be sure to provide you with some background on the possible issues that she could raise in your

meeting. Below are updates on the various HRC-related issues.

Best,

Kristen

Kristen McGeeney

Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights, and Labor

202-647-2019
McGeeneyKR2@state.gov

•

•

•

~~rEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior I
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-04i'S3-0oc No. C05905334 Date: 1213112015
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o

o Report of the Fact-finding Mission on the Flotilla: OHCHRjust announced the members of this
committee, they are: Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, QC (Trinidad and Tobago), Sir Desmond de Silva, QC
J!(Ue!lU!!'·t~ed~Kin!'c·'l>gd~o~m'Ol)I.:.an~d-"M~ary".1..~Shan~~th,,-i D~ain~·~am~(M~al.a;ay~s~ia"')~b~~~~~~~~~~~~d.1 85

I I
NR

•

•

•

•

•
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•

•
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~B),Bl,B5,l.4(D),NR,B~

From:
Sent
To:
Cc
Subject

Posner, Michael H
Tuesday, July 27, 2010 8:02 AM
Graze, Deborah E
Baer, Daniel B
FW: Read out - Arthur lenk, lsraeli MFA - Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss.
opposition to Tomuschat, and flotilla

iFCEi"-i",n",te"r"es..t",in..g~--,l"e..n",k-"is"t",he"'-,m"."i"n-"I.,,wy,-,,e"r-"in,-t"h,::e~M~FA~w"o"rk~i"ng~o"n.::G",o",ld,:,s:"to",n",e~r.:'e",1."te::d:::iss:"u:"e':'s-'.'-'I ~===~_=:J. 85

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
sent: Monday, July 26, 20104:55 PM
To: Posner, Michael H
ceo M<Geeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, Lynn M(DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P;
Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Johnstone, Kan A (DRL); Mann, Winstnn E (DRL)
Subject: Read out· Arthur L.enk, Israeli MFA - Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss, opposition to Tomuschat, and
tlotilla

Hi A/S Posner,
Classified by M, OOS on 1213112015 - Class: CONFIDENTIAL - Reason:
1. B),1. 0). B1 - Declassify on: 07/27/2025

As promised here is a out of my meeting with Arthur lenk, Director of the International Law Department of the Israeli
MFA. I also induded an update from Geneya's meetings with the Israeli and Swiss Ambassadors. I still do not have a

final copy of the UNSYG report, but will pass on to you as soon as I see it.

Arthur Lenk:

NR'

[~~IEWAUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior1
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905331 Date: 1213112015
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'--::.~~N'=W~H;;R;:C;:F.::ct:--;:Fi;:nd:;:i;:nc:-;:M;;:iss::;:ion::::r:[--~---~------~~~~~~~---1.4(8)
[ ----------;rr----------1.4(0)

• Flotilla: 81

NR

o UNSYG -this week there is a hi h level Israeli delegation meeting in NY with the UNSYG offICe and the
US mission 81

1.4(8)
1.4(0

o

o

From Geneva:

• IsraeliAmb,cy'li....Lc:...·------------------------------'NR

o Flotilla in UN· The Israelis are working with the UNSYG on his inquiry, possible to have a NZ chair.

•

1.4(8)
1.4(0)

---------------------------81 NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905331 Date: 12/3112015
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NR

Best,

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human RiBhts and labor (DRl)
OffICe of Muttllater.ll and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202-647-2286 •

-----Original Message----­
From: Khanna, Melanie J
Sent: Monday, July 26, 2919 12:59 PH
To: Khanna, Melanie J; Nassel, Suzanne F; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl); Cassidy, Joseph P;
Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M; Ostenneier, Any A; Honigstein. Michael 0; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos.
Mariano Hi Cleveland. Sarah Hi Harris. Robert K; Pomper. Stephen E; Geneva HRC;
I ; Griffiths, Douglas H; Perina, Alexandra Hj Jacobson, B6
linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty
Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Ambassador Yaar called today with an update on several items:

NR

J
811
1.4(8)
1.4(0)

Ambassador Held also called earlier:

NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201~163 Doc No. C05905331 Date: 1213112015
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j
This email is UNCLASSIFIED

Melanie J. Khanna
Legal Adviser
U.S. Mission to the U.N. and

Other International Organizations
+41-22-749-4316
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

From: Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRl)
sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 9:17 AM
To: lieberman, Jessica D (DRl); Sicade, lynn M(DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; Posner, Michael H
SUbject: FW: Briefing with Arthur lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Good morning,

Friendly reminder I'll be at a briefing with Arthur Lenk Oir. of the lnt rnationalla D
in the 10 conf room, 6323 from lO:30-11:30am.
'--- --' You are all welcome to join.

Best,
Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (DRl)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202-647·2286

From: Stanfield, Emily
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 3:18 PM
To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (mil)
SUbject.: RE: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Thanks for the heads-up - also on Israel·related stuff, feet free to add Posner to·these emails.

Emily Stanfield
(202) 647-1337 office
(571) 216-7681 BlackBerry

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 2:36 PM
To: Lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, Lynn M(DRL)
Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emlfy , ' .
Subject: FW: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Hi,

NR

85

Arthur lenk, the Director of the Il Department of the Israeli MFA will be here on Monda to brief further on the GOI
report. 85

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Departmenl of Stale Case No. F-201C-04163 Doc No. C05905331 Dale: 1213112015
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] 85

Best,
Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Garoner
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and labor (DRl)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)
202·647·2286

From: saltzman, Amy J
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:45 PM
To: Fit2patrick, Kathleen M; Harris, Robert K; caSSidy, Joseph P; Banos, Mariano H; Knopf, Payton L; Bass, Warren;
Walles, Jacob; Enav, earj R; OstermeIer, Amy A; Honfgstein, Michael 0; Doutrich, Jack T; Tsou, Leslie M; Sicade, lynn M
(DRl); Johnston-Gardner, sarah R (DRL); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN);
Schedlbauer, Amy W; AndriSt Matthew R; Gorove, Katberine M; Morrison, Andrew L
Ceo: Ifill, Donna G(DRl); Weaver, PatrIcia A
Subject: Briefing with Arthur lenk - 7/26,10:30 AM

Arthur Lenk, Director of the Department of International Law at Israel's Ministry of Foreign Affairs, will be at DOS to brief
interested arties n M nda u 2 a 1 :

':;;0::::;-----------------------------' Please let me know if you plan to
attend.

Thanks,
Amy

Amy Saltzman
Bureau for International Organizations (10)
SallzmanAI@State.gov
(202) 647-9431

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905331 Date: 1213112015
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INR~B6n. ··1

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Hi A/S Posner,

Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)

Wednesday, September 29,20101:16 PM
Posner, Michael H
Melia, Thomas 0; Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M; Sicade, lynn M (ORl); Stanfield. Emily; Cassidy,

Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Graze, Deborah E; Galindo. David R
RE: Israel resolutions voted in HRC today
Flotilla resolution Turkey Final TrackChanges (2}.doc; Palestinian Tomuschat followup as
of 9.29.10.pdf; Flotilla fFM report A.HRC.lS.21_en.pdf; Tomuschat Report.pdf

As promised. attached are the flotitla and Tomuschat fQllow-up resolutions as well as the Tomuschat
Committee report and the.flotilla fact-finding report, t'll bring up a hard copies. The final versions of the
resolutions will come from Geneva later today, but the texts will be the same. Also here are the vote totals
with the countries who abstained:

Flotilla
Yes:30

No:!
Abstention: 15- all EU, Switzerland, Moldova, Ukraine, Korea, japan, Cameroon, Zambia, Norway

NR

Best,

Sarah

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

Sarah Johnston-G.ardner
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRl)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGA)

202-647-2286

From: Cassidy, Joseph P
Sent: Wednesday, September 29,201011:06 AM
To: Posner, Michael H
CC: Melia, Thomas 0; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, lynn M(DRl)j Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
SUbject: FW: Israel resolutions voted in HRC today .
Importance: High

As promised, here are the EOVs and vote totals. Sarah will forward copies of the resolution texts themselves. Joe

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905390 Date: 12/31/2015
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From: Andris, Matthew R
Sent: Wednesday, september 29, 2010 10:58 AM
To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M; Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacob; Lapenn, Jessica; SUtphin, Paul R; Rudman, Mara;
Khoury-Kincannon, sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon, sahar; Doutrich, Jack T; Anderson, Brooke 0
(USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN)j Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Banos, Mariano Hj cassidy. Joseph P

cU:lo.n.ias.te:io--Micbae· ston~Gardner, sarah R (DRL); Bame, David J; 1 86
f- --'-'w"a"te"'rs""J"oh""'n-'R"',,Go"""Id""''''''1er Thomas H; Feltman, Jeffrey 0;

Donahoe, Eileen C; Khanna, Melanie J; cassayre, Mark J; le
Mon, ChristopherJ; P-IO Duty; Katz, Jonathan OJ Bame, David J; SChlachter, Mark M; Baily, Jess L; Gregonis, Meghan E;
Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N
Subject: Israel resolutions voted in HRC today

All:

The two Israel-related resolutions we have been tracking were voted in the Human Rights Council in the past hour. The
results:

NR

Flotilla FFM follow-up:
Yes: 30
No, 1 (U.s,)
Abstentions: 15

Ambassador Donahoe read the EQVs we cleared last night, which are attached for everyone's reference and
records. Thanks to everyone for the hard work on these.

Best,

Matthew R. Andris

Bureau of International OrganIzation Affairs
Office of Human Rights
(202) 647-5892 - office

~ f cell
andrismr@state.gov

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905390 Date: 1213112015
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I
RELEASE IN PART I
1.4(BI,B1.B5.1.4ID).NR.B~

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

Tuesday, August 03, 20107:25 AM
Posner, Michael H

Graze, Deborah E; Stanfield, Emily
Fw: Meeting: Swiss working group on the 4th Geneva Convention Hep, HRC and

Israel/Pal related issues - Thursday lOam, DRl cant room

Classified by M DoS on _12.31.2015 - Class: CONFIDENTIAL
Reason: 1.4(8),1.4(0),81 - Declassify on: 08103/2025

--- Original Message --­
From: Khanna, Melanie J
To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRL); Ostermeier, Amy A; Harris. Robert K; Perina, Alexandra H; Nossel, Suza"nne F;
Cassidy, Joseph P; Honigstein, Michael 0; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Pomper. Stephen E;
Griffiths. Douglas M; Jacobson, linda; Sicade, lynn M (ORl); McGeeney, Kristen"R (ORt); lieberman, Jessica 0 (ORt);

Ooutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren; tapenn, Jessica; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Tsou, teslie M; Weinstein, Ivan S; Cassayre,

Mark J; Masitko. Barbara J (USUN); Germain, Etten J (USUN); Kolb, Natalie; Coughlin, Shaun (S/WCI); Donahoe, Eileen C
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Geneva HRC

Sent: Tue Aug 03 05:12:05 2010

Subject: Re: Meeting: Swiss working group on the 4th Geneva Convention HCP, HRC and Israel/Pal related issues­

Thursday lOam, ORl con1 room

Fyi wanted you to be aware of this.

81
1.4(8)
1.4(D)

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

--- Original Message ---

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (ORl)

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (ORt); Ostermeier, Amy A; Harris, Robert K; Perina, Alexandra H; Khanna, Melanie J;
Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassidy, Joseph P; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H;

Pomper. Stephen E; Griffiths. Douglas M; Jacobson, linda; Sicade, tynn M tORt); McGeeney, Kristen R (ORl); lieberman,

Jessica D (DRl); Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren; tapenn, Jessica; Khanna, Melanie J; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Tsou,
leslie M; Weinstein, Ivan S; Cassayre, Mark J; Griffiths, Douglas M; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN);

Kolb, Natalie; Coughlin. Shaun (S/WCI)

Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

Sent: Mon Aug 0218:19:52 2010

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201G-D4163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 1213112015
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Subject: Meeting: Swiss working group on, the 4th Geneva Convention HCP, HRC'and Israel/Pal related issues - Thursday
lOam, DRL conf room

Hi all,

Thank you,

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL) Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGAI

. 202-647-2286

----Original Message--
From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)

Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 4:48 PM
To: Ostermeier, Amy A; Harris, Robert K; Perina, Alexandra H; Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; cassidy, Joseph P;
Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Honigstein, Michael 0; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Pomper,
Stephen E; Griffiths, Douglas M; Jacobson, Linda; Sicade, lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRl); Lieberman, Jessica D
(DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren; lapenn, Jessica; Khanna, Melanie J
Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Conv~ntion IV COP

Hi,

Best,
Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL) Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

85

--Original Me.ssage--­
From: Ostermeier, Amy A
Sent: MQnday, July 26, 2010 8:34 PM
To: Harris, Robert K; Perina, Alexandra H; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl); Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F;
Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen Mj Honigstein, Michael D: Aswad. Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah

H; Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HR:c;1 IGriffiths, Douglas M; Jacobson, Linda: B6
Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty; Sicade, lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R(DRL); Lieberman. Jessica D (DRL);
Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren; la'penn, Jessica
Subject: Re: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 1213112015
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+ Jessye lapenn. IO-HR Office Director
Sent via blackberry

-- Original Message ---­
From: Harris, Robert K

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (ORl); Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassidy, Joseph P;
Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael 0; Aswad. Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland.
Sarah H' Porn er Ste hen E' Geneva HRC- 86

Gi1fffl~ouglasM; Jacobson, In a; wartz, Jonathan B; King. Betty; .
Sicade, Lynn M {DRl}; McGeeneY,'Kristen R(CRl); lieberman, Jessica 0 (ORL); Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren
Sent: Mon Jul16 17:10:11 2010

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Alexandra,

NR

Bob

----Original Message-···
From: Perina, Alexandra H

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 4:09 PM

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl); Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M;

Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael 0; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K;

Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HRC; I IGriffiths, Douglas M; Jacobson, linda; 66

Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty; Sica~e, lynn M (DRl); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRl); lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl);
Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

NR

Happy to discuss further. Best, A.

-Original Message----

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl)

. Sent: Monday, July 26, 20],0 2:38 PM

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 1213112015
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To: Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier:Amy A; Honigstein,

Michael 0; Aswad Evel n M' Banos Mariano H; Cleveland. Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HRC;

L_~ -,Griffiths: Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz,
Jonathan 8; King, Betty; Sicade. lynn M (DRl); McGeeney. Kristen R(ORll; lieberman, Jessica 0 IDRl); Doutrich, Jack T;
Bass, Warren

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Thank you,

Sarah

Sarah Johnston--Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRl) Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MlGAI
202-647-2286

86

I
. I

NR

---Original Message­
From: Khanna, Melanie J
Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 12:59 PM
To: Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Johnston·Gardner, Sarah R(DRl); Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M;
Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael 0; Aswad, Evel n M; Banos Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K;
Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva Hf\.C; riffiths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H;. B6
Jacobson, linda; SChwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty
Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Ambassador Yaar called today with an update on severat items:

NR

81
1.4(8)
1.4(0)

'------- ~ I

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Departm-ent of State Case No. F-201Q-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 1213112015
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61
_ __________________________1.4(6)

1.4(0)
Ambassador Held also called earlier:

NR

This email is UNClASSIFIED

Melanie J, Khanna
legal Adviser
U.S. Mission to the U.N. and

Other International Organizations
+41-22-749-4316
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

---Original Message--­
From: Khanna, Melanie J
Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 7:03 PM
To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRL); cassidy, Joseph Pi Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier, Amy A;
Honigstein, Michael 0: Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E;
Geneva HRd 5riffiths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, linda; 86
Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty
Subject: RE: Swjss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Doug Griffiths met with Swiss Amb Held today. Held reported that:

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
U.s. Mission to the U.N. and

Other International Organizations

+41·22-749-4316
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

'-"'Original Message-
From: Nessel, Suzanne F
Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 1:32 AM

To: Khanna, Melanie J; Johnston·Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier, Amy A;

Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad. Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper. Stephen E;
Geneva HRC; [ ~Griffiths. Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, linda;
Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty ,
Subject: Re: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP.

Thanks

B6

B5

--- Original Message -­
From: Khanna, Melanie J

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRl); Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Nossel, Suzanne F; Ostermeier, Amy A;

Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Clev~land, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E;

Geneva HRC;L __ ~ Griffiths, Douglas 86
M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, linda; SChwartz, Jonathan B; KIng, Betty !
Sent: ThuJul22 12:59:182010

Subject: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

NR
;

I
I
I

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 12131/2015
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Thanks,
Melanie

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201Cl-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 1213112015
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Date: 12/31/2015

Cassidy, Joseph P
Thursday, August 12, 2010 7:06 PM
Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick. Kathleen M; Johnstone, Kari A (DRl); lieberman, Jessica 0
(DRI)

Demarches on Possible Swiss Convocation of Geneva Convention Signatories

From:
Sent
To:

Subject:

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905348

~
RELEASE IN I--------------------.1 ART 85,NR, .--------86

Importance: High

Mike (and KathY/Kari/Jessical.

10 is circulatIng a demarche cable opposing Swiss convocation, based on yesterday's conference calt. I reworked the
original draft and propose the fqllowing talking points, based on the formulation you used with Amb. Held:

· I

~=======================::;-•

NR

NR

II
65

•

•
NR

•

•

Do those look OK to you? Thanks, Joe

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

Joseph Cassidy
Director, Multilateral and Global Affairs
Bureau ofDemocracy, Human Rights, and Labor
U.S. Department of State

Lu:e.ct~~A.2:4:l.~
66
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cassidyjp@state.gov
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B5,NR

From:
Sent
To:
Cc:
Subject

Posner, Michael H

Friday. July 09. 2010 6:12 PM
Koh, Harold Hong;u(
Cleveland, Sarah H; Graze, Deborah E
Fw: HRC Israel panels . ,

Fyi

---- Original Message ­

From: Cassidy, Joseph P

To: Posner, Michael H; lieberman, Jessica 0 (DRl)

Cc: Graze, Deborah E; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Sent Fri Jul 09 18:02:56 2010
Subject: RE: HRC Israel panels

65

The Flotilla panel is: Sir Desmond de Silva (UK). Dino Kritsiotis (Zimbabwe), and Mary S.hanthi Dairiam (Malaysia). NR

______________1 Joe 65
I

---Original Message-­
From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Friday, July 09,20105:57 PM

To: liebennan, jessica 0 (ORl); Cassidy, Joseph P

Cc: Graze, Deborah E; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Subject: Fw: HRC Israel panels

Thoughts?

65

65

NR

Many thankS,

Suzanne

--. Original Message -­
From: Nossel, Suzanne F

To:'Posner, Michael H; Koh, Harold Hongju
Sent: Fri Jul 09 17:54:29 2010
Subject: HRC Israel panels

I know we had an exchange some time ago LI~::;;::-:::::-::;-;============="'=~~~~~~~9
I IWRT this and the new flotilla panel,1

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F·2010-04163 Doc No. C05905223 Date: 1213112015
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IRELEASE IN PART I
85,NR

From:

Sent:
To:
Cc
Subject:

Graze, Deborah E
Friday, July 09. 2010 6:04 PM
Posner. Michael H

Koh, Harold Hongju
RE: HRC Israel panels

Also, pending, Mike, Is your possibly meeting with Amb. Oren

-Original Message--­
From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday. July 09, 2010 5:59 PM
To: Koh, Harold Hongju
CC: Cleveland. Sarah H; Graze, Deborah E
Subject: Fw: HRC Israel panels

Harold
1 ___

Have a good week-end
Mp

- Original Message ---­
From: Nossel, Suzanne F
To: Posner, Michael H; Koh, Harold Hongju
Sent: Fri lui 09 17:54:29 2010
Subject: HRC Israel panels

I know we had an exchange some time ago
WRT this and the oe mnma pane

~tian s,
Suzanne

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F~201o-04163 Doc No. C05905315 Date; 12/31/2015

RELEASE IN
PART~B~6~~

From;
Sent:
To:

Cc .
Subject;

looping in DRl PDAS Graze.,

Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Monday, July 12, 20""O'-"'1l""04"'-!A"M"-- _
Nossel, Suzanne F; I IBass,
Warren; Brimmer, Esther D; Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Cassidy, Joseph P;
Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James
A:, Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Graze, Deborah E
Ostermeier, Amy A:, Andris, Matthew R
Re: HRC Flotilla Panel_updated

86

--- Original Message --­
From: Nossel, Slizanne F

To'l I
[ - lBass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther 0; Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick,

Kathleen M; Cassidy, Joseph P; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James
A; Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas t'!
Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R
Sent: Mon Jul12 10:55:38 2010
Subject: Re: HRC Flotilla·Panel_updated

From Geneva. It seems panel is not a done deal yet and that today's planned announcement will be delayed.

The Turks (as an interested party) have ve,oed Dino Kritsiotis of Zimbabwe for something he wrote in the past. Further,
De Silva will be a member, but will not be the chairperson. The Thai still hopes to name the committee this week.

-- Original Message ­
From: Nossel. Suzanne F
Tod
I IBass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther 0; Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick,
Kathleen M; cassidy, Joseph P; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Glauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James
A; Cunningham, James B
Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R
Sent: Fri Jul 09 15:59:33 2010
Subject: HRC Flotilla Panel

We understand the below named will be designated Monday to the HRC fact-finding mission on the flotilla.

Best,
Suzanne

Here is the short bio of the 2 members of the FFM on Flotilla,Dina Kritsiotis is a Zimbabwean lawyer with extensive
experience in the field of international humanitarian law. A regular contributor to the leRC Warsaw Summer School on
International Humanitarian law and one of the founding directors of the All Africa Course on International Humanitarian
law, he has been teaching at the University of Nottingham School of law since 1994.

Mary Shanthi Oairiam (Malaysia) was a member of the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women

from 2005 to 2008. Since 2007, she has been serving on the Gender Equality Task Force of the United Nations
Development Programme. S.he is a founding member of the Board of Directors of the International Women's Rights
Action Watch Asia Pacific.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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And the Head of the FFM wilt be Sir Desmond de SilvaHis CV can be obtained from the following
Jinkhttp://www.argentchambers.co.uk/site/peoplejprofile/sirdesmonddesilvaqc#
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-201O-04163 Doc No. C05905316
IRELEASE IN PART I
B5,NR,B6

Date: 12131/2015 ,

.'

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Nossel. Suzanne F
Monday, July 12, 2010 12:44 PM
Cassidy, Joseph P; I J Bass,
Warren; Brimmer, Esther 0; Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen
M; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace,
James A; Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Graze, Deborah E
Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R
Re: HRC Flotilla Panel.:.updated

B6

==::::-- 1

Best, Suzanne

B5

-- Original Message­
From: Cassidy, Joseph P
To: Nossel. Suzanne F; I B6
I IBass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther 0; Koh, Harold Hongju;
Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G;
Wallace, James A; Cunningham, James 8; Goldberger, Thomas H; Graze, Deborah E
Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R
Sent: Mon Jul12 12:01:322010
Subject: RE: HRC Flotilla Panel_updated

Suzanne, Why do OIC countries get a veto on appointments in practice, but Israel and we do not? joe

--Original Message­
From: Nossel, Suzanne F
Sent: Monday, July 12, 2010 10:56 AM
.10:1 IBass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther 0; Koh, Harold· B6
Hongju; Posner. Michael H; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Cassidy, Joseph P; Harris•. Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad,
Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James A; Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas H
Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R .
Subject Re: HRC Flotilla PaneLupdated

From Geneva. It seems panel is not a done deal yet and that today's planned announcement will be delaye~.

The Turks (as an interested party) have vetoed Dino Kritsiotis of Zimbabwe for something he wrote in the past. Further,
De Silva will be a member, but will not be the chairperson. The Thai still hopes to name the committee this week.

-- Original Message·-­
From: Nossel. Suzanne F
ful ~

I IBass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther 0; Koh, Harold· Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick,
Kathleen M; Cassidy, Joseph P; Harris, Robert K; Banos. Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James
A; Cunningham, James B
Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R
Sent Fri lui 09 15:59:33 2010

Subject: HRC Flotilla Panel REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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We understand the below named will be designated Monday to the HRC fact-finding mission on the flotilla.

Best.
Suzanne

Here is the short bio of the 2 members of the FFM on Flotilla,Dine Kritsiotis is a Zimbabwean lawyer with extensive
experience in the field of international humanitarian law. A regular contributor to the ICRe Warsaw Summer School on
International Humanitarian law and one of the founding directors of the All Africa Course on IOlema'tional Humanitarian
law, he has been teaching at the Universtty of Nottingham School of Law since 1994.

Mary Shanthi Dairiam (Malaysia) was II member of the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women
from 2005 to 2008. Since 2007, she has been serving on the Gender Equality Task Force of the United Nations
Development Programme. She is a founding member of the Board of Directors of the International Women's Rights
Action Watch Asia PacifIC.

And the Head of the FFM will be Sir Desmond de SilvaHis tv can be obtained from the following
linkhttp://www.argentchambers.co.uk/site{people{profile{sirdesmonddesilvaqC#

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905316 Date: 1213112015


	StateDept008692-StateDept008721
	StateDept008722-StateDept008759
	StateDept008760-StateDept008796
	StateDept008797-StateDept008860
	StateDept008861-StateDept008913
	StateDept008914-StateDept008980
	StateDept008981-StateDept009006
	StateDept009007-StateDept009028
	StateDept009029-StateDept009056
	StateDept009057-StateDept009083
	StateDept009084-StateDept009116
	StateDept009117-StateDept009149
	StateDept009150-StateDept009183



